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1. Overview of Indian Agriculture and Company

 India is an agrarian country, wherein more than 50% 
people are dependent on agriculture for their livelihood. 
India possesses 157.35 million hectares under cultivation 
which makes us the second largest holder of agricultural 
land in the world as well. India is the largest producer of tea, 
spices, pulses, milk, cashew and jute and the 2nd largest 
producer of rice, wheat, fruits and vegetables, sugarcane, 
cotton and oilseeds.

 The Agrochemicals are designed to protect crops from 
insects, diseases and weeds. They do so by controlling 
pests that infect, consume or damage the crops. 

losses could double without the use of crop protection 
products. Food crops must compete with 30,000 species of 
weeds, 3,000 species of nematodes and 10,000 species of 
plant-eating insects. Agrochemicals are the last and one of 
the key inputs in agriculture for crop protection and better 
yield. 

 India is the world’s 4th largest producer of agrochemicals 
after United States, Japan and China and has emerged as 
the 13th largest exporter of pesticides globally.

 We, Insecticides (India) Limited is India’s one of the fast 
growing Agro chemicals manufacturing company. IIL has 
emerged as a front-line performer in India’s crop care 
market and is all set to grow impressively. IIL owns the 
prestigious Tractor Brand which is highly popular among 
the farmers. This umbrella brand of its agro products 

community. The largest selling brands of IIL include Green 
Label, Lethal, Victor, Monocil, Pulsor, Hakama, Mycoraja, 
Xplode, Akido, Thimet, Mycoraja etc. IIL’s latest products 
Kayakalp are expected to add another dimension of growth 
to the company.

 Our vision to build a globally-respected organization 
delivering the best-of-breed crop care solutions to the 
farmers. We are guided by our value system which 
motivates our attitude and actions. Our core value is 
increase the income and wealth of the farmers and to 
provide the solution through technology. 

 Our strategic objective is to build a sustainable organization 
that remains relevant to the agenda of our consumers, 
while creating growth opportunity for our employees and 

 Insecticides (India) Limited (IIL) is today amongst the 
leading agrochemicals companies in India. With a strong 
product portfolio and a PAN India presence, we are among 
the few companies in the country to have a complete 
integrated portfolio. Insecticides (India) Limited is today a 
fully integrated company with R&D capabilities, Technical 
synthesis, large formulation facilities, edge to edge product 
portfolio, leading brands in the kitty, global tie ups and 
strong distribution network, which helps the company to 
reach the farmers in all the parts of the country. Our product 
basket consists of formulations, technicals and household 
products. With an increasing market share, our brands are 
fast emerging as most trusted crop protection tools in the 
Indian agriculture sector. We have entered into strategic 
partnerships and joint ventures with global agrochemicals 
players for licensing, marketing and distributor agreements. 

Over the years, we have also established a strong 
distribution network, spread across the country with more 
than 5000 distributors and 60000 retailers. 

 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS 
are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

2. Indian Economy – Review of economic scenario

 The past years has been marked by some major reforms. 
The transformational Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
was launched in July 2017. With a policy change of such 
scale, scope, and complexity, the transition unsurprisingly 
encountered challenges of policy, law, and information 
technology systems, which especially affected the informal 
sector. Expeditious responses followed to rationalize and 
reduce rates, and simplify compliance burdens.

 The new Indian Bankruptcy Code (IBC) has provided 
a resolution framework that will help corporate clean 
up their balance sheets and reduce their debts. And in 
another critical move, the government announced a large 
recapitalization package (about 1.2 percent of GDP) to 
strengthen the balance sheets of the public sector banks 

be able to resume spending and banks to lend especially to 
the critical, but-currently-stressed sectors of infrastructure 
and manufacturing.

 The current emphasis on ‘Make in India’, investments in 
accelerating development of transport infrastructure, pro-

positive indicators and your Company is optimistic that the 
economy will pick up.

economic indicators have been observed as the growth 
rate of real GDP has increased from 6.4% in FY2014 to 
7.2% in FY2019. The per capita income has increased from 
Rs 79,118 in FY2014 to Rs 1,25,397 in FY2019. Exports 
growth has increased from 7.8% in FY2014 to 12.1% in 

FY2014 to USD62 billion in FY2019. Industry growth has 
increased from 3.8% in FY2014 to 7.8% in FY2019. GFCF 
growth has increased from 1.6% in FY2014 to 12.2% in 
FY2019. Forex reserves have increased from USD304.2 
billion in FY2014 to USD393.2 billion in FY2019.

 Source : PHD Chamber Of Commerce And Industry

3. Indian Agricultural Industry

 Agriculture is the primary source of livelihood for about 
58 per cent of India’s population. Gross Value Added by 

trillion (US$ 271.00 billion) in FY18.

 The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth, 
increasing its contribution to world food trade every year 
due to its immense potential for value addition, particularly 
within the food processing industry. The Indian food and 
grocery market is the world’s sixth largest, with retail 
contributing 70 per cent of the sales. The Indian food 
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processing industry accounts for 32 per cent of the country’s 
total food market, one of the largest industries in India and 

and expected growth. It contributes around 8.80 and 8.39 
per cent of Gross Value Added (GVA) in Manufacturing and 
Agriculture respectively, 13 per cent of India’s exports and 
six per cent of total industrial investment.

 During 2017-18 crop year, food grain production is 
estimated at record 284.83 million tonnes. In 2018-19, 
Government of India is targeting food grain production of 
285.2 million tonnes. Milk production was estimated at 
165.4 million tonnes during FY17, while meat production 
was 7.4 million tonnes. As of September 2018, total area 
sown with kharif crops in India reached 105.78 million 
hectares.

 India is the second largest fruit producer in the world. 
Production of horticulture crops is estimated at record 
314.7 million tonnes (mt) in 2018-19 as per third advance 
estimates.

 Total agricultural exports from India grew at a CAGR of 
16.45 per cent over FY10-18 to reach US$ 38.21 billion 
in FY18. Between Apr 2018-Feb 2019 agriculture exports 
were US$ 34.31 billion. India is also the largest producer, 
consumer and exporter of spices and spice products. Spice 
exports from India reached US$ 3.1 billion in 2017-18. 
Tea exports from India reached a 36 year high of 240.68 
million kgs in CY 2017 while coffee exports reached record 
395,000 tonnes in 2017-18.

4. Indian Agrochemical Industry 

 Insecticides dominate the Indian crop protection market 
and form almost 53% of the domestic agrochemicals 
market. Herbicides are, however, emerging as the fastest 
growing segment amongst the agrochemicals.

 Paddy accounts for the maximum share of agrochemicals 
consumption around (26%-28%) followed by cotton 
(18% -20%). The eight states including Andhra Pradesh, 
Maharashtra, Punjab, Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, 
Gujarat, Tamil Nadu and Haryana account for usage of 
>70% of the agrochemicals used in India. Andhra Pradesh 
is a leading consumer of crop protection chemicals with a 
market share of 24%.

The India Meteorological Department (IMD) had forecast 
a normal monsoon for 2018, pegging the countrywide 
rainfall at 97% of the long period average (LPA). However, 
the cumulative rainfall in the country during the monsoon 
season (June to September 2018) was 9% lower than 
the LPA. The intermittency, pan-India rainfall coverage 

situation. September ended with a shortfall of more than 
23% and was the driest monsoon for the month since 2015. 
This affected the consumption of crop protection products.

 Pro-growth environment pays off for Indian chemical 
companies

 India is steadily moving up the ranks as a global economic 
power and a business magnet for investment. Key drivers 
for success in the chemical sector include proximity to 
strong growth markets, greater ease in doing business, 
and the continued development of petroleum, chemicals 
and petrochemical investment regions (PCPIRs). Backed 
by one of the strongest GDP growth rates in the world, the 
future looks bright for the Indian chemical industry.

 Steady market strength for chemicals

 Indian chemical companies support a sizable and highly 

polymers, agrochemicals and a range of other groups. 
India is a net exporter of agrochemicals and is 13th largest 
exporter of pesticides and disinfectants in the world. 

 Agrochemical exports have increased on account of 
India’s capability in low cost manufacturing, availability 
of technically trained manpower, seasonal domestic 
demand, overcapacity, better price realization globally 
and strong presence in generic pesticide manufacturing. 
India offers good scope for contract manufacturing as 
well and is also emerging as a destination for undertaking 
contract research. New technical applications have also 
increased the export capacity of Indian agrochemical 
manufacturers. Agrochemical exports have increased by 

agrochemical exports have increased by 11.0% whereas 
imports have also increased by 4.4% as compared with the 

year. Most of the exports are of off-patent products. Over 
the years there has been a steady increase of fungicide 
and herbicide exports which has led to the overall increase 
in agrochemical exports. Latin America, North America, 
Europe and Asia have emerged to be important markets for 
the Indian agrochemical industry. Share of exports towards 

13% during FY14 to 17% during FY18.

 Doing business in India is getting much easier

 Since 2014, the government administration headed by 
Prime Minister Narendra Modi has supported a number 
of reforms designed to encourage business growth by 
eliminating unnecessary laws and regulations, simplifying 
bureaucratic processes, and making the government more 
transparent, responsive and accountable.

 These reforms and other initiatives have supported a 
dramatic, even historic, rise in India’s ranking on the World 
Bank’s Ease of Doing Business (EoDB) Index — a jump 
of 30 places into the top 100 countries. In fact, India is the 

over a single year. 

 Source : FCCI

 Note: Others include Bio-pesticides, Plant growth 
regulators, Nematocides, Rodenticides, Fumigants etc. 
Rodenticides and plant growth regulators are the stars of 
this segment.

 The south-west monsoon delivers 70 percent of India’s 
annual rainfall which is very critical for the farm sector. 
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5. Opportunities and Challenges

 Opportunities

 The Company is working diligently to capitalize opportunities 
such as:

 Contract Manufacturing and Export Opportunities: The 
export of pesticides from India has seen a strong growth 
over the last few years. Globally, India is the 13th largest 
exporter of pesticides. Most of the exports are off-patent 
products. The major exports from India happen to Brazil, 
USA, France and Netherlands. The key growth drivers are 
India’s capability in low cost manufacturing, availability of 
technically trained manpower, seasonal domestic demand, 
overcapacity, better price realization globally and strong 
presence in generic pesticide manufacturing (India has 
process technologies for more than 60 generic molecules). 
Due to the reasons mentioned above, India offers good 
scope for contract manufacturing as well.

 The central challenge for Indian agriculture is low 
productivity, which is evident in modest average yields. 
According to an FAO (Food and Agriculture Organization) 

about 2700 calories per capita per day by 2025. In India, 
the current food grain availability is 525 grams per capita 

USA are 980 grams and 2850 grams respectively. Due 
to an improvement in per capita income, if per capita 

will be about 390 metric tons of food grain by 2025. 
Although low productivity is a challenge, it also presents an 
opportunity for our industry.

 Growth in herbicides and fungicides: Labor shortage, 
rising labor costs and growth in GM crops has led to growth 
in the use of herbicides. The herbicide consumption in India 
stands at 0.4 USD billion in FY17 and is expected to grow at 

billion by FY20. On the other hand the fungicide industry 
in India has grown due to the growth in Indian horticulture 
industry, which has grown at a CAGR of 7.5% over the last 

 Low consumption of pesticides in India: India’s 
agrochemical consumption is one of the lowest in the 
world with per hectare consumption being just 0.6 kgs as 
compared to the United States (5-7 kgs/hectare) and Japan 
(11-12 kgs/hectare). With the increase in awareness and 
market penetration, consumption is likely to improve in the 
near future. The agrochemicals industry is expected to 
play a pivotal role in attaining food security for a populous 
country like India. With dwindling land under cultivation and 
a lower portion of that under irrigation, the need to increase 

protection is the need of the hour. Given the farm distress 
across the country, as well as the upcoming general 
elections in 2019, the government’s focus will be to ease 
the agrarian crisis through budgetary support, increased 
irrigation coverage and better procurement.

 The other major growth drivers for agrochemicals are- 

15%-25% of food produced by the farmers

food grains is increasing at a faster pace as compared 
to its production

which together with policy must aim to improve 

resources

 Challenges of Indian Agrochemical Industry

 Stringent regulations: Stringent environmental regulations 
across the world are increasing the cost of developing new 
products and simultaneously delaying the introduction of 
new products in the market. For instance, in the European 
Union any agrochemical product if found to be mutagenic, 

not achieve registration or re-registration irrespective of the 
level of exposure generated. 

 Low focus on R&D by domestic manufacturers: R&D 

manpower investments. Indian Companies spend only 
1-2% of their revenues in Research and Development as 
against the global MNCs which invest about 8-10% of their 
revenues. This makes Indian manufacturers uncompetitive 
globally in specialty molecules. 

 Lack of education and awareness among farmers: It 
is important to educate the farmers about the appropriate 

owing to differences in regional languages and dialects and 
a general inertia towards adoption of newer products on 
account of possible risks of crop failure.

 : The large 
number of end users and the predominantly generic nature 
of the market make it essential to have a strong and 

However, the industry has been plagued by problems 

infrastructure which result in post harvest losses estimated 

to reach out to the farmers and promote their products and 

 Non-genuine products
non-genuine pesticides which include counterfeit, spurious, 
adulterated or sub-standard products. According to industry 
estimates the non-genuine pesticides could account for 
more than 40% of the pesticides sold in India in FY16. These 
products are inferior formulations which are unable to kill the 

Apart from crop loss and damage to soil fertility, use of 
non-genuine products leads to loss of revenue to farmers, 
agrochemical companies and government. Some of the 
key reasons for use of non-genuine products are lack of 

between genuine and non-genuine products, supply chain 

power of distributors/retailers.

6. Financial Highlights

 The Company’s Revenue from Operation was Rs. 1192 
Crores in 2018-19 as compared to Rs. 1106 Crore in 2017-

Crore. Insecticides (India) Limited has achieved steady 
growth via continued innovation, introduction of new 
products and better product mix across segment.

market because of its capability to offer new innovative 
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products, technologies, processes, services and business 
models. In the year 2018-19, the Company successfully 
launched 6 new products.

(Rs. in lacs)

FY 2019 FY 2018 y-o-y 
Growth(%)

Revenue from 
Operations

119194.54 110639.42 7.73

(PBT)
15300.64 11809.72 29.56

12240.67 8397.36 45.77

Basic EPS (Rs.) 59.23 40.63 45.78

 Financial Condition

and deploys a robust cash management system. The 

rated A/Stable for long term debt and A1 for short term 
debt.

7. Operational Highlights

 Operating Expenses
(Rs. in lacs)

FY 2019 FY 2018 y-o-y 
Growth(%)

Total Expenses  104124.67 99153.81  5.01
Operating Expenses  102602.47 97562.05  5.17
Financial Expenses  1522.20 1591.76 (04.37)

 During the year total expenditure of the Company has been 
increased by 5.01% y-o-y to Rs. 104124.67 lacs. Total 
operating expenses also increased by 5.17% y-o-y to Rs. 
102602.47 lacs. 

8. Human Resources

 
the key assets of the Company. The goal of the Human 
Resources Department is to enable the organization to 
achieve its strategic objectives, while ensuring employees 
are engaged and motivated. At Insecticides India, HR’s 
success is measured by its ability to align and integrate 

reviewed on Key Result Areas (KRAs) to assess the skills 
and plan for their future growth under MDP. 

through in-house training, on-the-job training and outdoor 

soft skills, professional & technical skills and management 
development program. Current efforts also include building 
skills, attracting and retaining talent and nurturing and 
developing leadership potential. 

 During the year under review, there was a cordial 
relationship with all the employees. There was no loss 
of production on account of any industrial unrest. The 
directors would like to acknowledge and appreciate the 
contribution of all employees towards the performance of 
the Company. As on March 31, 2019, the Company directly 
employed more gthan 1,234 people.

 Research and Development

 Insecticides (India) Ltd. has been directing its focus on 
Research and Development for development of more 

technicals. Being one of the few companies engaged 
into formulations and technicals, it is investing into R&D 
to rigorous extent at present. With the new R&D unit 
,established in JV with Japanese Company already 
operational, the Company is optimistic to produce new 
products which would help the Company achieve new 
heights of success and partner the growth of the agriculture 
sector. The Company’s QC labs are NABL accredited, 
which has dedicated professional scientist who carry out 
a wide range of chemical reactions with an analytical 
support of GC, HPLC, GC Mass, AAS, UV and Infrared 
Spectrophotometer etc.

9. Risk management

 Risks and its effect are possible events or possibilities that  
could have an impact on the Company’s performance or 
results. Insecticides India analyses business risks followed 
by a detailed mitigating approach.

 The Company may not be able to capitalize on growing 
business opportunities 

 Mitigation: The Company enjoys enduring relationships 
with farmers across the country’s major crop growing 
areas. With problems like less rainfall and labour issues, 
agriculture productivity is a major issue. The Company is 
present with a comprehensive product range supported 
by multiple manufacturing facilities. The Company’s 
manufacturing facilities are proximate to agriculture 

factory to farm. 

 Volatile raw material costs could affect the bottom-line 

 Mitigation: The Company enters into short and long 
term contracts to reduce the impact of price volatility. Its 
proximity to raw material (being close to ports) and multi-
vendor support has helped reduce costs. 

 Quality aberrations could affect revenues

 Mitigation: The Company is consistently committed to 

approvals from international bodies. 

 Obsolete technology could affect product quality

 Mitigation: The Company invested in specialized imported 

has invested in more than Rs.200 crore in the last 

technologies across its multiple manufacturing facilities. It 
is one of the few in the world to have a dedicated R&D unit 

with modern machineries support the team for developing 
future products. 

10. Internal Control System

 
internal control system, which ensures a smooth 
operation throughout. The assets are well protected with 
all security arrangements. All transactions pass through 

the recording of the same. The internal audit committee 
has been formulated, which takes care of audit and 
compliances being met. Apart from the in-house team, M/S 
Mohit Parekh & Co. Chartered Accountants are engaged 
by the Company to ensure compliance of all statutory 
regulations. The Enterprise Risk Management framework 



33INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

reporting, resulted in continuing improvement in internal 
control.

11. Environment, Safety and Health Parameters

 The Company has been following a stringent policy for 
implementing an Environmental management System 
(EMS) for meeting the purpose of organization’s policy 
and objectives regarding environment. It aims at use of 

services or energy to avoid, reduce or control the creation, 
emission or discharge of any type of pollutant or waste, 
in order to reduce adverse environmental impacts. 
Occupational Health & Safety describes the Occupational 
Health & Safety Management System adopted by the 
Company, the elements of the OHSAS 18001:2007 standard 
and measures stipulated for ensuring the conformance to 
the Occupational Health & Safety Management System, 

satisfaction of interested parties (i.e. customers, suppliers, 
employees and public)

12. Corporate Social Responsibility 

 Growing Together: Accomplishing the role of responsible 
corporate concerned about the overall growth of farmers, 

imperative: Farmer awareness and Child Education. 
Insecticides (India) Limited strongly believes in inclusive 
economic growth. The Company’s CSR initiatives are 

based on this principle of sustainable development of the 
society as whole. Most of the CSR activities of the Company 
are carried out under the aegis of IIL Foundation. 

 IIL foundation recognises the importance of education 
in socio-economic development. Focussing on schools 
in rural areas of Punjab & UP, the organisation provides 
scholarships along with stationary, study material to the 
students across village schools. The activities like Project 
Vidhya include distribution of books and study material to 
children and empowering them towards leading a better life. 
Another campaign was launched by the name of Kisaan 
Jagruta Abhiyan, where farmers of the several districts in 
most of the states were uneducated and unable to use the 
new technology, unable to safe use the agro chemicals. 
Meetings were held with lacs of farmers in the guidance of 
the experts and the scientists from the various agriculture 
universities to educate them. Mobile application (App) is 
also available for the farmers to understand the usage of 
the agrochemicals.

13. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

 The statements in the “Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report” describing the Company’s objectives, expectations 
and forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws and regulations. The actual 
results may differ from those expressed or implied, 
depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, 
government policies and other incidental factors.

THIS SPACE IN
TENTIO

NALLY LEFT BLANK
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Dear Members,

The Board of Directors hereby submit the report of the business 
and operations of your Company (‘the Company’ or ‘IIL’), along 

ended March 31, 2019.

1. Financial Results and State of Company’s Affairs
 ( ` in Lacs, except per equity share data)

Particulars Standalone

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from Operations 119194.54 110639.42

Add : Other Income 230.77 324.11

Total Income 119425.31 110963.53

Less : Total Expenses 104124.67 99153.81

15300.64 11809.72

Less : Tax Expenses 3059.97 3412.36

12240.67 8397.36

Add:Other Comprehensive income (366.60) 403.47

Total Comprehensive income 11874.07 8800.83

Final Dividend 413.35 413.35

Less :Dividend Distribution Tax 84.99 84.16

Key ratios

Earnings per share (Rs.) 59.23 40.63

Dividend per share (Rs.) 2.00 2.00

 During the year under review, revenue of the company has 
increased to Rs. 1,192 Crores from Rs. 1,073 Crores in 
FY2018 
with a growth rate of 11.1%. EBITDA increased by 25.6% 
to Rs. 186 Crores from Rs. 148 Crores as compared to 

45.8% to Rs. 122 Crores from Rs. 84 Crores in FY2018.

 EBITDA margins increased to 15.6% as compared to 13.8% 

portfolio mix and launching of new innovative molecules 
developed by our R&D Centers. PAT margin increased to 
10.2% from 7.8% in FY2018, improvement of 2.4% over 
corresponding period.

 Domestic sales margins growth is product portfolio mix 
and launching of new innovative products. Exports for the 

representing a growth of 76%. 

2. Dividend and Reserves

 The Register of member and share transfer Books will 
remain closed from July 27, 2019 to August 02, 2019 (both 
day inclusive) for the annual closing and determining of the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

3. Share Capital

March 31, 2019 was Rs. 2066.78 Lacs. There was no 
change in the Company’s Share Capital during the year 
under review.

4. Credit Rating
 The Company enjoys a good reputation for its sound 

commitments.

 CRISIL, a S&P Global Company, a reputed Rating Agency, 

long-term and CRISIL A1 for the Short-term Bank facilities. 

5. Award and Recognitions
 Your Company received awards at various industry 

platforms in the area of Management, corporate 
management, digital engagement, and corporate social 
responsibility. 

 Some of the awards are listed below:

 Company of the Year Award : The Company has received 
“Company of the Year Award” in Agri Business Summit & 
Agri Awards 2019

 Runner Up, Best Emerging Company : The Company 
has received the Runner Up, best Emerging Company 
award in the PMFAI AGCHEM, Awards, 2018. 

6. Particulars of Loans given, Investment made, 
Guarantees given And Securities provided

 Details of the loans given by your Company under Section 

2019 are as follows: New Age Knowledge Solutions Limited: 
400.00 Lacs at the interest rate of 12.00% per annum for 
general business purpose (Total outstanding at the end of 
the year was Rs. 408.99/- Lacs); Mentor Financial Services 
Private Limited: Rs. 800.00 Lacs at the interest rate of 
12.00% per annum for general business purpose (Total 
outstanding including interest at the end of the year was 
Rs. 818.58 Lacs); and Leela Foods Private Limited: Rs. 
300.00 Lacs at the interest rate of 16.00% per annum for 
general business purpose (Loan outstanding at the end of 
the year was Nil). For details of investments, please refer 

India Laboratories Private Limited, the said company is the 
Joint Venture of your company w.e.f March 06, 2013 and 
also invested in the shares of OAT Agrico Co. Ltd., Japan, 
a Joint Venture partner Company. 

7. Deposits
 Your Company has not accepted any deposits under 

Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
and no amount of principle or interest was outstanding as 
of Balance Sheet date.

8. Subsidiary Company, Associate Company 
And Joint Venture Company 

 There is no subsidiary Company of the Company during 
the year under review.

 The Company has “OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 
Limited” as its joint venture within the meaning of Section 
2(6) of the Act, as on March 31, 2019.

 A highlights of performance of associates and joint venture 
along with there contribution to all overall performance of 
the Company during the period are provided in Annexure 
- 1 and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. 

9. Consolidated Financial Statements
 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 

for the Financial Year 2018-19 are prepared in compliance 

BOARD’S REPORT
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with the applicable provisions of the Act, Accounting 
Standards and Regulations as prescribed by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India SEBI (Listing Obligations 

“Listing Regulations”).

 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 

the Company and its Joint Venture Company, as approved 
by their respective Board of Directors.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the 
Financial Statements of the Company, the Consolidated 
Financial Statements along with all relevant documents 
and the Auditor’s Report thereon form part of this Annual 
Report. The Financial Statements as stated above are also 
available on the website www.insecticidesindia.com of the 
Company.

10. Transfer to Reserves
 Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the 

reserves.

11. Management’s discussion and analysis
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year 

under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34 read with 
Schedule V of the SEBI “Listing Regulations”, is presented 
in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

12. Corporate Social Responsibility
 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR 

Committee) has formulated and recommended to the 
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR 
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company, which has been approved by the Board. 

 The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: http://www.insecticidesindia.com/Policy/
CSR%20Policy%20FINAL.pdf

 The key philosophy of all CSR initiatives of the Company 
is guided by three core commitments of Scale, Impact and 
Sustainability. 

engagement:

 Creating sustainable 
livelihood solutions, addressing poverty, hunger and 
malnutrition.

 Environmental sustainability, ecological 
balance, conservation of natural resources and 
promoting bio-diversity.

 Affordable solutions for healthcare through 
improved access, awareness and health seeking 
behavior.

training and skill enhancement, building sports & skills 
in young students.

 Managing and responding to 
disaster.

 Protection and promotion 
of India’s art, culture and heritage.

 The Company would also undertake other need based 
initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII to the Act. The 
annual report on CSR activities is annexed herewith and 
marked as Annexure - 2.

13. Risk Management
 The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy 

like, strategy risk, industry and competition risk, operation 

risk. The Company faces constant pressure from the 
evolving marketplace that impacts important issues in risk 

emphasizes on those risks that threaten the achievement 
of business objectives of the Group over the short to 
medium term. Your Company has adopted the mechanism 
for periodic assessment to identify, analyze, and mitigation 
of the risk. 

the application area (i.e. nature of activities and the hazard 
groups), the nature of the project, the project phase, 

 The trend line assessment of risks, analysis of exposure and 
potential impact shall be carried out. Mitigation plans shall 

actions shall be regularly and periodically monitored and 
reviewed.

 Treatment options which are not necessarily mutually 
exclusive or appropriate in all circumstances shall be driven 
by outcomes that include: 

.
 The Risk management Policy of the Company is annexed 

herewith as Annexure - 3 to this Report.

14. Vigil Mechanism
 The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its 

business activities and has put in place a mechanism for 
reporting unethical behaviour, fraud, violations, or bribery. 
The Company has Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy 
under which the employees are free to report violations of 
applicable Laws and Regulations and the Code of Conduct, 
the same can be accessed through the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. The reportable matters may be disclosed 
to the Ethics and Compliance Task Force which operates 
under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees 
may also report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
During the year under review no such complain has been 
received and no employee was denied access to the Audit 
Committee for reporting violations.

15. Disclosure of Remuneration & Particulars Of 
Employees And Related Disclosures

197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, the details regarding the remuneration and 

Annexure – 
4(a) attached hereto.

 List of employee drawing the remuneration in excess of 
limit prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 is mentioned in 
Annexure -4(a).

 No director of the Company who is receiving commission 
from the Company is in receipt of any remuneration or 
commission from any holding company or subsidiary 
company of the Company.

 The Remuneration Policy of the company is annexed 
herewith as Annexure – 4(b) to this Report.
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16. Directors 

 Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), 
the Shareholders in the 19th AGM of your Company held 
on September 21, 2016 appointed Mr. S. Jayaraman (DIN 
: 02634470) and Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN: 07421742) 
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company 
for three consecutive years term up to February 09, 2019. 
Mr Jayaraman and Mr. Mittal are eligible for re-appointment 
as an Independent Non- Executive Director for a second 

of the Act, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends for 
the approval of the Members through a Special Resolution 
in the 22nd AGM of your Company, the re-appointment of 
Mr. Jayaraman and Mr. Mittal as an Independent Non-

years from February 09, 2019 up to February 08, 2024.

 Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), 
the Shareholders in the 17th AGM of your Company held 
on September 19, 2014 appointed Mr. Navin Shah (DIN : 
02701860) and Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 06382540) 
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company 

Shah and Mr. Gupta are eligible for re-appointment as an 
Independent Non- Executive Director for a second term of 

Act, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends for the 
approval of the Members through a Special Resolution in 
the 22nd AGM of your Company, the re-appointment of Mr. 
Shah and Mr. Gupta as an Independent Non-Executive 

May 31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024.

 In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal (DIN: 
06569091), Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and 
being eligible, offer herself, for re-appointment. The Board 
of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has recommended her re-
appointment.

 The information of Directors seeking appointment/ 

of SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 is 
provided in the notice of the 22nd Annual General Meeting 
of the Company.

 All the Independent directors have given declaration that 
they meet the criteria of Independence laid down under 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
16(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

17. Meeting of the Board

met 4 (Four) times, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report that forms the part of 
Annual Report. The notice along with Agenda of each 
Board Meeting was given in writing to each Director. The 
intervening gap between any two meetings was within the 
period prescribed by the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

18. Performance Evaluation Report
 In terms of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing 

the Board of its own performance and that of its committees 
and individual directors.

 The evaluation of Board of its own performance and that 
of its committees and individual directors was conducted 

based on criteria and framework adopted by the Board. The 
evaluation criteria have been explained in the Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy adopted by the Board. 

19. Familiarisation Programme for Independent 
Directors

 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a 
programme for familiarising the Independent Directors 
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the 
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 
operates, business model of the Company etc. through 
various initiatives. The details of the aforementioned 
programme is available on the Company’s website at http://
www.insecticidesindia.com/.

 Further, the Company has received declaration from all the 
Independent Directors, as envisaged in sub section (6) of 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. Board Committees

Listing Regulations, your Board had constituted various 
Board Committees including Audit Committee, Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Finance Committee and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee.

 Details of the constitution of these Committees, which 

been uploaded on the website of the Company viz. www.
insecticidesindia.com. Details of scope, constitution, 
terms of reference, number of meetings held during the 
year under review along with attendance of Committee 
Members therein form part of the Corporate Governance 
Report annexed herewith this report. A detailed report on 
Corporate Social Responsibility activities initiated by the 
Company during the year under review, in compliance with 

this report.

21. Key Managerial Personnel

change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

 The following persons have been continued to be 
designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
pursuant to Section 2(51) of the Act, read with the Rules 
framed there under.

1. Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal – Chairman & WTD

2. Shri Rajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director

3. Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal – Whole-time Director

4. Shri Sandeep Kumar – Company Secretary 

 During the year 2018-19, information as mentioned in Part 
A of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations, has been 
placed before the board for its consideration.

22. Directors Responsibility Statement

 Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 
ended March 31, 2019, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;
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b) the directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis.

to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

effectively; 

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

effectively.

23. Contracts Or Arrangements With Related 
Parties 

 Your Company has formulated a policy on related party 
transactions which is also available on Company’s 
website at the link http://www.insecticidesindia.com/Policy/
RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTION%20FINAL.
pdf.This policy deals with the review and approval of related 
party transactions.The Board of Directors of the Company 
has approved the criteria for making the omnibus approval 
by the Audit Committee within the overall framework of 
the policy on related party transactions. Prior omnibus 
approval is obtained for related party transactions which 
are ofrepetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of 
business and at arm’s length. All related party transactions 
are placed before the Audit Committee for review and 
approval.  

 All related party transactions entered duringt he Financial 
Year were in ordinary course of the business and on arm’s 
length basis. Disclosure of related party transactions as 

2013 in Form AOC 2 is given and annexed as Annexure -5.

statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant 
to IndAS-24.

24. Details in respect of adequacy of Internal 
Financial Controls

 The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for 

including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safe 
guarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable 

Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status of the Company and Company’s operations 
in future, details of which needs to be disclosed in the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

26. Material Changes and Commitments
 There have been no material changes and commitments 

date of the report. 

27. Auditors
 Statutory Auditors

 M/s S S Kothari Mehta & Company., Chartered Accountants 
(ICAI Regd. No.: 000756N) and M/s Devesh Parekh & 
Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Regd. No.: 013338N) 
were appointed as Auditors of the Company at the Annual 
General Meeting held on August 08, 2017, for term of 5 

Company.

Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any 

 During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported 
any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no 

of the Act.

 Secretarial Auditor

 The Board of Directors had appointed Akash Gupta & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, (PCS Regis. No. 
11038), to conduct Secretarial Audit for FY 2019-2020. 
During the year under review the company complies with 
all applicable secretarial standards. The Secretarial Report 
given by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed and forms 
integral part of this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report 

remark or disclaimer. 

 During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditors had 
not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, 

134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

 In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Audit Committee recommended and the Board of Directors 
appointed M/s. Akash Gupta & Associates, Company 
Secretaries (PCS Registration No.11038) as the Secretarial 

2018-19. The Company has received their consent for 
appointment.

 Cost Auditor

with Companies (Cost Records and Audits) Rules, 2014, 
the cost audit records maintained by the Company is 

and the Board of Directors appointed M/s Aggarwal 
Ashwani K & Associates (FRN: 100191) Cost Accountants, 
as Cost Auditors of the Company, to carry out the cost audit 

their written consent that the appointment is in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed 
thereunder. The remuneration of Cost Auditors has been 
approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendation 
of Audit Committee and in terms of the Companies Act, 

members has been set out in the Notice of the 22nd Annual 
General Meeting of your Company.

 The Cost Audit Report of the relevant period does not 

disclaimer. 

 During the FY 2018-2019, the Cost Auditor has not reported 
any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act, therefore no 



38 INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

of the Act.

28. Corporate Governance
 The Company is committed to maintain the highest 

standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The 
report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the 
Listing Regulations forms an integral part of this Report. 

Governance is attached to the report on Corporate 
Governance.

29. Business Responsibility Report
 In compliance with Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing 

Regulations, the Business Responsibility Report 
detailing the various initiatives taken by the Company on 
environmental, social and governance front is forming 
a part of this Annual Report. The Board of Directors 
has adopted a Business Responsibility Policy. The said 
Policy is available on Company’s website at http://www.
insecticidesindia.com/

30. Conservation Of Energy, Technology 
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings & 
Outgo 

of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Account)s Rules, 2014, the particulars relating 
to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign 

under the Act, are provided in Annexure - 6 to this report.

31. Extract of Annual Return
 In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, an extract 

of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as 
Annexure - 7 to this Report.

on Company’s website at http://www.insecticidesindia.com/
Extract-of-Annual-Return/ExtractAR_2019.pdf.

32. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at the Work Place (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

 The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment 

Harassment of Women at the Work Place (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Directors state 
that during the year under review, no cases of sexual 
harassment have been reported.

 Further, the company has complied with provisions relating 
to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The 
said Policy is available on Company’s website at http://
www.insecticidesindia.com/

33. Pollution Control
 The Company has taken various initiatives to keep the 

environment free from pollution. It has already installed 
various devices in the factories to control the pollution.

34. Unclaimed Dividend 
 As per the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are 

unclaimed for a period of seven years, statutorily get 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF) administered by the Central Government. During 
the year under review, in terms of provisions of Investors 
Education and Protection Fund (Awareness and Protection 

year 2010-11, aggregating to Rs.95285/- was transferred 
to Investors Education and Protection Fund. As per 
Regulation 43 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

Regulations, 2015, no shares are lying in the suspense 
account of the Company.

35. Insurance

liability, marine, burglary etc.

36. Nature of Business
 There is no change in the nature of business during the 

period under review.

37. Listing of Securities 

National Stock Exchange Limited.

38. Cautionary Statement
 Statements in the Board’s report and the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s 
objectives, expectations or predictions, may be forward 
looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws 
and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from 
those expressed in the statement. Important factors that 

and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting 
selling prices, new capacity additions, availability of critical 
materials and their cost, changes in government policies 
and tax laws, economic development of the country and 
other factors which are material to the business operations 
of the Company.

39. Appreciation

of the culture of professionalism, creativity, integrity and 
continuous improvement in all functions and areas as well 

 The Directors hereby wish to place on record their 

each and every employee, without whose whole-hearted 
efforts, the overall satisfactory performance would not have 
been possible.

 The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made 
by every member of the IIL family.

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited 

  (Rajesh Aggarwal) (Hari Chand Aggarwal)
  Managing Director  Chairman & WTD
  DIN - 00576872  DIN - 00577015

Place : Delhi
Dated : May 28, 2019
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Annexure - 1
FORM NO. AOC.1

 
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries - Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

(` In Lacs)

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures OAT & IIL India Laboratories 
Private Limited (Joint Venture 

Company)

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2019

06.03.2013

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No. 795000

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 795.00

Extend of Holding % 20

Joint Venture Agreement & 
Shareholding of 20% in OAT&IIL

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA

6. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 4303.16

i.  Considered in Consolidation 20%

i.  Not Considered in Consolidation 80%

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. – NIL
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including 
overview of projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR 
policy and projects or programmes.

 The CSR policy is available on Company’s website. The 
web link of the same is http://www.insecticidesindia.
com/Policy/CSR%20Policy%20FINAL.pdf.A gist of the 
programs that the Company canundertake under the CSR 
policy is mentioned below.

 The Company undertake activities relating to rural 
development including enhancing environmental and 
natural capital; supporting rural development; promoting 
education and vocational skills; providing preventive 
healthcare; providing sanitation and drinking water; creating 
livelihoods for people, especially those from disadvantaged 
sections of society, in rural and urban India; preserving and 
promoting traditional art and culture, and promoting sports 
etc.

 The Company continues to engage with stakeholders 
including communities, civil society, expert organisations 
and would take up such other CSR activities in line with 
Government’s intent and which are important for society. 
The above areas are mapped with the activities as 
prescribed in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in 
the Annexure.

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

S. 
No

Name of the members Designation

1. Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman
2. Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Member
3. Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta Member

 During the year, four meetings i.e. on May 28, 2018; August 
09, 2018, November 12, 2018 and February 04, 2019 were 
held.

3. 

 
Rs.8331.57 Lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the 
amount as in item 3 above):

 
towards CSR for the Financial Year 2018-19

5. 
a) 

Lacs*
(*the company had spent 1.46 Lacs excess amount)

b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil
c) 

year is detailed below:
(` in Lacs)

S. 
No.

CSR Projects / Activities Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Locations Amount Outlay 
(Budget) Project or 
Programs Wise

Amount Spent
on the project 
or programs 
sub heads 
: 1) Direct 
expenditure 
on project (2) 
overheads

Cumulative 
Expenditure upto 
reporting period

Amount spent

Direct Through
implementing

agency

1 Kisaan Jagrukta Abhiyan 
(Training programmes to 
Farmers) 

Farmers Education, 
Upliftment and 
Green Initiative

PAN India 55.00 (FY-2018-2019) 51.72 205.21 - 51.72

2 Project Vidya (Child 
education in rural areas)

Education PAN India 5.00 (FY-2018-2019) 03.81 12.32 - 03.81

3 Navjyoti India Foundation 
(NGO)

Rural Development Delhi Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis 

07.00 31.00 - 07.00

4 AmanUday (NGO) Skill Development Haryana Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis

01.00 01.00 - 01.00

5 Subhaksiksha 
Educational Society

Education Delhi Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis

10.84 19.84 - 10.84

6 Bharat Lok Shiksha 
Parishad

Education Delhi Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis

20.00 20.00 - 20.00

7 Arya Girl Senior 
Secondary School

Education Delhi Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis

01.00 01.00 - 01.00

8 Maharaja Agrasen 
Hospital Charitable Trust 

Health New Delhi Budget as per Agency 
demand on Yearly Basis

20.00 94.45 - 20.00

9 Social Welfare 
Progammes

Health and Sanitary Haryana 10.00 (Yearly) 05.62 12.77 - 05.62

10 Project Environment & 
Plantation

Environment 
Education

PAN India 50.00 (FY-2018-2019) 46.90 46.90 46.90

Total 167.89 444.49 167.89

6. 
part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report: Not Applicable

7. 
objectives of the company.

Place : Delhi  Rajesh Aggarwal Hari Chand Aggarwal

Date : May 28, 2019 Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee
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I. PREAMBLE 

 This Risk Management Policy (“Policy”) is prepared and 
adopted to build a framework for risk management of 
Insecticides (India) Limited (“Company”), in accordance 

which has become applicable with effect from 1stApril, 
2014 and amended clause 49 of Listing Agreement, which 
has become applicable with effect from 1st October, 2014. 
This Policy is aimed to develop an approach to make an 

operational and project based areas in a timely manner.

II. PURPOSE 

 The provisions of Act and Listing Agreement provides 

Risk Management Policy (“Policy”) of the Company and 
a statement to this effect shall be included in the Report 
of Board of Directors (“Board”) every year. The statement 

which in the opinion of the Board may create threat for the 
existence of the Company.

III. OBJECTIVE 

 A Company is exposed to several types of risks, including 

this Policy is to ensure sustainable business expansion 
with stability, and to promote an upbeat approach in risk 
management process by eliminating risk. In order to 
achieve this key objective, this Policy provides a prepared 
and well-organized approach to manage the various types 
of risk associated with day to day business of the Company 
and minimize adverse impact on its business objectives. 
Main objectives of the Policy are:

1. To ensure that all the current and future material risk 

management;

2. To protect brand value through strategic control and 
operational policies; 

3. To establish a framework for the Company’s risk 
management process and to ensure company- wide 
implementation;

4. To ensure systematic and uniform assessment of risks 
related with different projects of the Company;

5. To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, 
wherever applicable, through the adoption of best 
practices.

IV. BACKGROUND AND IMPLEMENTATION

 This document is intended to formalize a risk management 
policy for the Company, the objective of which shall be 

 The Board of Directors of the Company shall periodically 
review and evaluate the risk management system of the 

Company so that the management controls the risks through 

be responsible for implementation of the risk management 
system as may be applicable to their respective areas of 
functioning and report to the Board and/or Audit Committee.

V. CATEGORIES OF RISKS

 The Company faces constant pressure from the evolving 
marketplace that impacts important issues in risk 

is exposed to several kinds of risk from time to time which 
include the following:

1. Strategic Risks: These risks concern risks relating 

investment evaluation and credit default. These risks 
emanate out of the choices, the Company makes in 
the markets, resources and delivery of services.

2. Industry and Competition Risks: Risks relating to 
the agro chemicals industry, including competition in 
the industry, technological landscape, risks arising out 
of volatility manufacturing industry, and those relating 
to brands of the Company.

3. Risk of Theft, Pilferage and Non Delivery: 
Risks relating to theft or pilferage when the goods 
manufactured are failed to be delivered to the buyers. 
The risk of Non- delivery concerns a situation where 
the whole cargo is not delivered to the consignee. 

4. Risk of Clash and Breakage: The risk of clash and 
breakage is mainly referred to the risks associated with 

in transit. Fragmentation is mainly referred to fragile 
substances and includes loss including breaching and 
smash in transit due to careless loading and unloading 
and bumping of conveyance, and may also occur 
during warehousing. 

5. Operational Risks: Most common, and often 
combatable in all situations, these risks related 
to business operations such as those relating to 

vendors, services delivery to vendors, security and 
surveillance, and business activity disruptions.

6. Currency Risk: The Company deals in various 

currency markets from time to time. 

7. Resource Risk: The Company may at times, become 
susceptible to various risks associated with the 
procurement of talent, capital and infrastructure, as 

8. Risks relating to regulatory and compliance 
framework: 
regulations, contractual obligations and intellectual 
property violations leading to litigations and related 
costs and effect on brand value and image.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
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 Due to the constant changes in the issues affecting the 
business, there is always a need for proactive solutions for 
risk prevention and management. A comprehensive risk 
policy covering the broadest spectrum of potential risks will 
provide the most protection.

VI. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

1. ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS & CONTEXT

 The purpose of this stage is to understand the 
environment in which the Company operates, keeping 
in view its external environment, as well as, internal 
culture. For this, the Company shall establish it’s 
strategic, organizational and risk management context 
and identify the constraints and opportunities of its 
operating environment.

2. IDENTIFICATION OF RISKS

for the Company and prioritizing the risks for action 
is an important aspect of this Policy. Mechanisms 

risk survey, scanning of the environment of risks, 
discussions about the risks and threats to the 
Company. A risks register shall also be maintained, 

 
include: 

 To achieve its goals, the Company shall determine 
when, where, why, and how are risks likely to 
occur?

 What are the risks associated with achieving each 
goal?

 What are the risks of not achieving these goals?

 Who are involved (for example, suppliers, 
contractors, stakeholders) in the creation, as well 
as combating of the same?

on the application area (i.e. nature of activities and the 

hazard groups), the nature of the project, the project 

3. ANALYSIS OF RISKS

 Risk analysis involves the consideration of the source 

to estimate the inherent or unprotected risk without 

controls, an estimation of their effectiveness and 
the resultant level of risk with controls in place (the 
protected, residual or controlled risk). Qualitative, 

the purpose of the analysis and the information and 
data available. 

4. EVALUATION OF RISKS

 Once the risks have been analyzed they can be 
compared against the previously documented and 
approved tolerable risk criteria. 

 The decision of whether a risk is acceptable or not 
is taken by the relevant manager. A risk may be 
considered acceptable if for example: 

 
considered cost effective, or 

 A treatment is not available, e.g. a project 
terminated by a change of government, or 

 
perceived level of threat. 

 If the manager determines the level of risk to be 
acceptable, the risk may be accepted with no further 
treatment beyond the current controls. Acceptable 
risks should be monitored and periodically reviewed 
to ensure they remain acceptable. The level of 
acceptability can be organizational criteria or safety 
goals set by the authorities.

5. TREATMENT OF RISKS

 For top risks, dashboards shall be created to track 
external and internal indicators relevant for risks, so 
as to indicate the risk level. The trend line assessment 
of top risks, analysis of exposure and potential impact 

shall be regularly and periodically monitored and 
reviewed. Treatment options which are not necessarily 
mutually exclusive or appropriate in all circumstances 
shall be driven by outcomes that include: 

 Avoiding the risk, 

 Reducing (mitigating) the risk, 

 Transferring (sharing) the risk, and 

 Retaining (accepting) the risk.

6. MONITORING OF RISKS

 It is important to understand that the concept of risk 
is dynamic and needs periodic and formal review. 
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monitored. New risks and their impact on the Company 

description of how the outcomes of the treatment will 
be measured. Milestones or benchmarks for success 

 The review period is determined by the operating 
environment (including legislation), but as a general 
rule a comprehensive review every three years is 
an accepted industry norm. This is on the basis that 
all changes are subject to an appropriate change 
process including risk assessment. The review 
needs to validate that the risk management process 
and the documentation is still valid. The review also 
needs to consider the current regulatory environment 
and industry practices which may have changed 

 The assumptions made in the previous risk 

the effectiveness of controls and the associated 
management system as well as people need to be 
monitored on an on-going basis to ensure risk are in 
fact controlled to the underlying criteria. 

interactions is necessary. This ensures that the 

assessed. A framework needs to be in place that 

aspects of risk and its impact on the Company’s 
operations: 

 What are the key risks?

 How are they being managed?

 Are the treatment strategies effective? – If not, 
what else must be undertaken?

 Are there any new risks and what the implications 
for the organization are?

7. COMMUNICATION & REPORTING

 Risk updates shall be provided to the Board. Entity level 
risks such as project risks, account level risks shall be 
reported to and discussed at appropriate levels of the 
Company. Clear communication is essential for the 
risk management process, i.e. clear communication of 
the objectives, the risk management process and its 

as a result of the output.

VII. ROLE OF THE BOARD

 The Board will undertake the following to ensure that the 
risks in the Company are managed appropriately: 

implementing and monitoring the risk management 
plan for the Company;

risk management are in place;

resources in addressing risks;

in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the 
Board’s deliberations on issues of risk management 
and satisfy themselves that the systems of risk 
management are robust and defensible;

where possible;

compliance with the Policy.

information and data, be thorough in assessments, seek 
independent or expert advice where appropriate and 
provide direction and guidance to the Board of Directors in 
terms of decision-making.

employees, contractors and records and may obtain 
independent expert advice on any matter they believe 
appropriate, with the approval of the Board.

VIII. RISK REGISTRATION, TREATMENT & REPORTING 

 The Company should make the risk registers in which the 
managers to record, the risk description, an assessment 

treatment plans.

 This information provides a useful tool for managers & staff 
to consider in both strategic & operational planning & the 
register will be available to managers & staff.

the organization with particular regard to those risks that 
exceed an acceptable risk level.

 The management of risk will be integrated into 
organization’s existing planning & operational processes 

mechanisms, on the basis of the evaluation of the level of 
risk & organization’s exposure.

IX. DISCLOSURE IN BOARD’S REPORT

 Board of Directors shall include a statement in their Board’s 
Report, indicating development and implementation of 
a Risk Management Policy for the Company, including 

the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the 
Company.

X. REVIEW

 This Policy shall be reviewed annually, to ensure that it 

the needs of Company.
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Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 

 Table no. I  (` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No

Name of Director Designation Ratio

1 Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman & (WTD) 182:1

2 Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director 182:1

3 Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Director 16:1

 Table no. II (`in Lacs)

Sl. 
No

Name of Director Designation Ratio

1 Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director 0.48:1

2 Mr. Navin Shah Independent Director 0.38:1

3 Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal Independent Director 0.48:1

4 Mr. Jayaraman Swami-
nathan

Independent Director 0.57:1

Notes:

1. Directors at above table II are Independent Directors 
and received only sitting fee during the year.

2. Out of pocket expenses incurred by them for attending 
the meetings not taken into account.

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 

Sl. 
No

Name of Director and 
KMP

Director/KMP % Increase in 
remuneration

1 Mr. Hari Chand 
Aggarwal

Chairman
Cum Whole-time 
Director

337.13

2 Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director 391.78

3 Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Director 17.14

4 Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal Chief Financial 5.61

5 Mr. Sandeep Kumar Company Secretary 15.90

11.15% in the median remuneration of employees. The 
median remuneration of the employee of the company for 

d. Total number of employees of the Company as on March 
31, 2018 was 1,234. The Company has maintained 
peaceful and harmonious relations with all its employees.

e. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees in 2018-19 was 7-8% whereas the increase in 
managerial remuneration was approx 10%. This was based 
on the recommendations of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, based on industry benchmarks and the 
respective person’s performance and contribution. The 
Company’s remuneration philosophy is to ensure that it is 
competitive in the Pesticides industry in which it operates, 
for attracting and retaining the best talent. 

Remuneration policy of the Company.

g. Statement showing the names and other details of the top 
ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn along with 
other particulars. All these employees are in whole time 
employment of the Company.

(` In Lacs)

Name and 
Age

Designation 
/ Nature of 

Duty

Remuneration 
p.a

Age / 
Experience

Date of 
Joining

Previous 
Employment & 

Designation

% of 
shareholding 

in the 
Company

Relationship to any 
Director or Manager

Mr. Hari Chand 
Aggarwal

Chairman 472.10 High School 71 Years / 43 
Years

01/11/2001 Own Business 4.47 Father of Mr. Rajesh 
Aggarwal, MD and Father-

in-law of Mrs. Nikunj 
Aggarwal, WTD

Mr. Rajesh 
Aggarwal

Managing 
Director

472.10 Graduate 49 Years/ 26 
Years

01/11/2001 Own Business 25.61 Son of Mr. Hari Chand 
Aggarwal, Chairman and 
Husband of Mrs. Nikunj 

Aggarwal, WTD
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Name and 
Age

Designation 
/ Nature of 

Duty

Remuneration 
p.a

Age / 
Experience

Date of 
Joining

Previous 
Employment & 

Designation

% of 
shareholding 

in the 
Company

Relationship to any 
Director or Manager

Mrs. Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Whole-time 
Director

41.09 B.A 46 Years/ 12 
Years

02/05/2013 Own Business 5.44 Wife of Mr. Rajesh 
Aggarwal, MDl and 

Daughter-in-law of Mr. 
Hari Chand Aggarwal, 

Chairman

Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Wasan

General 
Manager

30.54 B-tech in 
Chemicals

51 Years/ 30 
Years

23/02/2016 M/s Solrex 
Pharmaceutical 
Ltd, Sr. General 

Manager

0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. Arun Kohli G.M – 
Institutional 

Sales

29.19 Phd, 
Management

59 Years/ 39 
Years

16/08/2017 M/s UPL Limited 0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. Sandeep 
Aggarwal

CFO 28.92 Chartered 
Accountant

51 Years/ 30 
Years

01/08/2011 Own Business 0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Dr. Lokesh 
Chander 
Rohela

Sr. GM, 
Quality

25.11 Phd, 
Synthetic 
Organic 

Chemistry, 
IIT-Delhi

66 Years/ 36 
Years

09/01/2013 Crystal Crop 
Production 

Private Limited

0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. Sanjay 
Singh

A.G.M, Market 
Development

24.14 MSC 51 Years/ 26 
Years

12/06/2012 M/s Dhanuka 
Agritech Ltd, 
Sr. Product 
Manager

0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. Vinod 
Kumar Garg

General 
Manager

23.50 B.Com, LLB 60 Years/ 35 
Years

01/06/2002 - 0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. Srikant S 
Satwe

Head, 
International 

Business

21.54 MSC and 
PGDMS

56 Years / 31 
Years

08/12/2014 M/s Hikal Ltd, 
Head Marketing

0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Mr. P C Pabbi Vice President 19.00 Graduate 58 Years/ 33 
Years

01/11/2001 Own Business 0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors

Dr. Mukesh 
Kumar 
Aggarwal

General 
Manager

20.62 P.hd and 
MSC

57 Years/ 26 
Years

21/12/2001 M/s Hindustan 
Pulverising Mills, 
Manager QC & 

Production

0.00 No Relationship with 
Directors
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Legal Framework

In an endeavor to make the hiring of directors, KMP & other 

Policy for inter-alia, setting up the criteria of Nomination of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & Senior Management 
and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 
Senior Management and other employees. The constitution of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy is in 
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
along with the rules there under and Regulation of SEBI (Listing 

For the purpose of this Policy:

Act’ shall mean the Companies Act, 2013;

Board’ shall mean the Board of Directors of Insecticides 
(India) Limited;

Committee’ shall mean the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company, constituted and re-constituted 
by the Board from time to time;

Company’ shall mean Insecticides (India) Limited;

Directors’ shall mean the directors of the Company;

Independent Director’ shall mean a director referred to in 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013;

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)’ shall mean the 
following:

(i) Executive Chairman and / or Managing Director (MD) 
and/or Manager

(ii) Whole-time Director (WTD);

(iv) Company Secretary (CS);

Senior Management’ shall mean personnel of the company 
who are members of its core management team excluding 
the Board of Directors. This would also include all members 
of management one level below the executive directors 
including all functional heads.

OBJECTIVE & PURPOSE
The objective and purpose of this Policy are as follows:

(Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be 
appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial 
positions and to determine remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Other Employees.

remuneration prevailing in peer companies in the agro 
chemicals industry.

performance, dedication and achievement relating to the 
Company’s operations.

term sustainability of talented managerial persons and 
create competitive advantage.

Annexure - 4(b)
“NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION & BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY”

SCOPE OF THE POLICY
The policy shall be applicable to the following in the Company:

CONSTITUTION

Committee.

of non- executive directors, a majority of whom shall be 
independent directors. 

be designated by the Board to serve as the Committee’s 
Chairman.

S. 
No.

Name Designation

1 Mr. 
Jayaraman 
Swaminathan

Chairman Mr. Jayaraman Swaminathan, 
aged 70, holds a Master’s 
Degree in Science and a Diploma 
in Business Management. 
In addition he had done an 
advanced General Management 
course in MIT Sloan School 
USA. He joined Hoechst India 
in 1970 and held various 
positions. He rose to become 
a Director Member of Board 
.The responsibilities included 
manufacturing, QA, Safety in 
divisions of Agrochemicals, 
Pharmaceuticals (Pharma & 
Veterinary) and Vaccines. The 

took him to Head new areas of 
responsibility in Commercial, 
Purchase (Imports, Exports & 
Domestic),Supply Chain, SAP. 
The companies were Hoechst 
Schering Agrevo Ltd., Agrevo 
Ltd., Aventis Ltd., Bayer Crop 
Science Ltd. In 2004 he joined 
Hikal as Business Head, VP for 
their the Agrochemicals division. 
Here the areas of work involved 
were active, formulations and 
contract manufacturing from 
three different factory locations. 

work as Business Development 
Advisor for Domestic and 
International markets. Here the 
areas of work involved identifying 
new domestic and international 
customers for active, formulations 
and contract manufacturing for 
both pharma and veterinary 

work focussed on developing 
new long term sustainable 

term growth oriented business 
relationships. Such contracts 
were very well coordinated and 

manufacturing and supply chain. 
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S. 
No.

Name Designation

2 Mr. Virjesh 

Kumar Gupta

Member Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta, aged 

72 years, belongs to a business 

family of Delhi. After a graduate 

from Sri Ram College of Com-

merce (Delhi University), he has 

highly experienced professional 

with in depth understanding and 

hands on experience in diverse 

He has specialized in general 

management covering almost all 

aspects of day to day business 

activities. He is currently associ-

ated with various Educational and 

Charitable Societies.
3 Mr. Navin 

Shah

Member Mr. Navin Shah, aged 77 years, 

belongs to a business family of 

Delhi. He started his business 

career in plastic industries. 

Mr. Navin Shah has more 

than 48 years experience in 

manufacturing in PVC compound.

1. 

1.1 Letter of appointment shall be issued based on the 
recommendations of the Committee on the basis of 
the guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 
2013 or the Company Internal policy.

1.2 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 

appointment to the position of Directors, KMPs & 
Senior Management.

he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee 

the position.

1.4 The Committee shall determine the suitability of 
appointment of a person to the Board of Directors 

criteria’ of the candidate. The candidate shall, at the 
time of appointment, as well as at the time of renewal 

Committee to enable the Committee to determine the 

out is placed as Annexure 1 to this Policy.

1.5 The Company shall not appoint or continue the 
employment of any person as whole time director 
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided 
that the term of the person holding this position may 
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with 
the approval of shareholders by passing a special 
resolution based on the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 

seventy years.

1.6 The Committee shall ensure that there is an 
appropriate induction & training programme in place 
for new directors, members of senior management, 
and KMPs;

1.7 The Committee shall making recommendations to 
the Board concerning any matters relating to the 

including the suspension or termination of service of 
an executive director as an employee of the Company 
subject to the provision of the law and their service 
contract.

1.8 The Committee shall recommend any necessary 
changes to the Board.

2. Term / Tenure
2.1 Managing Director/Whole-time Director:
 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person 

as its Chairman & Managing Director, Executive 
Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for 

 No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term of the Director appointed.

2.2 Independent Director

be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report.

two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for re- appointment in the Company 
as Independent Director after the expiry of three years 
from the date of cessation as such in the Company. 
The Committee shall take into consideration all the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the relevant rules, as existing or as may be amended 
from time to time.

3. Removal

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 
under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the 
Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons 
recorded in writing, removal of a director, KMP or senior 
management personnel or functional heads, subject to the 
provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

4. Retirement

 The director, KMP, senior management & functional 
heads shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there 
under and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board 
will have the discretion to retain the Directors, KMPs & 
Senior Managements even after attaining the retirement 

5. Diversity on the Board of the Company

 The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the 

better and improved decision making. In order to ensure 
that the Company’s boardroom has appropriate balance 
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are 
imperative for the execution of its business strategy, the 
Company shall consider a number of factors, including but 
not limited to skills, industry experience, background, race 
and gender. 
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achieving diversity on its Board: 

remuneration of the directors will be based on their 
performance and competence; and

adopted and there shall be zero tolerance for unlawful 
discrimination and harassment of any sort whatsoever. 

 In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, 
non-executive and independent directors on the Board, the 
Company shall consider candidates from a wide variety of 
backgrounds, without discrimination based on the following 
factors:

 Gender - The Company shall not discriminate on 
the basis of gender in the matter of appointment of 
director on the Board. The Company encourages the 
appointment of women at senior executive levels to 
achieve a balanced representation on the Board. 

 Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013, age shall be no bar for appointment of an 
individual as director on the Board of the Company.

 Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote 
having a boardroom comprising of people from different 

contribute their thorough knowledge, sources and 

 Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate 
on the basis of any immaterial physical disability of a 
candidate for appointment on Company’s Board, if he/

 - The proposed candidate 
shall possess desired team building traits that 
effectively contribute to his/ her position in the 
Company. The Directors of the Company shall have 

that taken together, provide the Company with 
considerable experience in a range of activities 
including varied industries, education, government, 
banking, and investment. 

6. Remuneration

6.1 In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall 
have regard to the following Policy objectives:

 To ensure the Company’s remuneration structures 

interests of the Company and its shareholders;

 To attract and retain competent executives;

 To plan short and long-term incentives to retain 
talent;

 

6.2 The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to 
the whole-time director, KMP and senior management 
&other employees will be determined by the Committee 
and recommended to the Board for approval. 

6.3 The remuneration to be paid to the MD and/or 
whole-time director shall be in accordance with 
the percentage/ slabs/ conditions laid down in the 
Articles of Association of the Company and as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made there under.

6.4  Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation 
structure of the Senior Management excluding 
the Board of Directors comprising of members of 
Management one level below the Executive Director, 
including the Functional Heads will be decided by the 
Chairman & Managing Director.

6.5 Remuneration to Whole-time/ Managing Director, 
KMP, senior management;

6.5.1 Fixed pay

 The MD and/or whole-time director / KMP and 
senior management shall be eligible for a monthly 
remuneration as may be approved by the Board 
on the recommendation of the Committee 
and the shareholders wherever applicable. 

towards provident fund, pension scheme, medical 

be decided and approved by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee.

6.5.2 Minimum Remuneration

remuneration to its MD and/or Whole-time Director 
in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and if the Company is 
not able to comply with such provisions, previous 
approval of the Central Government shall be 

6.6 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent 
Director:

6.6.1 Remuneration : The remuneration / commission 

mentioned in the Articles of Association of the 
Company and with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 along with the rules made there under.

6.6.2 Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive/ Independent 
Director may receive remuneration by way of fees 
for attending meetings of Board or Committee 
thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees 
shall not exceed the limits prescribed under 
Companies Act 2013.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded as minutes and 

meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at 

DISCLOSURE OF THIS POLICY 

The policy shall be disclosed in the Annual report of the 

made there under and the Listing Agreement, as amended from 

time being in force. 

REVIEW

amendments to ensure it remains consistent with the Board’s 
objectives, current law and best practice.
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Annexure-1- Criteria for determination of the ‘Fit and Proper 
Criteria’.

Name of Company: Insecticides (India) Limited

Declaration and Undertaking

I. Personal details of the Candidate/ Director

a. Full name

b. Date of Birth

c.

d. Relevant Background and 
Experience

e. Permanent Address

f. Present Address

g. E-mail Address/ 
Telephone Number

h. Permanent Account 
Number under the Income 
Tax Act

i. Relevant knowledge and 
experience

j. Any other information 
relevant to Directorship of 
the Company.

II. Relevant Relationships of Candidate/ Director

a. List of Relatives if any 
who are connected with 
the Company (w.r.t. the 
Companies Act, 2013)

b. List of entities, if any, 
in which he/she is 
considered as being 
interested [ w.r.t. Section 
184 of the Companies 
Act, 2013]

c. Names of other 
Companies in which 
he/ she is or has been 
a member of the board 
during the last 3 years 
(giving details of period 

was held)

III. Records of professional achievements

a. Relevant Professional 
achievements

IV. Proceedings, if any, against the Candidate/ Director

a. If the person is a member of a 
professional association/ body, 
details of disciplinary action, if 
any, pending or commenced 
or resulting in conviction in the 
past against him/her or whether 
he/she has been banned from 
entry of at any profession/ 
occupation at any time.

b. Whether the person attracts 

envisaged under Section 164 
of the Companies Act 2013?

c. Whether the person in case 
of appointment as Executive 
Chairman, Managing Director, 
Whole-time Director attracts 

envisaged under Schedule V 
of Companies Act, 2013 ?

d. Whether the person at any time 
come to the adverse notice of a 
regulator such as SEBI, IRDA, 
MCA ?

V. Any other explanation/ information in regard to items 
I to III and other information considered relevant for 

Undertaking

knowledge and belief true and complete. I undertake to 
keep the Company fully informed, as soon as possible, of 

which are relevant to the information provided above.

to be executed by all directors of the Company.

Place:

Signature

Date:

VI. Remarks of Nomination Committee

Place: 

Signature

Date:
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A. Conservation of resources 

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 
Environmental sustainability is embedded in IIL Policy. As 
part of long term sustainability, your Company ensures 
that the products, packaging and operations are safe for 
employees, consumers and the environment. Your Company 
ensures this with a focus on technologies, processes and 
improvements that matter for the environment. At IIL, 
sustainability inspires and guides everything the Company 
does. Moreover, the Company gives highest priority to 
ensure environmental friendly practices at all factories and 

optimal water consumption, eliminating excess use of paper 
and using eco-friendly products.

 We continued our efforts on conservation of resources 

emission. 

 As in the past, the Company continued to stress upon 
measures for the conservation and optimal utilisation of 
energy in all the areas of operations. Within the Company 
there are continuous efforts towards improving operational 

and reducing water, energy & CO2 emissions while 
maximizing production volumes.

 During the year, Company has undertaken several Civil and 
Construction works in the Factories situated at Chopanki and 

eventually save the energy in long period of time. 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy: During the year under review, the 
Company carried out initial surveys and looked into various 
alternate sources of energy. The Company needs more 

sources of energy for the betterment of the Company.

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: 
During the year under review, the Company has not installed 

Company has policy to use the electronic devices which 
uses low electricity, replacement of devices which consumes 
less electricity.

B. Technology absorption

 The efforts made towards technology absorption: Technology 
is ever changing and employees of the Company are made aware 

workshops and discussions for optimum utilization of the available 
resources.

like product improvement, cost reduction, product development 
or import substitution. Product improvement and cost reduction is 

 In case of imported technology (imported during the last three 

Company has not imported any technology during last three 
years. However, the Company has spent on the research and 
development of various products.

 Research and Development (R&D) 

Your Company put emphasis on R&D and spends enormous 
amounts and efforts in R&D and in gaining industrial 
experiences. First of its kind Joint Venture with Japanese 
via OAT & IIL Laboratories Private Limited in the Year 2013 
and R&D Center at Chopanki and Dahej. It has therefore 
been possible for your Company to focus on introduction 
of new innovative products for the farmers and testing and 

continued to receive close attention. 

During the 
year under review the company has introduced several 

along with vision of the Prime Minister of India to doubling 
farmers incomes by 2022, company launched a revolutionary 

Athlete.

(iii) Future plan of action - Steps are continuously being taken for 
innovation and renovation of products including new product 
development, improvement of packaging and enhancement 

affordable prices to the consumers. The Company expected 
to introduce 5-6 new products during the FY 2019. 

 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

(`in Lacs)

Particulars Amount

Capital 0.40

Recurring 188.25

OAT & IIL Laborataries Private Limited 276.54

Total 465.19

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

 During the year under review company has applied for licenses 
in various countries to increase its export, these initiatives were 
taken to improve the exports; development of new export market 
for products and export plans.

the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms 

 (`in Lacs)

Particulars Amount

Foreign exchange earned 6021.23

Foreign exchange used 33469.54

For and on behalf of the Board
Insecticides (India) Limited 

 (Rajesh Aggarwal) (Hari Chand Aggarwal)
 Managing Director Chairman 
 DIN - 00576872 DIN - 00577015
Place : Delhi
Dated : May 28, 2019

Annexure - 6
Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 

st March, 2019
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Annexure - 7
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L65991DL1996PLC083909

2 Registration Date December 18, 1996

3 Name of the Company Insecticides (India) Limited

4 Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company/Limited by Shares

5
details

401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur Commercial Complex , Delhi – 110033
Tele Fax No.: 011-27679700-04
Email: investor@insecticidesindia.com

6 Whether listed company Yes

7 Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, If any. 

Alankit Assignments Limited
Alankit House, 1E/13, Jhandewalan Exten.,
Delhi – 110055
Tel. No : 011-42541234
Fax No : 011-42541967
Email – rta@alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S. 
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC 2008 Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company

1. Agro Chemicals Group: 202
Class: 2021

100 %

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. 
No.

Name and
Address of
the company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
shares
Held

Applicable 
Section

1 OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 
Limited

U73100DL2013FTC249117 Joint Venture 20% Section 2(6) 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i. Category-wise Share Holding

S. 
No
 

Category of 
Shareholders
 

No. of Shares Held at the begnning of the Year No. of Share held at the end of the Year % 
Change 
during 

the Year
 

DEMAT Physical Total % of total 
Shares

DEMAT Physical Total % of total 
Shares

A. Promoter          

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/HUF 13,954,500  -  13,954,500  67.52  13,954,500  -  13,954,500  67.52  - 

b) Central Government  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

c) State Government  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

d) Body Corporate  254,550  -  254,550  1.23  254,550  -  254,550  1.23  - 

e) Banks / FI  -   -  -  -   -  -  - 

f) Any other  -   -  -  -   -  -  - 

 Sub Total (A) (1) : - 14,209,050  -  14,209,050  68.75  14,209,050  -  14,209,050  68.75  - 

(2) Foreign    -  -    -  -  - 

a) NRIs Individuals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

b) Other Individuals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

c) Body corporates  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

d) Bank/ FI  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
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S. 
No
 

Category of 
Shareholders
 

No. of Shares Held at the begnning of the Year No. of Share held at the end of the Year % 
Change 
during 

the Year
 

DEMAT Physical Total % of total 
Shares

DEMAT Physical Total % of total 
Shares

e) Any other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 Sub Total (A) (2): -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 Total ShareHolding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

 
14,209,050 

 -  14,209,050  68.75  14,209,050  -  14,209,050  68.75  - 

B. Public Share 
Holding

   -  -    -  -  - 

(1) Institutions    -  -    -  -  - 

a) Mutual Funds  1,248,346  -  1,248,346  6.04  1,842,997  -  1,842,997  8.92  2.88 

b) Banks/FI  1,014,589  -  1,014,589  4.91  988,349  -  988,349  4.78  (0.13)

c) Central Government  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

d) State Government  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

e) Venture Capital 
Funds

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

f) Insurance Companies  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

g) FIIs  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  - 

h) Foreign Portfolio 
Investors

 578,168  -  578,168  2.80  756,410  -  756,410  3.66  0.86 

i) Other (Specify)  38,950  -  38,950  0.19  219,667  -  219,667  1.06  0.87 

 Sub Total (B)(1)  2,880,053  -  2,880,053  13.93  3,807,423  -  3,807,423  18.42  4.49 

(2) Non Institutions    -  -    -  -  - 

a) Bodies Corp.          

(i) Indian  1,367,029  -  1,367,029  6.61  505,415   505,415  2.45  (4.17)

(ii) Overseas  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Individuals    -  -    -  -  - 

(i) Individual 
Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

 1,504,375  341  1,504,716  7.28  1,489,581  109  1,489,690  7.21  (0.07)

(ii) Individual 
Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
exceeds of Rs. 1 lakh

 368,899  -  368,899  1.78  358,905  -  358,905  1.74  (0.05)

(c ) Others          

(i) NBFC Registered 
with RBI

 40,456  -  40,456  0.20  29,135   29,135  0.14  (0.05)

(ii) Other (NRI)  79,373  -  79,373  0.38  81,762  -  81,762  0.40  0.01 

(iii) Other (Trust)  44,992  -  44,992  0.22  2,778  -  2,778  0.01  (0.20)

(iv) Others (Resident 
HUF)

 160,608  -  160,608  0.78  164,792  -  164,792  0.80  0.02 

(v) Other (Clearing 
Member)

 12,620  -  12,620  0.06  18,846  -  18,846  0.09  0.03 

 Sub-Total (B) (2)  3,578,352  341  3,578,693  17.32  2,651,214  109  2,651,323  12.83  (4.49)

 Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

 6,458,405  341  6,458,746  31.25  6,458,637  109  6,458,746  31.25  - 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

20,667,455  341  20,667,796  100.00  20,667,687  109  20,667,796  100.00  - 
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

S. 
No

Shareholders Name
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Shareholding at the end of the Year % Change in 
Shareholding 

during the 
YearNo. of 

Shares
% of total 

Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pleged / 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pleged / 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

1 H C AGGARWAL HUF .  1,494,000  7.23  -  1,494,000  7.23  -  - 

2 HARI CHAND AGGARWAL .  923,400  4.47  -  923,400  4.47  -  - 

3 RAJESH AGGARWAL .  5,292,900  25.61  -  5,292,900  25.61  -  - 

4 PUSHPA AGGARWAL .  2,151,900  10.41  -  2,151,900  10.41  -  - 

5 RAJESH AGGARWAL HUF .  1,953,000  9.45  -  1,953,000  9.45  -  - 

6 NIKUNJ AGGARWAL .  1,125,000  5.44  -  1,125,000  5.44  -  - 

7 KRITIKA AGGARWAL  112,500  0.54  -  112,500  0.54  -  - 

8 SANSKAR AGGARWAL  901,800  4.36  -  901,800  4.36  -  - 

9 ISEC ORGANICS LIMITED  254,550  1.23  -  254,550  1.23  -  - 

 Total 14,209,050  68.75  -  14,209,050  68.75  -  - 

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): There is no change in Promoters 

Shareholding during the Year

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
ShareCapital 

of the 
Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
ShareCapital 

of the 
Company

 at the beginning of the year  14,209,050  68.75  14,209,050  68.75 

 Date wise increase / Decrease in promoters Share 
holding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (eg allotment / transfer / bonus 

 -  -  -  - 

 At the end of the Year  14,209,050  68.75  14,209,050  68.75 

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

 Sl. 
No. 

 Name of the top 10 shareholders  Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

 Shareholding at the end of 
the year 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares of the 

company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares of the 

company 

1  HDFC Small & Midcap Fund  658,187  3.18  1,466,580  7.10 

2  Life Insurance Corporation of India  972,482  4.71  972,482  4.71 

3  India Insight Value Fund  -  -  222,000  1.07 

4  Fidelity Northstar Fund  193,380  0.94  200,000  0.97 

5  HDFC Trustee Company Ltd A/c HDFC Hybrid  -  -  178,581  0.86 

6 BNP Paribus MID CAP Fund  140,115  0.68  162,115  0.78 

7 Mayank Singhal  -  -  84,000  0.41 

8  -  -  78,450  0.38 

9 VEC India Special Situtation Master Fund Ltd  -  -  64,900  0.31 

10  -  -  64,110  0.31 
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 Sl. 
No. 

 Name of the top 10 shareholders  Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

 Shareholding at the end of 
the year 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares of the 

company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares of the 

company 

11 Sundaram Mutual Fund A/c Sundaram Rural 
India Fund

 210,000  1.02  -  - 

12  HDFC Trustee Company Limited A/c HDFC 
Balanced Fund 

 178,581  0.86  -  - 

13  TATA AIA Life Insurance Co Ltd  143,938  0.70  -  - 

14  SBI Life Insurance Co Ltd  143,667  0.70  30,925  0.15 

15 Zealous Financial Services Private Limited  126,000  0.61  43,500  0.21 

16 Vinod Infotech Private Limited  93,488  0.45  1,900  0.01 

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Directors and 
KMP

Director 

No. (DIN)

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
yearNo, of 

Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

No, of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

 Directors

1 Hari Chand Aggarwal 00577015  923,400  4.47  923,400 4.47 -

2 Rajesh Aggarwal 00576872 5,292,900  25.61  5,292,900 25.61 -

3 Nikunj Aggarwal 06569091 1,125,000  5.44  1,125,000 5.44 -

 Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

1 Sandeep Kumar (CS)*   - -  -  - -

2 Sandeep Aggarwal (CFO)   - -  -  - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(` in Lacs)

 Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

year
    

i) Principal Amount 11435.7  -  - 11435.7

ii) Interest due but not paid -  -  -  - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 21.78  -  - 21.78

Total (i+ii+iii) 11457.48  -  - 11457.48

    

· Addition 19165.43  -  - 19165.43

· Reduction  -  -  -  - 

Net Change     

    

i) Principal Amount 30520.44  -  - 30520.44

ii) Interest due but not paid -  -  -  - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 102.47  -  - 102.47

Total (i+ii+iii) 30622.91  -  - 30622.91
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of the Remuneration Hari Chand 
Aggarwal

Rajesh 
Aggarwal

Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Total 
Amount

1 Gross Salary     

 (a) Salary as per the provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 107.33  95.26  42.53  245.12 

 0.40  0.40  0.40  1.20 

Act, 1961
 -  -  -  - 

2 Stock Option  -  -  -  - 

3  -  -  -  - 

4 Commission     

 364.97  376.85  -  741.82 

 - others, specify  -  -  -  - 

5 Others (Company’s contribution to PF)  6.48  5.75  2.44  14.67 

 Total (A)  479.18  478.26  45.37 1002.81

 Ceiling as per the Act
Company calculated as per Section 198 
of the Companies Act, 2013

1224.07

B. Remuneration/ Sitting fee to other directors:
(` in Lacs)

SI. 
No

Particulars of Remuneration Fee for 
attending Board 

/ Committee 
Meetings

Commission Other, please 
Specify

Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors     

 Mr. Navin Shah  1.00  -  -  1.00 

 Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta  1.25  -  -  1.25 

 Mr. Vinod Kumar Mittal  1.25  -  -  1.25 

 Mr. S. Jayaraman  1.50  -  -  1.50 

 Total (1)  5.00  -  -  5.00 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors     

   -  -  -  - 

 Total (2)  -  -  -  - 

 Total (B) = (1+2)  5.00  -  -  5.00 

 Total Managerial Remuneration     

 
calculated under Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013)

    

^Total remuneration to chairman and Managing Director, Whole-time directors and other Directors (Being the total of A and B)
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C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

(` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of the Remuneration Sandeep Kumar 
CS

Sandeep 
Aggarwal CFO

Total

1 Gross Salary    

 
 

(a) Salary as per the provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

8.16 30.56 38.72

 0 0.22 0.22

 
1961

0 0 0

2 Stock Option 0 0 0

3 0 0 0

4 Commission 0 0 0

 0 0 0

  - others, specify 0 0 0

5 Others    

 - Arrear Salary 0 0 0

 - Company’s Contribution to PF 0.46 1.74 2.2

 Total 8.62 32.52 41.14

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies 

Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD / 
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

 N.APunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty
N.A

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

N.APunishment

Compounding
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I. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

 Insecticides (India) Limited philosophy on Corporate 
Governance revolves around fair and transparent 
governance and disclosure practices in line with the 
principles of Good Corporate Governance. This philosophy 
is backed by principles of Concern, Commitment, Ethics, 
Excellence and Learning in all its acts and relationships 
with Stakeholders, Clients, Associates and Community 
at large. Company respects the inalienable rights of 
the shareholders to information on the performance 
of Company. The Company’s Corporate governance 
policies ensures, among others, the accountability of the 
Board of Directors and the importance of its decisions to 
all its participants viz. Employees, Investors, Customers, 
Regulators etc. The Company believes that good Corporate 
Governance is a continuous process and strives to improve 
the Corporate Governance practices to meet Shareholder’s 
expectations.

II. Board Of Directors

i. Insecticides India recognises and embraces the 
importance of diverse, well informed Board to 
ensure high standards of Corporate Governance. 
At Insecticides India the Board is at the core of 
our Corporate Governance practice.  The Board 
of Directors, along with its Committees, play a 
fundamental role in upholding and nurturing the 
principles of good governance in the Company. In 

management and leadership experience for the given 
task, members of the Board cover the broadest possible 
spectrum of knowledge, experience, educational 
and professional backgrounds. The Board sets the 
overall corporate objectives and provides necessary 
guidance and independence to the Management. 

which enables it to discharge its responsibilities and 
duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company 
thereby enhancing stakeholder value. The Board 

Management and Strategy, Business Leadership, 
Human Resources and Industrial Relations, Purchase 
and Supply Chain, Research and Development, 
Finance and Taxation, CSR, Sustainability matters, 
Audit and Risk Management, understanding of  

strong interpersonal skills and willingness to address 
issues proactively. The Board of Directors have 

competencies. 

ii As on March 31, 2019, the Company has Seven 
Directors. Out of Seven Directors, Four (i.e. 57.14%) 

be found on (http://www.insecticidesindia.com/board.
html). The composition of the Board is in conformity 

with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

(SEBI ‘Listing Regulations’) read with Section 149 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

iii. None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships 
in other Listed Company and in more than ten public 
companies. Further, none of them is a member of more 

committees across all the public companies in which 
he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding 
Committee positions in other public companies as on 
March 31, 2019 have been made by the Directors. 
None of the Directors are related to each other except 
Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal, Shri Rajesh Aggarwal and 
Smt.NikunjAggarwal.

iv None of the Directors on the board of the Insecticides 

from being appointed  or continue as director of the 
Companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

same has been received from the Company secretary 
in Practice.

v. Independent Directors are non-executive directors 

Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the 
Act. The maximum tenure of Independent Directors 
is in compliance with the Act. All the Independent 

independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)
(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 
149(6) of the Act. Based on the disclosure received 
from the independent directors and also in the 

the Listing regulations and are independent of the 
management. 

vi. Four Board Meetings were held during the year and 
the gap between two meetings did not exceed one 
hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the said 
meetings were held:

 May 28, 2018; August 09, 2018; November 12, 2018 
and February 04, 2019.

meetings.

vii. The names and categories of the Directors on the 
Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during 
the year and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
and the number of Directorships and Committee 
Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other 
public limited companies as on March 31, 2019, are 
given herein below. For reckoning the limit of the Board 
Committees, chairpersonship and membership, Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
has only been considered under Regulation 26(1) (b) 
of SEBI Listing Regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



59INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

Name of the Director & DIN Category Number of board
meetings attended

during the year

Whether
attended 

last
AGM 

Number of
Directorships 

in other 
Companies

Number of
Committee positions

held in other 
Companies

Share
holding 
(No. of 
Share)

Chairman Member

Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal
(DIN:00577015)

Chairman cum 
Whole Time Director

4 Yes - - - 923400

Shri Rajesh Aggarwal
(DIN:00576872)

Managing Director 4 Yes 3 - - 5292900

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal
(DIN:06569091)

Whole time Director 4 Yes - - - 1125000

Shri Navin Shah
(DIN:02701860)

Independent Director 3 No 2 - - -

Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta
(DIN:06382540)

Independent Director 4 Yes - - - -

Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal
(DIN:07421742)

Independent Director 4 Yes - - - -

Shri S. Jayaraman
(DIN:02634470) 

Independent Director 3 Yes - - - -

viii. During the year 2018-19, information as mentioned in 
Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
has been placed before the Board for its consideration.

ix. The terms and conditions of appointment of the 
Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of 
the Company (http://www.insecticidesindia.com). 

x. During the year 2018-19, one meeting of the 
Independent Directors were held on May 28, 2018. 
The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the 
performance of non-independent directors, and the 
Board as a whole.

xi. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports 
of all laws applicable to the Company.

xii. The details of the familiarization programme of the 
Independent Directors are available on the website 
of the Company (http://www.insecticidesindia.com/
FamiliarizationIDS.htm).

III. Committee of the Board

 The Board Committees play a crucial role in the 
governance structure of the Company and have been 

concern the Company and need a closer review. The 
Board Committees are set up under the formal approval 

considered to be performed by members of the Board, as 
a part of good governance practice. The Board supervises 
the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and 
is responsible for their action. The Minutes of the meetings 
of all the Committees are placed before the Board for 
review. 

statutory and non-statutory Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Finance Committee

1. Audit Committee

 The power, role and terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee covers the areas as contemplated under Section 
177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations, as 
applicable, besides other terms as referred by the Board of 
Directors.

 During the year under review, Four (4) Audit Committee 
Meetings were held on May 28, 2018; August 09, 2018; 
November 12, 2018 and February 04, 2019. The maximum 
time-gap between any two consecutive meetings did not 
exceed 120 days.

 The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance 
of members at the meetings of the Audit Committee held 
during the period are as follows-:

Name of the 
Director

Category Numbers of 
meetings 
attended

Shri Vinod Kumar 
Mittal

Independent Director 
- Chairman

4

Shri S. Jayaraman Independent Director 
- Member

3

Shri Virjesh Kumar 
Gupta

Independent Director 
- Member

4

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee.

 Terms of Reference

b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by them.

statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular 
reference to.

 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s Report.

 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same.
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 Compliance with listing and other legal 

 Disclosure of any related party transactions

 

statements before submission to board for approval.

f) Reviewing with the management the statement of 
uses/application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilised for purposes other than 
those stated in offer document/ prospectus/ notice and 
report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 
the utilisation of proceed of a public or right issue and 
making appropriate recommendations to the Board to 
take up steps in this matter.

g) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

h) Approval of the related party transactions as per 
policy of the Company, including granting of omnibus 
approval for related party transactions 

i) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

auditor’s report thereon; 

k) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary 

management systems. Establish a vigil mechanism for 
directors and employees to report genuine concerns in 
such manner as may be prescribed.

m) Reviewing with the management, performance of 

internal control systems.

by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the board.

commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern.

r) To review the functioning of the Vigil mechanism.

condition and results of operations.

t) The audit committee shall review the information 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 
constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 19 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

 During the year, 4 (Four) Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee Meetings were held on May 28, 2018; August 
09, 2018; November 12, 2018 and February 04, 2019. 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and attendance of members at the meetings of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during 
the period are as follows-:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Shri S. Jayaraman Independent Director 
- Chairman

3

Shri Virjesh Kumar 
Gupta

Independent Director 
- Member

4

Shri Navin Shah Independent Director 
- Member

3

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Terms of Reference

Directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and to carry out evaluation of every Directors’ 
performance.

positive attributes and independence of the Director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to 
the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees.

c) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of 
independent directors and the board of directors;

d) Devising a policy on diversity of board of director

e) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment 
of the independent director, on the basis of the report 
of performance evaluation of independent directors

f) Determine/ review on behalf of Board of Directors of 
the Company the compensation package, service 
agreements and other employment conditions for 
Managing/Whole Time Director(s). 

g) Determine on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

incentives on the basis of performance of the Key 
Managerial Personnel.

h)  Formulate, amend and administer stock options plans 
and grant stock options to Managing / Whole Time 
Director(s) and employees of the Company. 

i) Delegate any of its power/ function as the Committee 
deems appropriate to Senior Management of the 
Company.

j) Consider other matters, as from time to time be 
referred to it by the Board.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent 
Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 (3)(p) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation SEBI (Listing 

2015, the Nomination & Remuneration committee carried 
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out the annual performance evaluation of its Directors 
individually including the Chairman, and the Board 
accordingly evaluated the overall effectiveness of the Board 
of Directors, including its committees based on the ratings 
given by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Company.

into consideration inputs received from the Directors, 
covering various aspects of the Board’ functioning such 
as Knowledge to perform the role; Time and level of 
participation; Performance of duties and level of oversight; 
and Professional conduct and independence.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors 
was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent 
Directors was also carried out by the Independent Directors. 

The Directors expressed their satisfaction to the above.

Details of the Remuneration for the year ended March 
31, 2019:

a. Non-Executive Directors:
(`in Lacs)

Name Sitting Fees (Rs.)

Shri Navin Shah 1.00 

Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta  1.25 

Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal  1.25 

Shri S. Jayaraman  1.50 

b. Chairman, Managing Director and Executive Director
(`in Lacs)

Name Shri Hari 
Chand 

Aggarwal

Shri 
Rajesh 

Aggarwal

Smt. 
Nikunj 

Aggarwal

Designation Chairman 
and 

Whole-time 
Director

Managing 
Director

Whole-time 
Director

Salary & Allowances 101.93 90.65 40.68

Bonus/Performance 
Incentive 

370.36 381.65 2.03

0.40 0.40 0.40

Companies 
Contribution to PF
Stock options

6.48 5.76 2.44

Tenure 5 years 3 years 5 years

Notice Period & 
Severance Pay

Three 
Months

Three 
Months

Three 
Months

Performance Criteria As per 
Agreement

As per 
Agreement

As per 
Agreement

Note: 
gratuity and premium paid for Group Health Insurance as 
separate actuarial valuation/premium paid is not available.

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted 
in line with the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

 During the year, 5 (Five) Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee Meetings were held as on May 28, 2018; August 

09, 2018; October 04, 2018; November 12, 2018 and 

for all the meetings.The composition of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee meeting and number of 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings attended 
by the Members during the year is given below:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Shri Virjesh Kumar 
Gupta

Independent Director 
- Chairman

5

Shri Navin Shah Independent Director 
- Member

4

Shri Vinod Kumar 
Mittal

Independent Director 
- Member

5

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

Terms of Reference

a) To consider and resolve the grievances of Security 
holders of the Company.

b) To approve applications for transfer, transmission, 
transposition of shares and mutation of share 

deal with all related matters.

c) To look into and redress the Shareholders / investors 
grievances relating to: 

i. Transfer of shares;

ii. Non-receipt of dividends;

iii. Non-receipt of annual reports; and

iv. Any other complaint concerning the Shareholders 
/ investors

d) The Committee will oversee the performance of the 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

time, by any statutory or regulatory authority to be 
attended by the Committee;

f) Consider other matters, as from time to time be 
referred to it by the Board

 Details of No. of Shareholder’s complaint received, 
No. of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of 
shareholders and No. of pending complaints

Sl. 
No.

Nature of 
Complaints

Received Resolved Pending

1 Non-receipt of 
Dividend Warrants 
and Dividend Draft 
Revalidation in 
respect of Shares

One One Nil

2 Non- receipt of 
Annual Report

Seven Seven Nil

3 Other Three Three Nil

Total Eleven Eleven Nil 

 Shri Sandeep Kumar, 

Company 
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4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee is 
constituted in line with the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Act.

 During the year, 4 (Four) meetings of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee were held on May 
28, 2018; August 09, 2018, November 12, 2018 and 

for all the meetings.The composition of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee meeting and number of Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee meetings attended by the 
Members during the year is given below:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Meetings 
attended

Hari Chand Aggarwal Executive Director - 
Chairman

3

Rajesh Aggarwal Executive Director - 
Member

4

Virjesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director 
- Member

4

 The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the 
Committee.

B. Terms of Reference

 The Terms of reference of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee include:

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the 
activity to activities to be undertaken by the Company 
as per the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the activities related to CSR; and

c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
of the Company from time to time.

5. Finance Committee

 The Board of Directors had re-constituted the Finance 

Committee, during the year, 8 (Eight) Finance Committee 
Meetings were held as on May 14, 2018; May 28, 2018; 
August 09, 2018; August 27, 2018; September 17, 2018; 
October 03, 2018; November 12, 2018 and February 04, 
2019. 

The composition of the Finance Committee and number 
of Finance Committee meetings attended by the Members 
during the year are given below:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Shri Hari Chand 
Aggarwal

Executive Director - 
Chairman

8

Shri Rajesh 
Aggarwal

Executive Director - 
Member

8

Smt. Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Executive Director - 
Member

8

Shri Sandeep 
Aggarwal

Chief Financial 8

 The Company Secretary acted as the secretary to the 
Committee.

 Terms of Reference

a) To Overview the day to day working of the Company;

c) Review of banking arrangement and taking all 
necessary actions connected therewith including 

to overall limit of borrowing);

d) Investment of the funds of the Company (subject to 
compliance of all applicable provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013);

e) Review, consider and advice to the board any other 
matter related to the Finance and management of the 
Company;

f) To negotiate with the banks in regard reduction of rate 
of interest, open new account and closure of accounts;

charge on assets of the company, hypothecation on 
movable and immovable assets of the Company;

any other person in relation to representation before 

bodies, banks and any other authorities as may be 

i) Overview and take actions on the works of urgent 
matters;

members;

k) Any other matter to execute the foregoing.

l) The Finance Committee shall not take any policy 
related decisions of the Company.

 The Managing Director and CFO of the Company have 

March 31, 2019.

V. General Body Meetings

a) Annual General Meetings

Financial 
Year

Date Time Venue

2015-2016 September 
21, 2016

11:30 A.M. M.P.C.U. 
Shah 

Auditorium, 
Civil Lines, 

Delhi – 
110054

2016-2017 August 08, 
2017

04:30 P.M.

2017-2018 August 08, 
2018

12:30 P.M

b) Special Resolution(s)

i. Four Special Resolution were passed by the 
shareholders at the 21st Annual General Meeting 
held on August 08, 2018 of the company. 1) 
Approved the Cost Auditor’s remuneration for the 
Financial Year 2018-2019. 2). Re-appointed Shri 
Hari Chand Aggarwal as a Chairman and whole-
time director for a period of 5 years w.e.f. October 
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01, 2017. 3) Re-appointment of Smt. Nikunj 
Aggarwal as whole-time director of the Company, 

4) Approved the revision in remuneration of 
Shri Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director of the 
Company.

ii. One Special Resolution were passed by the 
shareholders at the 20th Annual General Meeting 
held on August 08, 2017 of the company i.e. Re-
appointment of Rajesh Aggarwal as Managing 
Director of the Company for the term of 3 years 
from November 15, 2016 to November 14, 2019.

iii. Three Special Resolutions were passed by the 
shareholders at the 19th Annual General Meeting 
held on September 21, 2016 of the Company. 
1). Approved the Increase of the remuneration 
of Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal as Chairman cum 
Whole-time Director 2). Approved the increase of 
the remuneration of Shri Rajesh Aggarwal as a 
Managing Director 3). Approved the Increase of 
the Remuneration of Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal as a 
Whole-time Director. 

c) No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during 
Financial Year 2018-2019

d) Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot

  During the year under review, no special resolution 
has been passed through the exercise of postal ballot.

VI. Other Disclosures

a) Subsidiary Companies

 During the year under review, the Company does not 
have any subsidiary company. Therefore, there is no 

unlisted company by Audit Committee. 

b) Risk Management

 The Company has laid down procedures to inform the 
Board of Directors about the Risk Management and 
its minimization procedures. The Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors review these procedures 
periodically.

c) Code of Conduct

 The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct 
for all Board Members and Senior Management of 
the Company. The copies of Code of Conduct as 
applicable to the Executive Directors (including Senior 
Management of the Company) and Independent have 
been sent to all the Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel. The Code of Conduct is available on the 
Company’s website www.insecticidesindia.com and 
copy of the Code of Conduct can be inspected at the 

hours. 

 All the members of the Board of Directors and Senior 

with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them during 
the year ended March 31, 2019. The Annual Report of 
the Company contains declaration duly signed by the 
Managing Director.

d) Relationship among the Directors

Sl. 
No

Name of the 
Directors

Relationship with other 
Disclosures

1 Shri Hari Chand 
Aggarwal

Father of Shri Rajesh 
Aggarwal and father-in-law of 
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal

2 Shri Rajesh 
Aggarwal

Son of Shri Hari Chand 
Aggarwal and Spouse of Smt. 
Nikunj Aggarwal

3 Smt. Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Daughter-in-law of Shri Hari 
Chand Aggarwal and Spouse 
of Shri Rajesh Aggarwal 

e) Compliance

 The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, 
notes on agenda, minutes, etc. of the meeting(s), is 

to all the applicable laws and regulations including 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued 
thereunder. 

 During the year, the Board periodically reviewed 
compliance reports with respect to the various laws 
applicable to the Company, as well as taken by the 
Company to rectify the instances of non-compliance, if 
any.

f) Disclosures

party transactions, i.e. the Company’s 
transactions that are of material nature, with 
its Promoters, Directors and the management, 
their relatives or subsidiaries, among others 

Company’s interests at large

 The details of related party transactions with 
the Company are given in Note No. 37 of the 
Notes to Accounts of the Company. Besides 
this, the Company has no material transaction 
with the related parties’ viz. promoters, directors 
of the Company, management, their relatives, 
subsidiaries of promoter Company etc. that may 

Company at large.

 The Audit Committee has set out the criteria for 
granting approval to related party transactions 
which are repetitive in nature for the period of 
one year i.e. 2018-19 under the category of 
Omnibus transaction pursuant to Regulation 23 
of LODR, 2015. The transactions as approved 
by the Audit Committee were entered at Arm’s 
Length Price and were in ordinary course of 
business of the Company. These transactions 
have been disclosed in the Notes to Accounts 
of the Company and policy is available at http://
www.insecticidesindia.com/Policy/RELATED%20
PARTY%20TRANSACTION%20FINAL.pdf

ii. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

 
Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements. 



64 INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

iii. Details of non-compliance by the Company, 
penalties and strictures imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any 
other statutory authority, on any matter related 
to capital markets during last three years.

 There has been no instance of non-compliance 
by the Company on any matter related to capital 
markets during last three years, and hence, no 
penalties or strictures have been imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 
other statutory authority.

iv. Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower)Policy

 The Company promotes ethical behaviour in 
all its business activities and has put in place 
a mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical 
behaviour. The Company has a whistle blower 
policy wherein the employees are free to 
report violations of laws, rules, regulations or 
unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor 

the management to the workgroups. The 

maintained and they are not subjected to any 
discriminatory practice. No personnel has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee. http://
www.insecticidesindia.com/Policy/VIGIL%20
MECHANISM%20(WHISTLE%20BLOWER)%20
POLICY%20_28.01.2015.pdf

v. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013

 The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, 
prohibition and Redressal of Sexual harassment 
at workplace and has duly constituted an Internal 
Complaints Committee in line with the provisions 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder.

the Company has received Nil Complaints on 
sexual harassment. Also no complaints have 
been resolved or are pending in respect of sexual 
harassment before the Company.

vi. Credit Rating
 The Company enjoys a good reputation for its 

 CRISIL, a S&P Global Company, a reputed 

CRISIL A/Stable for the long-term and CRISIL A1 
for the Short-term Bank facilities. 

vii. Adoption of Mandatory and Non- Mandatory 
Requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations

 The Company has complied with all the 

Listing Regulations. Further, the Company had 

mentioned in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

viii. Proceeds from Public Issue, Rights Issue, 
Preferential Issues, etc.

 The Company has not done any further issue of 
shares during the period under review.

its Statutory Auditors regarding compliance with 
the provisions relating to Corporate Governance 
laid down in SEBI Listing Regulations. This 

will be sent to the Stock Exchanges along with 

The disclosure of the compliance with Corporate 

17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (I) of Sub-regulation (2) 
of Regulation 46 shall be made in the Section on 
Corporate Governance of the Annual Report.

VII. Means of Communication

 
are published in leading newspaper in India which includes 
‘Business Standard (English) and ‘Business Standard 
(Hindi). The Results are also displayed on Companies 
website “www.insecticidesindia.com”. Press Releases made 
by the Company from time to time are also displayed on the 
Company’s website. Presentations made to the institutional 

half-yearly and annual results are also displayed on the 

other important investor related information are periodically 
displayed and updated on the company’s website. Also, 
the website of the Company contains a separate dedicated 
section ‘Investor Desk’ where shareholders’ information is 
available. The Company’s Annual Report is also available 
in a user-friendly and downloadable form. A Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is a part of the Company’s 
Annual Report. 

VIII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i. Annual General Meeting: 
Date : August 02, 2019
Time : 10:30 a.m.  
Venue  :  Shri Sathya Sai International
   Centre Pragati Vihar, Lodhi 
   Road, New Delhi – 110 003

Regulations, particulars of Director seeking re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given herein 
and in the Annexure to the Notice of the AGM held on 
Friday August 02, 2019. 

ii. Financial Calendar   
 Year ending : March 31
 AGM in : August 02, 2019
 Dividend Payment  : The Final dividend, if 
   declared, shall be paid with in
   Statutory period.
iii. Date of Book Closure/ : 27/07/2019 to 02/08/2019
 Record Date  (Both days Inclusive)
iv. Listing on Stock : BSE
 Exchanges  P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
   Mumbai – 400 001
   The National Stock Exchange 
   of India Ltd. (NSE)
   “Exchange Plaza”  
   BandraKurla Complex, 
   Bandra(E), 
   Mumbai – 400 051 
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   Annual listing fee for the year 
   2018-19, has been paid by the 
   Company to BSE and NSE. 
   Annual custodian charges of 
   Depository have also been paid 

   to NSDL and CDSL.

v. Stock Code / Symbol :  NSE - INSECTICID; 
   BSE - 532851 

vi. ISIN No. : INE 070I01018

vii. Corporate Number (CIN) of the 
Company :  L65991DL1996PLC083909

viii. Market Price data:
 

volume of shares traded at BSE and NSE for the 
period from 01st April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019 are 
given below:

Month BSE NSE

Month’s 
High 
Price 
(Rs.)

Month’s 
Low 
Price 
(Rs.)

Volume 
(in 

Nos.)

Month’s 
High 
Price 
(Rs.)

Month’s 
Low 
Price 
(Rs.)

Volume 
(in Nos.)

Apr-2018 770.00 690.00 43,274  773.90  688.70  6,09,429 

May-2018 800.95 716.00 44,657  799.00  711.45  5,97,386

Jun-2018 743.20 657.75 19,232  746.90  652.00  2,24,020 

Jul-2018 765.00 644.05 17,560  765.85  641.70  1,65,600 

Aug-2018 800.00 644.05 38,319  800.50  640.50  4,77,565 

Sep-2018 658.65 489.00 47,985  653.50  489.95  3,78,336 

Oct-2018 496.95 370.00 41,473 499.00  360.55  7,05,230 

Nov-2018 577.30 405.50 1,09,767  575.00  409.95  11,81,028 

Dec-2018 596.45 530.00 69,114 599.15 530.00 5,65,180

Jan-2019 657.00 565.20 1,10,612  658.00  565.35  6,40,991 

Feb-2019 646.00 580.55 43,577  648.00  580.00  7,48,845 

Mar-2019 684.00 610.00 33,104  680.10  609.30  2,95,948 

-Source: www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 

ix. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
 Alankit Assignments Limited 
 (Unit: Insecticides (India) Limited) 
 Alankit House 
 1E/13, Jhandewalan Extension, 
 New Delhi – 110 055 
 Tel No. (011) 4254 1234 
 Fax No. (011) 4254 1967 
 Email: rta@alankit.com

x. Share Transfer System 
  Shares lodged for transfer at the Registrar’s address 

and same are normally processed and approved by 
Company Secretary of the Company and the details of 
the same are noted in the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee.

xi. Shareholding as on March 31, 2019

31, 2019:

Number of 
Shares

Holding Percentage 
to Capital

Number of 
Accounts

Percentage 
to Total 

Accounts 

1 to 100 286406 1.39 9912 77.12

Number of 
Shares

Holding Percentage 
to Capital

Number of 
Accounts

Percentage 
to Total 

Accounts 

101 to 500 513869 2.49 2194 17.07

501 to 1000 280090 1.36 368 2.85

1001 to 5000 627368 3.03 282 2.19

5001 to 10000 241057 1.17 33 0.26

10001 to 20000  337780 1.63 24 0.19

20001 to 30000 217937 1.05 9 0.07

30001 to 40000 315279 1.52 9 0.07

40001 to 50000 93500 0.45 2 0.02

50001 to 100000 343702 1.67 5 0.04

100001 to 
500000

1129746 5.47 6 0.05

500001 to Above 16281062 78.77 9 0.07

Total 20667796 100.00 12853 100.00

31, 2019

Category No. of 
shares 

held

% of 
Share-

holding

Promoter and Promot-
er Group (A)

14209050 68.75

Public Shareholding

Mutual Funds 1842997 8.92

Alternate Investment 
Funds

219667 1.06

Banks / Financial Insti-
tutions

988349 4.78

Foreign Portfolio Inves-
tor (Corporate)

756410 3.66

Individuals 1848595 8.94

NBFC’s 29135 0.14

Any Other 0.00

 - Body Corporate 505415 2.45

 - Trust 2778 0.01

 - NRI 81762 0.40

 - Resident HUF 164792 0.80

 - Clearing Member 18846 0.09

Total Public Share-
holding (B)

6458746 31.25

Total Shareholding 
(A+B)

20667796 100.00

xii. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

 The shares of the Company fall under the category 
of compulsory delivery in dematerialized form by all 
categories of investors. The Company has signed 
agreements with both the Depositories i.e. National 
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services Limited.

 As on March 31, 2019, the number of shares held in 
dematerialized and physical mode is as under:
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Category No. of 
shares held

% of 
Share-

holding

Held in Dematerialized 
form in NSDL

1176631 5.69

Held in Dematerialized 
form in CDSL

19491056 94.31

Physical 109 0.00

Total 20667796 100.00

xiii. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

 M/s M.D. & Associates, Company Secretaries, carries 
out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as 
mandated by SEBI and report on the reconciliation of 
total issued and listed capital with that of total share 
capital admitted/ held in dematerialized form with 
NSDL and CDSL and those held in physical form. This 

thereof is submitted to the Stock Exchanges, where 
the Company’s shares are listed. 

xiv. Outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible 
Bonds, Conversion Date and likely impact on 
Equity

 The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / 
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

xv. Plant Locations

 Presently, your Company having 6 (Six) manufacturing 
units / Plants located at the following places:
1. E – 442, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki, 

(Bhiwadi) – 301 707 (Rajasthan)
2. E – 443-444, RIICO Industrial Area Chopanki, 

(Bhiwadi) – 301 707 (Rajasthan)
3. E-439-440, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki, 

(Bhiwadi) – 301 707 (Rajasthan)
4. SIDCO Industrial Growth Centre, Samba – 184 

121 (J&K) 
5. II D Centre, BattalBallian, Udhampur – 182 101 

(J&K)
6. CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej, Dist. 

Bharuch – 392 130 (Gujarat)

xvi. Address for Correspondence
 Investors and Shareholders can correspond with the 

following address: 

Insecticides (India) Limited 
401-402, Lusa Tower, 
Azadpur Commercial Complex, 
Delhi – 110 033 
Tel No. (011) 2767 1990 – 04 
Fax No. (011) 2767 1990 – 04 
Email – investor@insecticidesindia.com

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH 
THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director of Insecticides (India) Limited hereby declares that all the Board Members and Senior 

laid down for them.
(Rajesh Aggarwal)

Place: Delhi Managing Director 
Date: May 28, 2019 DIN: 00576872 

The Board of Directors
Insecticides (India) Limited, Delhi
Dear Members of the Board,

the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:
1. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of Insecticides (India) Limited for the year 

ended March 31, 2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading;
b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 

which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct;
3. 

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:
a) 
b) 

c) 

Place : Delhi  Rajesh Aggarwal Sandeep Aggarwal
Date : May 28, 2019   
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provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To 
The Members of 
Insecticides (India) Limited
401-402, Lusa Tower,
Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Delhi - 110033

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Insecticides (India) Limited (“the Company”), contains detail as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange 

the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

 Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

2. The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management 
of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

the Company.

4. 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the year ended 
March 31, 2019.

5. 

6. 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

8. 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

9. 

Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
    Firm Regn. No.013338N
        Chartered Accountants

  Devesh Parekh
   Proprietor
Place : Delhi  M. No. – 092160
Date : May 28, 2019 
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To,
The Members,
Insecticides (India) Limited
401-402, Lusa Tower, 

Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi 110 033

ending on March 31st 2019 for the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Insecticides (India) Limited (hereinafter called 
as the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 

by the Company, and also the information provided by the 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 

st March 2019, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 

provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made 
thereunder;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the Rules made thereunder; 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules 
and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings: 

a) Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue 
of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) 
Regulations, 2017 -No foreign direct investment had 

year 2018-19;

b) Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue 
of Any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2004 : The 
Company had not invested any funds outside India in 

2018-19;

c) Foreign Exchange Management (Borrowing or 
Lending) Regulations, 2018: The Company had not 
received any external commercial borrowings from 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March 2019

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the 
Company :

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Regulations, 2018;-The Company has not issued 

hence the mentioned regulation is not applicable 
to the Company;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

2014); - The Company has not come with any 

2019, hence the mentioned regulations are not 
applicable to the Company;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008; as the Company had not issued or listed 

March 31, 2019, thus the said regulations are not 
applicable to Company; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

share, thus the mentioned regulations does not 
applicable to the Company; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; as 
the Company has not bought back any securities 

hence the said regulations are not applicable to 
Company; 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements as entered into by the Company 
with the BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of 

Regulations, 2015.
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Further, as informed to us by management of the Company 

company” are as follows:

a) The Insecticides Act, 1968 & the Insecticides Rules, 1971 
read with the Insecticide (Amendment) Rules, 2015

b) The Insecticides (Price, Stock, Display and Submission of 
Reports) Orders, 1968

c) The Fertilizers (Control) Order 1985

The management of the Company has represented and 

above and based upon such representation and our random 
test checks, I also state that Company has generally complied 

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. as applicable and mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance or with shorter 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and views are captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes while no member of 
board has dissented to any proposed resolutions in board 
meetings.

Further, I also relied upon the reports given by auditors/

provided by the internal management of the Company for 
compliances of various applicable laws on the Company.

I further report that
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, there were no 

rules, regulations, guidelines, etc having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs. 

M/s Akash Gupta & Associates
Practising Company Secretary 
Membership No. 30099  

Date: 27.05.2019
Place: Delhi 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is 
annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure A
To,
The Members,
Insecticides (India) Limited
401-402, Lusa Tower, 
Azadpur Commericial Complex, Delhi 110033

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 
opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 

in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. 

4. 
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

6. 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

M/s Akash Gupta & Associates
Practising Company Secretary 
Membership No. 30099  

Date: 27.05.2019
Place: Delhi
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I have examined:

(a) All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Insecticides (India) Limited (“the listed 
entity”), 

(c) Website of the listed entity, 

For the year ended March 31, 2019 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; 
and

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines 
issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018: as the Company has not bought back any 

mentioned regulations are not applicable to the Company;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 : As the Company had not 

Company; 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) 
Regulations, 2013: As the Company had not issued or listed Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares during the 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(i) Other regulations as applicable; 

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

and based on the above examination, I/We hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder in so far as it appears from my/our examination of those records.

(c) There were no actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars)under the aforesaid 
Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.

(d) The reporting of actions by the listed entity to comply with the observations made in previous reports does not arise during the 
review period.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2019 Akash Gupta
(Prop.) 
M. No. 30099
CP No. 11038 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
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To the Members of Insecticides (India) Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

statements of Insecticides (India)Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the 

policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the 

Basis for Opinion 

under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

Accuracy of recognition, 
measurement, presentation 
and disclosures of revenue 
in view of adoption of Ind 
AS-115 “revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” 
in place of Ind AS-18 
“Revenue” 

Principal Audit Procedures
We performed process 
walkthrough to understand 

design of the revenue 
cycle. We tested internal 
controls in the revenue 
and trade receivables over 
the accuracy and timing of 
revenue accounted in the 

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

The Company recognizes 
revenue at the point in 
time when control of the 
goods is transferred to the 
customer at an amount that 

to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods 
or services. In determining 
the transaction price for 
the sale, the Company 
considers the effects of 
variable consideration and 
consideration receivable from 
the customer.
For the year ended March 
31, 2019, the Company’s 

Loss included Sales of 
Rs. 1,19,194.54 Lakhs. 
The nature of rebates, 
discounts and sales returns, 
if any, involve judgment in 
determining sales revenues 
and revenue cut-off. The risk 
is, therefore, that revenue 
may not be recognized in the 
correct period.
 Refer to Accounting policies 
Note 2.2 (b) and Note No. 20 
of the standalone Financial 
Statements.

Understanding the policies 
and procedures applied to 
revenue recognition, as 
well as compliance thereof, 
including an analysis 
of the effectiveness of 
controls related to revenue 
recognition processes 
employed by the Company.

We reviewed the revenue 
recognition policy applied 
by the Company to ensure 
its compliance with Ind-AS 

We performed a detailed 
testing on transactions, 
ensuring revenues were 
recognized in the correct 
accounting period. We 
also tested journal entries 
recognized in revenue 
focusing on unusual or 
irregular transactions. 

We validated the 
appropriateness and 
completeness of the 
related disclosures in Note 
No. 20 of the Standalone 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon. 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 

alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone Financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. 
2016(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. 
audit, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account. 

d) 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act. 

f) 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report 

and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 

ii. 
under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Firm’s Registration
Number: 013338N  Number: 000756N

Devesh Parekh  Harish Gupta
Partner  Partner
Membership Number: 092160 Membership Number: 098336

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2019

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Insecticides (India)Limited of even date) 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing 

manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature 

information and explanations given to us, no material 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
are held in the name of the Company. 

ii. We have been explained by the management that the 
inventory (except stock lying with the third parties and in 

inventory followed by the management are reasonable 
in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its 
business. According to information and explanations given 
to us, the material discrepancies, if any, noticed on such 

records were properly dealt within the books of accounts.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of paragraph iii (a) to (c) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

iv. According to the information, explanations and 
representations given to us and based upon audit 
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Act.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained 
by the Company pursuant to the rules made by Central 
Government for the maintenance of the cost records under 
section 148(1) of the Act in respect to the Company’s 
products to which said rules are made applicable and are 
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have 
been made and maintained. We have however not made 
a detailed examination of the said records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has generally been regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 
tax, goods and service tax, custom duty, cess and 
any other material statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities to the extent applicable and further there 
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were no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period 
of more than six months from the date they become 
payable as at March 31, 2019.

(b) According to the records and information and 
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect 

of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of excise, duty of custom and value added 
tax that have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute except as given below:

S. 
No.

Name of the Statute Nature of 
Dues

Period to 
which it 
relates

Forum where dispute is pending  Gross 
Liability

 (A)

Amount 
Deposited 

under protest
(B)

Net Amount* 
(Rs. In Lacs)

 (A-B)

1 Gujarat Stamp Act, 
1958

Stamp Duty 2013-14 Commissioner of Revenue 
Department, Tehsil Vagra, District 
Bharuch

89.60 19.60 70.00

2 Gujarat Value Added 
Tax Act, 2003

VAT & CST 2011-12 & 
2012-13

Joint Commissioner of commercial 
Tax, Baroda

268.27 85.28 182.99

3 Andhra Pradesh VAT 
Act, 2005

VAT 2014-15 APVAT Appellate Tribunal, 
Visakhapatnam.

122.08 61.04 61.04

4 MP VAT Act, 2002 CST 2012-13 Assistant Commissioner , VAT, 
Indore

1.52 0.15 1.37

5 Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 2015-16 Central Excise & Service Tax Audit 
Commissionerate, Jaipur

352.10 17.60 334.50

6 Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 2015-16, 
2016-17 & 
2017-18

Central Excise Audit 
Commissionerate,
Jaipur

294.37 11.04 283.33

7 Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 2012-13 &
2013-14

Central Excise Audit 
Commissionerate,
Jammu

360.56 9.01 351.55

8 Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 2012-13 &
2013-14

Central Excise Audit 
Commissionerate,
Jammu

135.14 5.07 130.07

viii. In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or 
borrowing to any bank.

 The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings 

Company had not issued any debentures.

ix. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. The term loans have been applied for the 
purposes for which they were raised.

x. Based on the audit procedures performed and on the 
basis of information and explanations provided by the 
management, no instance of fraud by the Company or on 

or reported during the year.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration 

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with schedule V to the Act.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting 
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance 

with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, for 
all transactions with the related parties and the details 
of related parties transactions have been disclosed in 

applicable Accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares or private placement of shares or fully 
/ partly convertible debentures during the year in terms of 
provisions of Sections 42 of the Act.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as the 
provisions of the section is not applicable to the Company.

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Firm’s Registration
Number: 013338N  Number: 000756N

Devesh Parekh  Harish Gupta
Partner  Partner
Membership Number: 092160 Membership Number: 098336

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2019
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 

of Insecticides (India)Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit 

year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

statements of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of 
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 

effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Firm’s Registration
Number: 013338N  Number: 000756N

Devesh Parekh  Harish Gupta
Partner  Partner
Membership Number: 092160 Membership Number: 098336

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2019
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Note
No.

 As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) 3  23,715.03  22,837.65 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3  1,271.42  1,268.32 
(c) Intangible assets 4  304.95  319.32 
(d) Intangible assets under development 4  628.71  413.91 
(e) Investment in joint venture 5  795.00  795.00 
(f) Financial assets 6

(i) Investments 6(a)  388.01  831.09 
6(b)  156.84  188.60 

(g) Other non-current assets 7  1,531.34  1,087.27 
(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8  454.90  315.50 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  29,246.20  28,056.66 

2 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 9  70,510.65  40,728.95 
(b) Financial Assets 10

(i) Trade receivables 10(a)  24,424.89  23,481.20 
10(b)  894.17  1,956.32 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10(c)  29.83  54.67 
(iv) Loans 10(d)  1,244.19  5.96 

10(e)  431.02  327.95 
(c) Other current assets 11  8,708.08  5,394.23 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  1,06,242.83  71,949.28 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,35,489.03  1,00,005.94 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) 12  2,066.78  2,066.78 
(b) 13  64,067.97  52,692.24 
TOTAL EQUITY  66,134.75  54,759.02 
LIABILITIES

1 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities 14

 (i) Borrowings 14(a)  131.60  828.41 
(b) Provisions 15  74.93  56.50 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16  1,786.87  1,884.36 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,993.40  2,769.27 

2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities 17

 (i) Borrowings 17(a)  29,517.24  9,676.25 
 (ii) Trade Payables 17(b)

 (A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  566.74  825.86 
 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
       small enterprises.

 27,419.86  23,509.79 

17(c)  3,014.24  2,449.71 
(b) Provisions 18  134.16  29.27 
(c) Other current liabilities 19  6,708.64  5,986.77 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  67,360.88  42,477.65 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,35,489.03  1,00,005.94 

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018 

INCOME

Revenue from operations 20  1,19,194.54  1,10,639.42 

Other Income 21  230.77  324.11 

TOTAL INCOME  1,19,425.31  1,10,963.53 

EXPENSES

Cost of raw material and components consumed 22  1,02,916.79  65,140.36 

Purchase of Traded Goods  6,041.45  7,080.21 

23  (26,695.44)  4,121.97 

Excise Duty  -  3,314.30 

24  6,518.53  5,062.14 

Finance Costs 25  1,522.20  1,591.76 

Depreciation and amortization expense 26  1,968.10  1,704.59 

Other expenses 27  11,853.04  11,138.48 

TOTAL EXPENSES  1,04,124.67  99,153.81 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  15,300.64  11,809.72 

Tax Expenses 29

- Current Tax  3,798.67  3,560.30 

- Deferred Tax  (738.70)  (147.94)

TOTAL TAX EXPENSES  3,059.97  3,412.36 

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  12,240.67  8,397.36 

Other comprehensive income 30

 (443.08)  520.79 

 (41.11)  6.11 

 Income tax relating to these items  117.59  (123.43)

Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)  (366.60)  403.47 

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)  11,874.07  8,800.83 

Earnings per equity share 40

Basic earnings per share (INR)  59.23  40.63 

Diluted earnings per share (INR)  59.23  40.63 

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (REFER NOTE 12)

Particulars  Amount 

As at April 1, 2017  2,066.78 

 - 

As at March 31, 2018  2,066.78 

 - 

As at March 31, 2019  2,066.78 

(B) OTHER EQUITY (REFER NOTE 13)

Particulars Reserves and surplus  Equity 
instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Other items of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income/ (loss) 

 Total 
Other 

Equity Securities 
premium 

 General 
reserve 

 Retained 
earnings 

Balance at April 1, 2017  10,410.18 3,201.52 30,793.69  (2.50)  (13.97)  44,388.92 

   8,397.36    8,397.36 

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)    399.47  4.00  403.47 

Total comprehensive income for the period    8,397.36  399.47  4.00  8,800.83 

Dividend paid during the year    (413.35)    (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid    (84.16)    (84.16)

Balance at March 31, 2018  10,410.18 3,201.52 38,693.54  396.97  (9.97)  52,692.24 

  12,240.67    12,240.67 

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)    (339.86)  (26.74)  (366.60)

Total comprehensive income for the period   12,240.67  (339.86)  (26.74)  11,874.07 

Dividend paid during the year    (413.35)    (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid    (84.99)    (84.99)

Balance at March 31, 2019  10,410.18 3,201.52 50,435.87  57.11  (36.71)  64,067.97 

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

 Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 15,300.64  11,809.72 

Adjustment on account of

 - Depreciation  1,968.10  1,704.59 

 49.55  23.06 

 - Miscellaneous Expenses  6.34  6.34 

 - Interest Income  (41.07)  (32.66)

 - Dividend Income  (9.10)  (8.03)

 - Interest Expenses  1,522.20  1,591.76 

 - Bad debts written off  23.08  22.64 

 - Provision for impairment of trade receivables  123.08  101.22 

 - Derivative (gain) / loss  129.08  (212.60)

- Unrealised exchange differences  (5.52)  (25.01)

 19,066.38  14,981.03 

Adjustments for

 - (Increase)/Decrease in security deposits  33.48  (3.40)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (29,781.70)  1,848.71 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (1,089.85)  (2,443.60)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in loans  (10.65)  (5.30)

 (112.19)  96.23 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets  (3,099.49)  1,005.22 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in provisions  82.21  (44.34)

 - Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  3,650.95  4,467.24 

 404.80  45.86 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  721.87  831.38 

Cash generated from operations  (10,134.19)  20,779.03 

Less: Income tax paid  (3,179.27)  (2,624.78)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)  (13,313.46)  18,154.25 

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (3,790.50)  (2,817.76)

 46.08  16.18 

 - Interest received  41.07  32.66 

 - Proceeds from / (investment in) bank deposits  23.64  180.02 

 - Loans given  (1,227.58)  - 

 - Dividends received  8.20  6.61 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)  (4,899.09)  (2,582.29)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 - Repayment of long term borrowings  (742.59)  (1,256.18)

 - Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short term borrowings  19,832.58  (10,947.94)

 - Interest paid  (1,441.25)  (1,598.87)

 - Dividend paid  (498.34)  (497.51)

Net Cash Flow (used in) / from Financing Activities (C)  17,150.40  (14,300.50)

Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,062.15)  1,271.46 

 1,956.32  684.86 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  894.17  1,956.32 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Balances with banks

On current accounts  885.34  1,948.17 

Cash on hand  8.83  8.15 

Total cash and cash equivalents  894.17  1,956.32 

Particulars As at 
April 1, 2018

 Unrealised 
exchange 
difference 

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  1,759.45  (742.59)  (13.66)  1,003.20 

Short term borrowings  9,676.25  19,832.58  8.41  29,517.24 

 11,435.70  19,089.99  (5.25)  30,520.44 

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
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Partner Partner Whole Time Director
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 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
1. Corporate Information

 Insecticides (India) Limited (“The Company”) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act. The shares of the Company are listed in India on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange. 

is engaged in the manufacturing activities of Agro Chemicals, Pesticides and Technical Products for agriculture purposes. The 
Company caters to both domestic and international markets. 

2. 

 2.1 Basis of preparation

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2016.

been measured at fair value or revalued amount

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2. 

(a) 

treated as current when it is

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) 
after the reporting period.

 A liability is current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

c) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period.

(b) Revenue recognition

 In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2018, notifying Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, which replaces Ind AS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ 

result, the comparative information has not been restated.

 The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 

 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
 Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
 Step 3: Determine the transaction price
 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

 Revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty and excludes sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) / Goods and Service Tax (GST).

 Sales of goods

from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts.
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 For sale of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred at a point in time i.e. when the 

responsibility, manner of distribution, price to sell the goods.

 Rendering of services

 Income from services are recognized as and when the services are rendered.

 Interest income

income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 

and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the 

 Export Incentives

proceeds.

 Dividends

 Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria 
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant 

of addition/ deletion of the assets.

 The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain 

approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Depreciation on remaining items of property, plant 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)

10 – 15

Building 30

10

5

10

Vehicles 8-10

Leasehold improvements Over the period of lease or useful life whichever is lower

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

 Leasehold Land

 Leasehold land is amortised on straight line basis over the period of lease. No depreciation is provided for leasehold land 
when the leases are renewable at the option of the Company for a further period of 99 years at the end of the lease period 
of 99 years, without / with marginal payment of further premium.
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(d) Intangible assets

date i.e. April 1, 2016 which has become its deemed cost.

 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. 

at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

derecognised.

 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an 
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate technical and commercial feasibility of making the asset available 
for use or sale. 

 Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the 

 A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:-

Intangible assets Useful Life (years) Amortisation method used

Computer Software 8 Amortised on straight-line basis

Websites 2 Amortised on straight-line basis

Patents, trademarks and designs 10 Amortised on straight-line basis

(e) Borrowing costs

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(f) Foreign currencies

 Transactions and Balances

 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing rates 
prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising as a result 

the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or 

 Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings, settlement gain/loss and fair value gain/loss on derivative 

include foreign exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to the borrowings cost and capitalised with cost of assets.

(g) Fair value measurement

sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

in its highest and best use.

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs.



84 INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

b) 
directly or indirectly observable.

c) 
unobservable.

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

 This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

 - Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 33)

 - Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 6, 10, 14 and 17)

(h) Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 

 Company as a lessee

 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, 

and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

costs (See note 2.2(e)). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

 Company as a lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are 

rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(i) Inventories

 The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprise of cost 

incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition including excise duty wherever applicable. 
Fixed production overheads are based on normal capacity of production facilities.

 Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, the 

sold at or above cost.

 Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 

 Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares packing materials, trading and other products are determined 
on weighted average basis.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j) 

 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
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recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net 
selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In 

appropriate valuation model is used.

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, 
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement 

best estimates.

 Contingent liabilities

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence 

 Contingent Assets

 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(l) 

services.

gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the rules of the 
Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made 

policy.

encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of the 

 Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in the 

(m) Financial instruments

instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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c) 

d) 

 Debt instruments at amortised cost

 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) 

b) 
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

applies to trade receivables, security deposits & other receivables.

 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

a) 
assets, and

b) 

 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes 

the EIR method.

 Debt instrument at FVTPL

 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization 

 In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI 
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has designated certain debt instrument as 
at FVTPL.

 Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 

 Equity investments

 Derecognition

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) 

b) 

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that 
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 

repay.

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 
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a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, 
trade receivables and bank balance 

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) 
are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month 
ECL.

instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date.

a) 

instrument. 

b) 

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is 
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The 
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

 As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its 
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following 
provision matrix at the reporting date:

Not due 0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days 360-720days More than 720 days

0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the 

(n) Financial liabilities 

 Initial recognition and measurement

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

directly attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process. 

 This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 14 and 17

by Ind AS 109.
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 Derecognition

original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(o) 

 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

value is negative.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

management.

(q) Dividend 

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised 

(r) Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, 
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and 

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised except: 

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date.

and Loss (in other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax credit which can 

assets on such tax credit is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the unused tax credit can be utilised in the 

receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
(s) Government grants

 Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic 
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates 

 Duty free imports of raw materials under Advance License for imports as per the Import and Export Policy are matched 

adjustments in raw material consumption.
(t) Earnings per share

during the period.

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 

(u) Segment reporting

(CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance 

Refer note 36 for segment information presented.
(v) Standards issued but not yet effective
 “Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and 

Ind AS which the Group has not applied as they are effective from April 1, 2019:
 Ind AS-116 - Leases
 The Standard replaces the existing Ind AS 17 “Leases”. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and 

asset is of low value and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
 Ind AS -12 Income taxes: 

recognised those past transactions or events. 

treatments under Ind AS 12. 
 Ind AS 109 – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) 
even in the case of negative compensation payments. 

 Ind AS 19 – Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
 The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service 

cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the 
re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or 

 Ind AS 23 – Borrowing Costs 

use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization 
rate on general borrowings. 

 Ind AS 28 – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
 The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-term interests in an associate 

applied.
 Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements 
 The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that 

is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that 
when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not re-measure previously held 
interests in that business.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description of 
Assets

 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 
2018

Addition Sale / 
Adjustment

Balance 
as at 

March 31, 
2019

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 
2018

Depreciation for the year Balance 
as at 

March 
31, 2019

As at 
March

31, 2019

As at 
March 

31, 2018Depreciation Disposal / 
adjustments

Freehold land  84.54  3.97  -  88.51  -  -  -  -  88.51  84.54 

Finance lease assets 
- Land

 2,001.72  114.40  -  2,116.12  9.13  4.59  -  13.72  2,102.40  1,992.59 

Buildings  7,333.11  210.58  -  7,543.69  420.16  256.94  -  677.10  6,866.59  6,912.95 

Plant and machinery 13,563.86  2,052.87  10.38  15,606.35  1,986.49  1,238.88  2.41  3,222.96  12,383.39 11,577.37 

Roads  1,330.39  -  -  1,330.39  307.43  153.72  -  461.15  869.24  1,022.96 

 87.42  34.69  -  122.11  34.15  17.75  -  51.90  70.21  53.27 

 185.34  30.92  -  216.26  41.98  19.65  -  61.63  154.63  143.36 

 296.75  58.77  -  355.52  85.39  43.73  -  129.12  226.40  211.36 

Computers  112.41  90.35  0.18  202.58  63.04  21.72  0.07  84.69  117.89  49.37 

Vehicles  1,009.65  276.88  146.30  1,140.23  219.77  143.44  58.75  304.46  835.77  789.88 

Total 26,005.19  2,873.43  156.86  28,721.76  3,167.54  1,900.42  61.23  5,006.73  23,715.03 22,837.65 

Capital Work In Progress

Cost Amount

As at April 1, 2018  1,268.32 

Additions  2,262.14 

Capitalised during the year  (2,259.04)

As at March 31, 2019  1,271.42 

a) Capitalised borrowing costs -  Neither borrowing cost has been capitalised nor has been transferred to Capital Work in 
Progress on account of borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2019. The detail thereof is as under: 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Balance Amount included under the captioned head CWIP at the opening of the year  -  2,412.91 

Amount of interest transfer from CWIP and Capitalised in respective Assets  -  2,412.91 

Amount of interest transfer for Capitalisation under the Captioned Head - CWIP  -  - 

Balance Amount included under the captioned head CWIP at the year end  -  - 

 The weighted average rate for capitalisation of interest relating to general borrowings was  NIL for the year ended March 31, 
2019 and year ended March 31, 2018.

b) Contractual obligations

c) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work in progress majorly comprises expenditure in the course of construction at Dahej Plant

d) Assets charged against borrowings
non-current borrowings
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4.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Description of 
Assets

 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT

Balance 
as on 

April 01, 
2018

Addition Sale / 
Adjustment

Balance as 
on March 
31, 2019

Balance as 
on April 01, 

2018

Amortisation for the year Balance 
as on 

March 
31, 2019

As on 
March 31, 

2019

As on 
March 31, 

2018 Amortisation  Disposal / 
adjustment

Software  133.46  18.63  -  152.09  44.67  25.61  -  70.28  81.81  88.79 

Website  -  1.65  -  1.65  -  0.42  -  0.42  1.23  - 

Patents, trademarks 
and designs

 295.35  33.03  -  328.38  64.82  41.65  -  106.47  221.91  230.53 

 Total  428.81  53.31  -  482.12  109.49  67.68  -  177.17  304.95  319.32 

Intangible assets under development

Cost Amount

As at April 1, 2018  413.91 

Additions  268.11 

Capitalised during the year  (53.31)

As at March 31, 2019  628.71 

 Intangible assets under development mainly comprises mobile application, website under development and patents for which 
registration is awaited.

5. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Investment in unquoted equity shares - Fully paid-up - At cost

100 Each
 795.00  795.00 

Total  795.00  795.00 

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT

6(A) INVESTMENTS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Investments stated at Fair Value through OCI

Investments in equity instruments - Quoted (fully paid) - Listed at Tokyo Stock 
Exchange

Joint venture company) (April 1, 2016: 18,200 shares received during the year on split 
of total 18,200 original shares)

 388.01  831.09 

Total  388.01  831.09 

 388.01  831.09 

 388.01  831.09 

6(B) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Derivative assets  -  - 

Measured at amortised cost (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise 
stated)

Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months  29.82  28.10 

Security deposits  127.02  160.50 

Total  156.84  188.60 
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7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Capital advances

-to related parties  610.93  - 

-to others  690.06  636.23 

Advances other than Capital Advances

Balances with government authorities  230.35  444.70 

Prepaid expenses  -  6.34 

Total  1,531.34  1,087.27 

8. NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Advance income tax  454.90  315.50 

[Net of provision for tax INR 3,288.29 (March 31, 2018: INR 2,532.74)]

Total  454.90  315.50 

9. INVENTORIES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

At the lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw Material {INR 2,444.18 (March 31, 2018: INR 283.69) in transit}  18,501.32  15,515.06 

Packing material {INR 10.90 (March 31, 2018: INR 1.45) in transit}  1,376.58  1,329.89 

Work-in-progress  6,742.27  3,229.09 

Stock-in-trade (Traded Goods)  2,487.46  2,959.94 

Finished goods (Manufactured) {(INR 2,183.27 (March 31, 2018: NIL) in transit}  41,237.59  17,582.85 

Stores, Spares Parts & Fuel {INR 35.84 (March 31, 2018: INR 0.96) in transit}  165.43  112.12 

Total  70,510.65  40,728.95 

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT
10(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Trade receivables  24,951.63  23,884.87 

Less: Impairment of Trade Receivables  (526.74)  (403.67)

Total  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Current portion  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Non-current portion  -  - 

Breakup of Trade Receivables

Secured, considered good  -  - 

Unsecured, considered good  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Credit Impaired  526.74  403.67 

Subtotal  24,951.63  23,884.87 

Impairment of Trade Receivables (refer note 34)  (526.74)  (403.67)

Total  24,424.89  23,481.20 

a director or a member.
 - Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 90 to 180 days.

 - For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 34
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10(B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Balances with banks

On current accounts  885.34  1,948.17 

Cash on hand  8.83  8.15 

Total  894.17  1,956.32 

10(C) OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

In earmarked accounts

Unpaid dividend  4.05  3.52 

Deposits with remaining maturity between three and twelve months*  25.78  51.15 

Total  29.83  54.67 

10(D) LOANS 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees  16.61  5.96 

Inter Corporate Deposits  1,227.58  - 

Total  1,244.19  5.96 

 Nil  Nil 

10(E) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Derivative assets  4.10  14.13 

Measured at amortised cost (unsecured, considered good)

Dividend receivable  7.71  6.80 

Insurance claim recoverable  -  0.39 

Litigation charges recoverable  19.60  19.60 

Export incentive recoverable  97.33  4.98 

Interest subsidy recoverable  302.28  282.05 

Total  431.02  327.95 

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Advances to suppliers

-to related parties (refer note 37)  357.65  0.31 

-to others  522.55  551.33 

Advances to employees  17.14  17.62 

Balances with government authorities  7,683.19  4,678.72 

Prepaid expenses  127.55  146.25 

Total  8,708.08  5,394.23 

 Nil  Nil 

Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the Company is a 
Director or member.

 1.98  - 
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12. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital  Number of 
shares 

 INR 

As at April 1, 2018  2,50,00,000.00  2,500.00 

Increase/(decrease) during the year  -  - 

At March 31, 2019  2,50,00,000.00  2,500.00 

Issued equity share capital  Number of 
shares 

 INR 

  

As at April 1, 2018  2,06,67,796.00  2,066.78 

Increase/(decrease) during the year  -  - 

At March 31, 2019  2,06,67,796.00  2,066.78 

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 

remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

(b) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder  As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

 Number of 
Shares 

 % Held  Number of 
Shares 

 % Held 

Rajesh Aggarwal  52,92,900  25.61  52,92,900  25.61 

Pushpa Aggarwal  21,51,900  10.41  21,51,900  10.41 

Rajesh Aggarwal (HUF)  19,53,000  9.45  19,53,000  9.45 

Hari Chand Aggarwal (HUF)  14,94,000  7.23  14,94,000  7.23 

Nikunj Aggarwal  11,25,000  5.44  11,25,000  5.44 

(c)  

same got listed on May 8, 2015.

13. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Retained earnings  50,435.87  38,693.54 

Securities premium  10,410.18  10,410.18 

General reserve  3,201.52  3,201.52 

 57.11  396.97 

Other items of other Comprehensive Income/(loss)  (36.71)  (9.97)

Total Other Equity  64,067.97  52,692.24 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(i) Retained Earnings

Opening balance  38,693.54  30,793.69 

 12,240.67  8,397.36 

Dividend paid during the year  (413.35)  (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid  (84.99)  (84.16)

Closing balance  50,435.87  38,693.54 
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(ii) Securities premium 
Opening balance  10,410.18  10,410.18 
Additions during the year  -  - 
Closing balance  10,410.18  10,410.18 
(iii) General reserve
Opening balance  3,201.52  3,201.52 
Add: Appropriations  -  - 
Closing balance  3,201.52  3,201.52 
(iv) Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance  396.97  (2.50)

 (339.86)  399.47 
Closing balance  57.11  396.97 
(v) Other items of other Comprehensive Income/(loss)
Opening balance  (9.97)  (13.97)

 (26.74)  4.00 
Closing balance  (36.71)  (9.97)

Note 30
Total other equity  64,067.97  52,692.24 

Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Securities premium  -

aggregate amount of the premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may 
use this reserve for issuing fully paid-up bonus shares, buy-back of shares and for expenses in relation to issue of shares. 

b) General reserve -

2018.
c) FVTOCI equity investments -  The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in 

derecognised.

14(A). BORROWINGS 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Secured
Indian Rupee loan from banks

Term loans  682.35  1,364.71 
Vehicle loans  320.85  313.28 

Foreign currency loan from banks  -  81.46 
Unsecured
Loans from other parties  -  - 
Total  1,003.20  1,759.45 
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 17(c))  871.60  931.04 
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet)  131.60  828.41 

 Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing : 
a) Indian rupee term loan
 The Indian Rupees Term Loans outstanding amounts to INR 682.35 (March 31, 2018 - INR 1,364.71) have been secured by 

GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- 

interest rates 10.95%  per annum.
b) Foreign currency term loan
 The Foreign Currency outstanding loan amounting to NIL(March 31, 2018 - INR 81.46) has been secured by the exclusive 

Estate, Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand 

entered into the derivative contract for hedging of the currency swaps and interest rate swaps.
c) Vehicle loans
 Term Loans from banks for vehicles have been secured by hypothecation of vehicles. Further, vehicles loans have been guaranteed 

by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These loans are repayable in 36 
monthly installments from the date of the loans along with interest rates  ranging  between  8.40% to 10% per annum.

disclosed in note 41.
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15. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Provision for leave encashment  74.93  56.50 

Total  74.93  56.50 

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars  As at 
April 1, 2018 

 Charge/ 
(credit) to 
Statement 

 
and Loss 

 Charge/(credit) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income 

 MAT credit 
utilised 

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

assets
 (1,905.92)  303.04  -  -  (2,208.96)

Derivatives  (4.94)  (3.51)  -  -  (1.43)

Borrowings  -  -  -  -  - 

Investments  (120.57)  -  (103.22)  -  (17.35)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (2,031.43)  299.53  (103.22)  -  (2,227.74)

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to 
set-off provisions

MAT credit  -  (955.55)  -  744.43  211.12 

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade 
receivables

 141.06  (43.00)  -  -  184.06 

Derivatives  1.24  (41.51)  -  -  42.75 

Borrowings  4.77  1.83  -  -  2.94 

Total deferred tax assets  147.07  (1,038.23)  -  744.43  440.87 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (1,884.36)  (738.70)  (103.22)  744.43  (1,786.87)

Particulars  As at 
April 1, 2017 

 Charge/ 
(credit) to 
Statement 

 
and Loss 

 Charge/(credit) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income 

 MAT credit 
utilised 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

assets
 (2,025.47)  (119.55)  -  -  (1,905.92)

Derivatives  (20.24)  (15.30)  -  -  (4.94)

Borrowings  (9.92)  (9.92)  -  -  - 

Investments  0.75  -  121.32  -  (120.57)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (2,054.88)  (144.77)  121.32  -  (2,031.43)

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to 
set-off provisions

MAT credit  1,018.34  -  -  1,018.34  - 

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade 
receivables

 104.67  (36.39)  -  -  141.06 

Derivatives  34.64  33.40  -  -  1.24 

Borrowings  4.59  (0.18)  -  -  4.77 

Total deferred tax assets  1,162.24  (3.17)  -  1,018.34  147.07 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (892.64)  (147.94)  121.32  1,018.34  (1,884.36)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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17. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
17(A) Borrowings

Particulars  Maturity date  Interest rate  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Secured

Working Capital facilities from Banks

Loans repayable on demand

Working capital demand loans Apr 19-May 19 8.30% - 9.55%  13,400.00  5,600.00 

FCNR Loans (USD) Jul-19 7.95%  1,208.40  - 

Cash credit from banks On demand 7.90% - 10.95%  12,593.46  2,379.56 

Buyers Credit Loans (USD) Apr 19-Sep 19  3.75% - 4.05%  2,265.09  1,670.24 

 -  -  50.29  26.45 

Total    29,517.24  9,676.25 

by the personal guarantee  of  the  directors - Mr.Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. 

in note 41.

17(B) TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Trade payables  24,766.88  22,944.79 

Trade payables to related parties (refer note 37)  3,219.72  1,390.86 

Total  27,986.60  24,335.65 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 (A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  566.74  825.86 

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises.

 27,419.86  23,509.79 

Total  27,986.60  24,335.65 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on agreed terms.

Refer note 43 for disclosure pertaining to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

17(C) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (note 14(a))  871.60  931.04 

Security deposits received from customers  633.13  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure  134.57  115.67 

Interest accrued on borrowings  102.47  21.79 

Employee payables

- to related parties (refer note 37)  165.40  15.85 

- to others  980.69  866.20 

Unpaid dividend account  4.05  3.52 

Derivative liabilities  122.33  3.27 

Total  3,014.24  2,449.71 
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18. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Provision for gratuity  130.93  27.10 

Provision for leave encashment  3.23  2.17 

Total  134.16  29.27 

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the State-  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Provident Fund (including admin charges)  293.10  239.21 

Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance  36.16  35.58 

Total  329.26  274.79 

(B) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

(i) Gratuity

gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The company provides for 
the liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuation by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method.

the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

obligations for the company’s plan are shown below:
 As at 

March 31, 2019 
 As at 

March 31, 2018 

Rate of Discounting 7.79% 7.86%

Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality Rate During Employment  IALM (2006-08)  IALM (2006-08) 

follows:
 As at 

March 31, 2019 
 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 526.06  458.93 

Interest cost  41.35  34.51 

Current service cost  61.09  56.67 

Past service cost  -  12.00 

 (40.14)  (28.65)

Actuarial (gain) / loss

 3.95  (17.13)

Due to change in experience  35.59  9.73 

 627.90  526.06 

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows:  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period  498.97  375.38 

Interest Income  39.22  28.22 

Contributions by the Employer  0.50  125.30 

 (40.14)  (28.65)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income  (1.58)  (1.28)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period  496.97  498.97 

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 (627.90)  (526.06)

Fair value of plan assets  496.97  498.97 

Plan asset / (liability)  (130.93)  (27.09)
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Net interest cost  2.13  6.29 

Current service cost  61.09  56.67 

Past service cost  -  12.00 

Net expense *  63.22  74.96 

* Includes INR 3.55 (March 31, 2018 - INR 1.93) transfer to Research & Development Expenditure

Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 39.54  (7.40)

Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income  1.58  1.28 

Total expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income  41.12  (6.12)

Major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets As at 
March 31, 2019

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Total In %  Total  In % 

Insurance fund  496.97 100%  498.97 100%

Total  496.97 100%  498.97 100%

shown below:
 Year ended 

March 31, 2019 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 627.90  526.06 

Change in discount rate

Increase by 1%  (52.56)  (45.42)

Decrease by 1%  61.48  53.15 

Change in rate of salary increase

Increase by 1%  61.74  53.29 

Decrease by 1%  (53.54)  (46.19)

Change in rate of employee turnover

Increase by 1%  14.09  12.97 

Decrease by 1%  (16.11)  (14.77)

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 11 years  11 years 

Within next 12 months  68.46  51.04 

Between 1 and 5 years  145.50  126.54 

Between 5 and 10 years  257.79  210.64 

More than 10 years  1,107.12  974.10 

(C) RISK EXPOSURE
 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value 

depending on the duration of asset.

As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this 

securities, and other debt instruments.

Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk. 

have any longevity risk.
 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default 

will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.
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19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Advances from customers  6,228.54  5,664.94 

Statutory dues  480.10  321.83 

Total  6,708.64  5,986.77 

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Sale of products (including excise duty) *

Finished goods  1,19,587.08  1,10,522.18 

Traded goods  10,103.77  10,798.84 

Less : Discount & Rebate  (11,419.81)  (11,267.04)

 1,18,271.04  1,10,053.98 

Other operating revenue

Revenue from Job Work  196.91  136.31 

Sale of scrap  62.94  27.39 

GST Refund - Budgetery Support Scheme **  663.65  421.74 

Total revenue from operations  1,19,194.54  1,10,639.42 

* Sale of goods includes excise duty collected from customers of INR NIL  (March 31, 2018: INR 3,314.30). Sale of goods net of excise 
duty is INR 1,18,271.04 (March 31, 2018: INR 1,06,739.68). Revenue from operations for periods up to June 30, 2017 includes excise 
duty. From July 1, 2017 onwards the excise duty and most indirect taxes in India have been replaced with Goods and Service Tax 
(GST). The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations. In view of 
the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2019 is not comparable with the year 
ended March 31, 2018.

** As per the budgetary support scheme, eligible units (Samba and Udhampur in Jammu & Kashmir) are entitled to receive refund of 
the Goods and Services Tax paid by the unit. 

21. OTHER INCOME

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest income

Fixed deposits with banks  5.67  8.40 

Other assets  35.40  24.26 

-
hensive income*

 9.10  8.03 

Other non-operating income

Export Incentive  156.40  45.78 

Miscellaneous income  24.20  25.04 

Net gain on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL  -  212.60 

Total other income  230.77  324.11 
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22. COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Raw Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  15,515.06  13,224.12 

Add: Purchases  96,225.25  60,510.62 

 1,11,740.31  73,734.74 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  18,501.32  15,515.06 

Cost of raw material consumed  93,238.99  58,219.68 

Packing Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,329.89  1,357.47 

Add: Purchases  9,724.49  6,893.10 

 11,054.38  8,250.57 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,376.58  1,329.89 

Cost of Packing material consumed  9,677.80  6,920.68 

Total Cost of raw material and components consumed  1,02,916.79  65,140.36 

23. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods  41,237.59  17,582.85 

 6,742.27  3,229.09 

Traded goods  2,487.46  2,959.94 

 50,467.32  23,771.88 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods  17,582.85  20,156.69 

 3,229.09  4,546.82 

Traded goods  2,959.94  3,190.34 

 23,771.88  27,893.85 

Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (26,695.44)  4,121.97 

Details of inventory  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Traded goods

Powder  630.55  696.97 

 1,071.97  1,902.00 

Granules  784.94  360.97 

Total  2,487.46  2,959.94 

Finished goods

 26,974.86  9,522.97 

Powder  3,939.65  1,574.52 

Granules  6,723.55  1,936.08 

Technicals  3,599.53  4,549.28 

Total  41,237.59  17,582.85 

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars  Note  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Salaries, wages and bonus  5,960.51  4,564.79 
Contribution to provident and other funds 18  329.32  274.85 
Gratuity expense 18  59.67  73.03 
Staff welfare expenses  169.03  149.47 

  6,518.53  5,062.14 
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25. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest on term loans and ECBs  155.57  244.71 

Interest on CC Limits, buyer’s credit and demand loans  1,041.45  1,143.11 

Interest (Others)  41.50  46.68 

Other borrowings costs

Bank charges  283.68  157.26 

 1,522.20  1,591.76 

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Depreciation of tangible assets 3  1,900.42  1,639.98 

Amortization of intangible assets 4  67.68  64.61 

Total depreciation and amortization expense   1,968.10  1,704.59 

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Note 
No.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Consumption of stores and spares  621.05  497.86 

Power and fuel Expenses  1,779.11  1,356.64 

Transport charges  3,076.20  3,145.48 

Repairs and Maintenance  -  - 

Buildings  5.24  12.92 

Plant & Machinery  25.67  54.08 

Others  246.17  220.78 

Pollution Control Expenses  35.27  105.43 

Advertising and sales promotion  750.24  1,611.22 

Royalty  214.60  226.83 

Commission  607.97  554.12 

Travelling and conveyance  1,380.81  1,124.14 

Rent (Including Lease Rental)  274.98  346.63 

Insurance  66.56  80.38 

Communication expenses  37.01  41.54 

Printing and Stationery  47.25  41.93 

Legal and Professional Fees  428.93  244.27 

Director Sitting Fees  5.00  7.41 

Payment to Auditors 27(a)  33.87  31.01 

Electricity & Water Charges  58.35  51.45 

Rates and taxes  192.43  67.66 

Security Charges  91.37  88.63 

Research & Development Expenses 28  605.86  419.88 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  49.55  23.06 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 27(b)  171.05  148.78 

Provision for impairment of trade receivables  123.08  101.22 

Net losses on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL  129.09  - 

Exchange difference (net)  394.29  152.85 

Bad debts written off  23.08  22.64 

Miscellaneous Expenses  378.96  359.64 

Total other expenses   11,853.04  11,138.48 
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27(A) DETAILS OF PAYMENT TO AUDITORS (EXCLUDING TAXES)

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

As auditor
Statutory Audit Fees  30.00  26.00 
Tax Audit Fees  -  4.00 
In other capacity

 Reimbursement of expenses  3.87  1.01 
Total  33.87  31.01 

27(B) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company.  The company’s policy 

covers current as well as proposed CSR activities to be undertaken by the company and examining their alignment with 
Schedule VII of the Act.

 The company proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which include promoting Education, green initiatives, 
and facilities for senior citizens, vocational & entrepreneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age homes & women hostels, 
art and culture, destitute care and rehabilitation, rural development projects and others. 

 Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

read with Schedule VII thereof by the Company
 166.63  129.38 

 (171.05)  (148.78)
Amount unspent  -  - 
Amount spent during the year on:

- in cash  -  - 
- yet to be paid in cash  -  - 

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above
- in cash  171.05  148.78 
- yet to be paid in cash  -  - 

Total  171.05  148.78 

The entire amount is spent through the IIL foundation, which is a related party.

28. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

(i) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Employee cost  187.41  128.45 
(b) Cost of material & testing charges  0.84  8.63 
(c) Other R&D expenditure  -  - 
(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL  276.54  262.36 

(ii) Capital Expenditure  0.40  145.37 
Total  465.19  544.81 

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
 This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and 

non-deductible items.

(A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Current tax
 4,047.08  3,314.81 

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  (248.41)  245.49 

Total current tax expense  3,798.67  3,560.30 
Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets  299.53  (144.77)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities  (82.68)  (3.17)
MAT Credit entitlement of earlier periods  (955.55)  - 

 (738.70)  (147.94)
Income tax expense  3,059.97  3,412.36 
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(B) RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE AND THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT MULTIPLIED BY THE INDIA’S TAX RATE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 15,300.64  11,809.72 

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.944%  5,346.66  4,087.11 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable in-
come:

Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure  (33.10)  (99.19)

Deduction on account of tax holiday period  (1,194.13)  (833.72)

Other items  144.50  12.67 

Adjustments for MAT Credit entitlement of earlier periods  (955.55)  - 

Adjustments for current tax of earlier periods  (248.41)  245.49 

Income tax expense  3,059.97  3,412.36 

30. COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)

 During the year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars FVTOCI -equity 
instruments

 Total 

 -  4.00  4.00 

 399.47  -  399.47 

Total  399.47  4.00  403.47 

During the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars FVTOCI -equity 
instruments

 Total 

 -  (26.74)  (26.74)

 (339.86)  -  (339.86)

Total  (339.86)  (26.74)  (366.60)

31. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

 Estimates and assumptions

prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 

 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and 
other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The 

the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

 Taxes

 There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination 

the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax determination is made. The assessment of probability involves 
estimation of a number of factors including future taxable income. 

 

 The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables.

 The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision 
matrix is based on its histroically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward 
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking 
estimates are analysed.
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 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual 

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 

valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

 

are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, 
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in India.

rates in India. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 18.

 

uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the 
end of each reporting period. 

32. HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

 Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

 The Company uses full currency cum interest rate swap and foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to manage 

underlying transactions and with the intention to reduce the foreign exchange risk of expected purchases.

Nature of instrument As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Amount 
outstanding 

USD (in 
Lacs)

Amount 
outstanding 

INR

Amount 
outstanding 

USD (in Lacs)

Amount 
outstanding 

INR

Hedged foreign currency exposures

Interest Rate Swaps (refer note below)  -  -  0.02  1.33 

Full Currency Interest Rate Swap contracts - payable (refer 
note below)

 -  -  1.25  67.81 

Forward contract - Buy

In respect of foreign letters of credit  52.34  3,708.72  4.50  292.36 

In respect of import bills accepted  -  -  1.42  91.07 

In respect of buyer’s credit  17.89  1,265.12  2.50  162.60 

 70.23  4,973.84  9.69  615.17 

Note:

Hedging against the underlying INR borrowings by which:

i) Company will receive Principal in INR and pay in foreign Currency

Unhedged foreign currency exposures

a)   Payables

Buyer’s credit (including interest)  15.21  1,051.61  23.29  1,518.04 

Letters of credit  129.16  8,932.93  200.51  13,066.93 

Trade payables  -  -  4.43  288.91 

 144.37  9,984.54  228.23  14,873.88 
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33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(i) Financial instruments by category Note
No.

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
cost

a)  Financial assets - Non-current

Investments 6(a)

 -  388.01  -  -  831.09  - 

Security deposits 6(b)  -  -  127.02  -  -  160.50 

Deposits having maturity of more than twelve 
months

6(b)  -  -  29.82  -  -  28.10 

b)  Financial assets - Current

Trade receivables 10(a)  -  -  24,424.89  -  -  23,481.20 

10(b)  -  -  894.17  -  -  1,956.32 

Other bank balances 10(c)  -  -  29.83  -  -  54.67 

Loans 10(d)  -  -  1,244.19  -  -  5.96 

Derivative assets 10(e)  4.10  14.13  -  - 

Dividend receivable 10(e)  -  -  7.71  -  -  6.80 

Insurance claim recoverable 10(e)  -  -  -  -  -  0.39 

Litigation charges recoverable 10(e)  -  -  19.60  -  -  19.60 

Export incentive recoverable 10(e)  -  -  97.33  -  -  4.98 

Interest subsidy recoverable 10(e)  -  -  302.28  -  -  282.05 

 4.10  388.01  27,176.84  14.13  831.09  26,000.57 

c)  Financial liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings 14(a)  -  -  131.60  -  -  828.41 

d) Financial liabilities - Current

Borrowings 17(a)  -  -  29,517.24  -  -  9,676.25 

Trade payables 17(b)  -  -  27,986.60  -  -  24,335.65 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 17(c)  -  -  871.60  -  -  931.04 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  -  -  633.13  -  -  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  -  -  134.57  -  -  115.67 

Interest accrued on borrowings 17(c)  -  -  102.47  -  -  21.79 

Employee payables 17(c)  -  -  1,146.09  -  -  882.05 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  -  -  4.05  -  -  3.52 

Derivative liabilities 17(c) 122.33  -  -  3.27  -  - 

122.33  -  60,527.35  3.27  -  37,286.75 

(ii) Fair value hierarchy

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and 

instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the 
table

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value - recurring fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTOCI

 388.01  -  -  831.09  -  - 

Financial assets at FVTPL

-Derivative assets  -  4.10  -  -  14.13  - 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

-Derivative liabilities  -  122.33  -  -  3.27  - 

as at FVTOCI as the management believes that this provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long-term strategic 
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 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised 
cost for which fair values are disclosed

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Security deposits  127.02  -  -  160.50 
Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months  29.82  -  28.10  - 
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  967.88  - 1,739.79  - 

 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
 Level 1: 

closing price as at the reporting period. 
 Level 2: 

instrument is included in level 2.
 Level 3:

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

observable yield curves.
c)  the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the 

balance sheet date.
d) the fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.

available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Particulars Note
No.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Carrying 
amount

Fair 
value

Carrying 
amount

Fair 
value

Financial assets
-Security deposits* 6(b)  127.02  127.02  160.50  160.50 
-Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months* 6(b)  29.82  29.82  28.10  28.10 
Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a) 1,003.20  967.88 1,759.45 1,739.79 

 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans, other receivables, short term borrowings, security 

considered to be the same as fair value due to their short term maturities.

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

-
pany also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into derivative transactions.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk

measured at amortised cost.

Ageing analysis
credit limits

Borrowings and other liabilities Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities 

Market risk - foreign 
exchange risk liabilities not denominated in Indian 

rupee (INR) 

 
b) Sensitivity analysis

a) Forward exchange contracts 
b) Foreign currency options 
c) Currency swaps

Market risk - interest rate 
risk

Long-term borrowings at variable 
rates

Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps

Market risk - security prices Sensitivity analysis
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 The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy whose objective is to ensure sustainable business expansion 
with stability, and to promote an upbeat approach in risk management process by eliminating risk. In order to achieve this key 
objective, this policy provides a prepared and well-organized approach to manage the various types of risk associated with day 

A) Credit risk

(i) Credit risk management
a) Trade receivables 
 Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control 

relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company 

trends, and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. New 
customers are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms are 
offered. Sale limits are established for each customers and reviewed periodically.

increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and 
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

status of customer in the company.
 The maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is provided in note 10(a)
b) Financial instruments and cash deposits
 Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s management in accordance with the policy of the 

Company. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s management on an annual basis. The limits are set 

payments.
 The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and March 

 (ii) Provision for expected credit losses

Category
 

Description of category Basis for recognition of expected credit loss 
provision

Loans to 
employees and 
Inter Corporate 

deposits

Security 
deposits

Trade 
receivables

assets, negligible 
credit risk 

Assets where the counter-party has strong 
capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk 
of default is negligible or nil

12-month 
expected credit 

loss

12-month 
expected credit 

loss

Lifetime 
expected 

credit losses

Quality assets, 
low credit risk

Assets where there is low risk of default and where 

the obligations and where there has been low 

Year ended March 31, 2018

(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Particulars Category Description of category Asset group Gross 
carrying 
amount

Expected 
probability 

of default

Expected 
credit 

losses

Carrying 
amount 

net of 
impairment 

provision

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

negligible credit risk
Assets where the counter-
party has strong capacity 
to meet the obligations and 
where the risk of default is 
negligible or nil

Loans to 
employees and 
Inter Corporate 
Deposits

1,244.19 0%  -  1,244.19 

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

negligible credit risk
Assets where the counter-
party has strong capacity 
to meet the obligations and 
where the risk of default is 
negligible or nil

Security deposits  127.02 0%  -  127.02 
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Ageing Not due 0-90 days 
past due

90-180 days 
past due

180-360 
days past 

due

360-720 
days 

past due

More than 
 720 days 
past due

Total

Gross carrying amount  10,546.96  8,909.24  4,454.75  379.15  408.80  252.73  24,951.63 

Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 
provision)

 10.56  17.82  22.27  18.96  204.40  252.73  526.74 

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net 
of impairment)

 10,536.40  8,891.42  4,432.48  360.19  204.40  -  24,424.89 

Year ended March 31, 2018

(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Particulars Category Description of category Asset group Gross 
carrying 
amount

Expected 
probability 

of default

Expected 
credit 

losses

Carrying 
amount 

net of 
impairment 

provision
Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected credit 
losses 

negligible credit risk
Assets where the counter-party 
has strong capacity to meet the 
obligations and where the risk of 
default is negligible or nil

Loans to 
employees 
and Inter 
Corporate 
Deposits

 5.96 0%  -  5.96 

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected credit 
losses 

negligible credit risk
Assets where the counter-party 
has strong capacity to meet the 
obligations and where the risk of 
default is negligible or nil

Security 
deposits

 160.50 0%  -  160.50 

Ageing Not due 0-90 days 
past due

90-180 days 
past due

180-360 days 
past due

360-720 days 
past due

More than 
 720 days 
past due

Total

Gross carrying amount  13,616.98  6,473.00  2,950.03  333.40  331.54  179.92  23,884.87 
Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 
provision)

 13.62  12.95  14.75  16.67  165.77  179.92  403.67 

Carrying amount of trade receiv-
ables (net of impairment)

 13,603.36  6,460.05  2,935.28  316.73  165.77  -  23,481.20 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade receivables

Particulars  Amount 

Loss allowance on March 31, 2018  403.67 

Changes in loss allowance  123.07 

Loss allowance on March 31, 2019  526.74 

B) Liquidity risk

normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company 

for the Short-term Bank facilities.
(i) Financing arrangements 
 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities subject to the reconcilation at the end of the reporting 

period :

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Floating rate

Short term borrowings  17,589.26  36,491.59 
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payments;

As at March 31, 2019 Note
No.

Within 1 year Between 1 
and 5 years

More than 
5 years

 Total 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a)  871.60  131.60  -  1,003.20 

Short term borrowings 17(a)  29,517.24  -  -  29,517.24 

Trade payables 17(b)  27,986.60  -  -  27,986.60 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  633.13  -  -  633.13 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  134.57  -  -  134.57 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17(c)  102.47  -  -  102.47 

Employee payables 17(c)  1,146.09  -  -  1,146.09 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  4.05  -  -  4.05 

Derivative liabilities 17(c)  122.33  -  -  122.33 

Total   60,518.08  131.60  -  60,649.68 

As at March 31, 2018 Note
No.

 Within 1 year  Between 1 
and 5 years 

 More than 
5 years 

 Total 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a)  931.04  828.41  -  1,759.45 

Short term borrowings 17(a)  9,676.25  -  -  9,676.25 

Trade payables 17(b)  24,335.65  -  -  24,335.65 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  492.37  -  -  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  115.67  -  -  115.67 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17(c)  21.79  -  -  21.79 

Employee payables 17(c)  882.05  -  -  882.05 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  3.52  -  -  3.52 

Derivative liabilities 17(c)  3.27  -  -  3.27 

Total   36,461.61  828.41  -  37,290.02 

C) Market risk

commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and 

(i) Foreign currency risk

exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). 

 When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to 

using foreign currency swaps and forwards. 
 At March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 the Company’s hedge position is stated in Note 32. This foreign currency risk is hedged 

by using foreign currency forward contracts and full currency interest rate swaps.
 Sensitivity
 The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and JPY exchange rates, with all other 

and liabilities.

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
USD sensitivity
INR/USD - increase by 1% (March 31, 2018: 1%)  (99.85)  (148.74)
INR/USD - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2018: 1%)  99.85  148.74 

Impact on other comprehensive income
JPY sensitivity [with respect to investment in equity shares of OAT Agrio 
Co. Ltd. (company listed on Tokyo Stock exchange)]

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

INR/JPY - increase by 5% (March 31, 2018: 5%)  19.40  41.55 
INR/JPY - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2018: 5%)  (19.40)  (41.55)
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(ii) Interest rate risk

market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 

 

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

 The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Variable rate borrowings

Short term borrowings  29,517.24  9,676.25 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  25.84  97.75 

Fixed rate borrowings - Long term (including current maturities)  977.36  1,661.70 

Total borrowings  30,520.44  11,435.70 

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following long term variable rate borrowings (including current 
maturities) and interest rate swap contracts outstanding:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Interest 
rates

Balance % of total 
loans

Interest 
rates

Balance % of total 
loans

Bank borrowings 8.50% - 
10.00%

 25.84 0.08% Libor + 3%, 
8.50% - 
11.00%

 97.75 0.85%

Cross currency interest rate swaps (notional 
principal amount)

 -  - 11.75%  (81.46) 0.71%

  25.84 0.08%   16.29 0.14%

(b) Sensitivity

sensitivity is not disclosed.

(iii) Price risk

(a) Exposure

(b) Sensitivity

increase or decrease other comprehensive income by INR 38.80 (March 31, 2018: INR 83.11)

35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk management

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure 

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. For 
the purpose of the Company’s capital management, net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and 

holders. 

Particulars Note
No.

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Total debt 14(a),17(a),17(c)  30,520.44  11,435.70 
10(b)  (894.17)  (1,956.32)

Net debt  29,626.27  9,479.38 
Total capital 12,13  66,134.75  54,759.02 

Capital and net debt  95,761.02  64,238.40 
Gearing ratio 31% 15%
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2019 & 
March 31, 2018

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 

(b) Dividends

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018 

(i) Dividends paid on equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019 of INR 2 (March 31, 2018 : INR 
2) per fully paid share

 413.35  413.35 

(ii) Dividends on equity shares not recognised at the end of the reporting 
period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommend-

2018: INR 2). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in 
the ensuing annual general meeting

 413.35  413.35 

approved for issue, but are not recognised as a liability amounts to INR 84.97 (March 31, 2018: INR 84.97).

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro-chemicals comprising of technical and formulation, 
hence there is one operating segment.

 Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Company are mentioned below:-

a) Information about geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Within India  1,12,249.80  1,06,640.75 

Outside India  6,021.24  3,413.23 

Total revenue  1,18,271.04  1,10,053.98 

 The basis for attributing revenues from external customer is based on the country of domicile of the respective customers.

b) Revenue from Major Customers: There is no customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Company’s total revenue.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship:-

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1. Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal - Chairman
2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director
3. Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal - Whole-time Director

5. Sh. Sandeep Kumar - Company Secretary
b) Independent directors

1. Sh. Virjesh Kumar Gupta
2. Sh. Navin Shah
3. Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan 
4. Sh. Deepak Gupta (appointed w.e.f. April 30, 2016 & resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2018)
5. Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal

c) Relatives of KMPs
1. Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal
2. Smt. Sonia Aggarwal
3. Smt. Anju Aggarwal
4. Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal
5. Smt. Kritika Aggarwal

d) Enterprises over which the Company exercises joint control
1. OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited
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1. Paras Agro Industries
2. ISEC Organics Ltd.
3. Evergreen Mineral Industries
4. Valve & Phneumaticals
5. Vinod Metals Industries
6. Crystal Crop Protection Pvt. Ltd.
7. HPM Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd.
8. Crop Care Federation of India
9. IIL foundation
10. Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:-

Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

Entities over 
which the 
Company 

exercises joint 
control

Key Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Independent 
Directors

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019 

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018 

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Advertisement expense  0.16  1.21  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  0.16  1.21     -     

Consultancy expenses  -  -  -  -  -  -  9.76  8.56  -  - 
Sonia Aggarwal        9.76  8.56   

Deputation fee income  -  -  25.99  24.52  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 
Limited

   25.99  24.52       

Membership & Subscription expense  8.26  7.63  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  8.26  7.63         

Purchase of Capital & Consumabable 
Goods 

 85.99  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Valves & Pneumatics  0.29  -         
Vinod Metal Industries  85.70  -         

Sales of Finished Goods  5,589.18  982.22  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  2,800.56  460.47         

HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  427.19  209.49         

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited  2,361.43  312.26         

Purchases of Traded Goods  420.70  2,762.39  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  -  2,137.15         

Evergreen Mineral Industries  -  26.88         

HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  420.70  577.92         

Paras Agro Industries  -  18.91         

Valves & Pneumatics  -  1.53         

Purchases of Raw Material  9,039.97  162.17  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  2,721.02  -         

HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  913.37  -         

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited  5,405.58  82.39         

Vinod Metal Industries  -  79.78         

Other Expenses  17.70  8.26  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  17.70  8.26         

R & D Expenses  -  -  329.20  306.65  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 
Limited

   329.20  306.65       

Rent paid  69.41  67.32  -  -  -  -  2.56  2.40  -  - 
ISEC Organics Ltd  69.41  67.32   -   -  -  -   
Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal  -  -   -   -  2.56  2.40   
Rental Income  -  -  -  4.67  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private 
Limited

   -  4.67       
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Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

Entities over 
which the 
Company 

exercises joint 
control

Key Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Independent 
Directors

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019 

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018 

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Remuneration paid  -  -  -  -  1,042.04  309.35  44.83  29.27  -  - 

Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal      478.98  124.01     

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal      478.80  103.30     

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal      44.23  41.28     

Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal      31.40  33.28     

Sh. Sandeep Kumar      8.63  7.48     

Smt. Anju Aggarwal        12.65  11.11   

Smt. Kritika Aggarwal        12.60  -   

Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal        19.58  18.16   

Contribution to CSR  171.05  148.78  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

IIL foundation  171.05  148.78         

Sitting fees  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5.00  7.00 

Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal          1.25  1.50 

Sh. Deepak Gupta          -  0.25 

Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan          1.50  2.50 

Sh. Navin Shah          1.00  1.25 

Sh. Virjesh Kumar Gupta          1.25  1.50 

(iii) Balance outstanding with related parties

Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

 Entities over 
which the 
Company 

exercises joint 
control 

 Key Management 
Personnel 

 Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 As at 
March 31, 

2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 

2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

Remuneration payable  -  -  -  -  162.55  13.95  2.85  1.90 

Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal      76.81  5.16  -  - 

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal      80.91  4.39  -  - 

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal      2.24  1.99  -  - 

Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal      -  -  1.20  1.05 

Smt. Kritika Aggarwal      -  -  0.79  - 

Smt. Anju Aggarwal      -  -  0.86  0.85 

Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal      1.77  1.71  -  - 

Sh. Sandeep Kumar      0.82  0.70  -  - 

Payables  3,218.97  1,372.77  -  17.43  -  -  0.75  0.66 

Vinod Metal Industries  30.70  35.32  -  -    -  - 

Valves & Pneumatics  0.29  -  -  -    -  - 

Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  -  1,247.66  -  -    -  - 

Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd  2,156.09  -       

HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  1,031.73  82.17  -  -    -  - 
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Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

 Entities over 
which the 
Company 

exercises joint 
control 

 Key Management 
Personnel 

 Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 As at 
March 31, 

2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 

2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

ISEC Organics Ltd  -  0.06  -  -    -  - 

Crop Care Federation of India  0.16  7.56  -  -    -  - 

OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited  -  -  -  17.43    -  - 

Smt. Sonia Aggarwal  -  -  -  -    0.75  0.66 

Receivables  1,215.17  118.36  -  -  -  -  -  - 

HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  143.31  -       

Crystal Crop Protection Ltd  699.97  -       

Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd  371.89  118.36       

Advances given  966.60  0.31  1.98  -  -  -  -  - 

Evergreen Mineral Industries  -  0.31  -  -     

Crystal Crop Protection Ltd  355.67  -  -  -     

Isec Organics Ltd.  610.93  -  -  -     

OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited  -  -  1.98  -     

(iv) Key management personnel compensation

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

 1,026.47  278.73 
 15.57  30.62 

 -  - 
Total  1,042.04  309.35 

(v)  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any 

the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at  
 March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018

a) Bank Guarantee  186.93  326.93 
b) Excise Matter with Appellate Authority  1,142.17  352.10 
c) Sales Tax / GST Matters  401.49  397.57 
d) Revenue Department  89.60  89.60 
Total  1,820.19  1,166.20 

 With respect to contingent liabilities reported at (b), (c) & (d) above, the management has taken an opinion from the legal advisors 

resources is remote.

39. COMMITMENTS
a) Commitments with respect to:

Particulars As at  
 March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018

Letter of Credits (FLC & ILC)  5,154.09  3,915.66 
  5,154.09  3,915.66 

b) Capital commitments - Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances) and 
not provided for INR 242.74 (March 31, 2018- INR 201.30).

c) Lease commitments
 Aggregate lease payments made under cancellable operating leases during the year is INR 274.98 (March 31, 2018: INR 

346.63). There were no non-cancellable operating leases.
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40. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 12,240.67  8,397.36 

Weighted average number of shares (Face value Rs 10/- each)  2,06,67,796  2,06,67,796 

(a) Basic earnings per share (INR)  59.23  40.63 

(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR)*  59.23  40.63 

41. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
 The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Particulars Note
No.

As at  
 March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018

Current

Financial assets

First charge

Trade receivables 10(a)  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Loans 10(d)  1,244.19  5.96 

10(e)  431.02  327.95 

 26,100.10  23,815.11 

Inventories 9  70,510.65  40,728.95 

Other current assets 11  897.34  569.26 

Total current assets pledged as security   97,508.09  65,113.32 

Non-Current

Financial assets

First charge

Security deposits 6(b)  127.02  160.50 

3  23,715.03  22,837.65 

Capital work-in-progress 3  1,271.42  1,268.32 

Other non-current assets 7  1,300.99  636.23 

Total non-currents assets pledged as security   26,414.46  24,902.70 

Total assets pledged as security   1,23,922.55  90,016.02 

42. 

43. 
Act) for the year ended March 31, 2019 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

i Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered 
under MSMED Act:
Principal  560.62  825.86 
Interest  6.12  - 

ii The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 
2006 along with amounts of the payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting Year.

 -  - 

iii The amount of interest due and payables for the period of delay in making payment 
(Which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year ) but without 

 1.70  - 

iv The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year. 

 4.42  - 

v The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible enterprise under section 23 
of the MSMED Act,2006.

 6.12  - 
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44. Contract assets and contract liabilities
 The following table provides information about receivables,contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with the customers:

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 Restated 

 Current  Non-current  Current  Non-current 

Trade Receivables  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Total trade receivables  24,424.89  -  23,481.20  - 

Contract assets

Loss allowance

Total contract assets  -  -  -  - 

Contract liabilities  6,228.54  -  5,664.94  - 

Total contract liabilities  6,228.54  -  5,664.94  - 

45. 

46. Information on details of loans under section 186 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014

Particulars Outstanding as at 
31st March 2019

Maximum Amount 
Outstanding during 

2018-19

Outstanding as 
at 31st March 

2018

Maximum Amount 
Outstanding 

during 2017-18

Inter Corporate Loans     

 - New Age Knowledge Solutions Ltd (for 
Business purpose)

 409.00  409.00  -  - 

 - Mentor Financial Services Pvt. Ltd (for 
Business purpose)

 818.58  818.58  -  - 

Note:  Advances to employee as per company’s policy are not considered.

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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To the Members of Insecticides (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Insecticides (India) Limited (herein referred 
to as “the Company”) and its Joint Venture- Oat & IIL India 
Laboratories Private Limited (collectively referred to as “the 
Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary 

information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated 
Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated 

give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 

Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

Principal Audit Procedures

We performed process 
walkthrough to understand the 

the revenue cycle. We tested 
internal controls in the revenue 
and trade receivables over the 
accuracy and timing of revenue 

statements.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

The Group recognizes 
revenue at the point in 
time when control of 
the goods is transferred 
to the customer at an 

consideration to which 
the Group expects to 
be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or 
services. In determining 
the transaction price 
for the sale, the Group 
considers the effects of 
variable consideration and 
consideration receivable 
from the customer.
For the year ended March 
31, 2019, the Group’s 

Loss included Sales of 
Rs. 1,19,194.54 Lakhs. 
The nature of rebates, 
discounts and sales 
returns, if any, involve 
judgment in determining 
sales revenues and 
revenue cut-off. The risk 
is, therefore, that revenue 
may not be recognized in 
the correct period. 
Refer Note No. 20 of the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Understanding the policies 
and procedures applied to 
revenue recognition, as well as 
compliance thereof, including 
an analysis of the effectiveness 
of controls related to revenue 
recognition processes 
employed by the Group.

We reviewed the revenue 
recognition policy applied by 
the Company to ensure its 
compliance with Ind-AS 115 

We performed a detailed testing 
on transactions, ensuring 
revenues were recognized 
in the correct accounting 
period. We also tested journal 
entries recognized in revenue 
focusing on unusual or irregular 
transactions. 

We validated the 
appropriateness and 
completeness of the related 
disclosures in Note No. 20 of 
the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon 
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the 
Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

process of the Group.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

effectiveness of such controls. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

statements of such entities included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of which we are the independent 
auditor. For the other entities included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, which have been audited by the 
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for 
the directions, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
Company, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 

Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

communication. 
Other Matters

venture of Rs. 40.71 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019. 

whose reports have been furnished to us by the management. 
Our opinion in so far as it relates to the affairs of such Joint 
Venture, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of section 
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture 
is based solely on the report of the other auditor. 

respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the 
other auditor.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
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explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 

Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of 

Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account and records 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 

Section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of 
its Joint Venture incorporated in India, none of the 

2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
 In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 
i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose 

impact of pending litigations on the Consolidated 

to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
ii. 

under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any; on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 

Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) by the 
Group. 

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Firm’s Registration
Number: 013338N  Number: 000756N

Devesh Parekh  Harish Gupta
Partner  Partner
Membership Number: 092160 Membership Number: 098336

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2019

Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of 
even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Insecticides (India) Limited.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 

of Insecticides (India) Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the company as of and for the year ended 

Insecticides (India) 
Limited. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are 

established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the 
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audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company have maintained, in all material 

effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control 

the company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

over Financial reporting of the Joint Venture and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act 
is not applicable as per report of the auditors of such company.

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Firm’s Registration
Number: 013338N  Number: 000756N

Devesh Parekh  Harish Gupta
Partner  Partner
Membership Number: 092160 Membership Number: 098336

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Note
No.

 As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) 3  23,715.03  22,837.65 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3  1,271.42  1,268.32 
(c) Intangible assets 4  304.95  319.32 
(d) Intangible assets under development 4  628.71  413.91 
(e) Investment in joint venture 5  860.63  820.09 
(f) Financial assets 6

(i) Investments 6(a)  388.01  831.09 
6(b)  156.84  188.60 

(g) Other non-current assets 7  1,531.34  1,087.27 
(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8  454.90  315.50 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  29,311.83  28,081.75 

2 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 9  70,510.65  40,728.95 
(b) Financial Assets 10

(i) Trade receivables 10(a)  24,424.89  23,481.20 
10(b)  894.17  1,956.32 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10(c)  29.83  54.67 
(iv) Loans 10(d)  1,244.19  5.96 

10(e)  431.02  327.95 
(c) Other current assets 11  8,708.08  5,394.23 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  106,242.83  71,949.28 
TOTAL ASSETS  135,554.66  100,031.03 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) 12  2,066.78  2,066.78 
(b) 13  64,133.60  52,717.33 
TOTAL EQUITY  66,200.38  54,784.11 
LIABILITIES

1 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities 14

(i) Borrowings 14(a)  131.60  828.41 
(b) Provisions 15  74.93  56.50 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16  1,786.87  1,884.36 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,993.40  2,769.27 

2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities 17

(i) Borrowings 17(a)  29,517.24  9,676.25 
(ii) Trade Payables 17(b)

(A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  566.74  825.86 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
      small enterprises.

 27,419.86  23,509.79 

17(c)  3,014.24  2,449.71 
(b) Provisions 18  134.16  29.27 
(c) Other current liabilities 19  6,708.64  5,986.77 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  67,360.88  42,477.65 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  135,554.66  100,031.03 

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars  Note 
No.

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018 

INCOME

Revenue from operations 20  119,194.54  110,639.42 

Other Income 21  230.77  324.11 

TOTAL INCOME  119,425.31  110,963.53 

EXPENSES

Cost of raw material and components consumed 22  102,916.79  65,140.36 

Purchase of Traded Goods  6,041.45  7,080.21 

23  (26,695.44)  4,121.97 

Excise Duty  -  3,314.30 

24  6,518.53  5,062.14 

Finance Costs 25  1,522.20  1,591.76 

Depreciation and amortization expense 26  1,968.10  1,704.59 

Other expenses 27  11,853.04  11,138.48 

TOTAL EXPENSES  104,124.67  99,153.81 

equity method
 15,300.64  11,809.72 

36  40.71  31.77 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  15,341.35  11,841.49 

Tax Expenses 29

- Current Tax  3,798.67  3,560.30 

- Deferred Tax  (738.70)  (147.94)

TOTAL TAX EXPENSES  3,059.97  3,412.36 

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  12,281.38  8,429.13 

Other comprehensive income 30

 (443.08)  520.79 

 (41.11)  6.11 

Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture accounted for using the 
 (0.23)  0.25 

Income tax relating to these items  117.65  (123.50)

Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)  (366.77)  403.65 

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)  11,914.61  8,832.78 

Earnings per equity share 41

Basic earnings per share (INR)  59.42  40.78 

Diluted earnings per share (INR)  59.42  40.78 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (REFER NOTE 12)

Particulars  Amount 

As at April 1, 2017  2,066.78 

 - 

As at March 31, 2018  2,066.78 

 - 

As at March 31, 2019  2,066.78 

(B) OTHER EQUITY (REFER NOTE 13)

Particulars Reserves and surplus  Equity 
instruments 

through 
Other Com-
prehensive 

Income 

 Other items of 
Other Compre-

hensive 
Income/ (loss) 

 Total
Other 

Equity  Securities 
premium 

 General 
reserve 

 Retained 
earnings 

Balance at April 1, 2017  10,410.18  3,201.52  30,786.67  (2.50)  (13.81)  44,382.06 

   8,429.13    8,429.13 

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)    399.47  4.18  403.65 

Total comprehensive income for the period    8,429.13  399.47  4.18  8,832.78 

Dividend paid during the year    (413.35)    (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid    (84.16)    (84.16)

Balance at March 31, 2018  10,410.18  3,201.52  38,718.29  396.97  (9.63)  52,717.33 

   12,281.38    12,281.38 

Other comprehensive income (Net of taxes)    (339.86)  (26.91)  (366.77)

Total comprehensive income for the period    12,281.38  (339.86)  (26.91)  11,914.61 

Dividend paid during the year    (413.35)    (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid    (84.99)    (84.99)

Balance at March 31, 2019  10,410.18  3,201.52  50,501.33  57.11  (36.54)  64,133.60 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

 Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 15,300.64  11,809.72 

Adjustment on account of

 - Depreciation  1,968.10  1,704.59 

 49.55  23.06 

 - Miscellaneous Expenses  6.34  6.34 

 - Interest Income  (41.07)  (32.66)

 - Dividend Income  (9.10)  (8.03)

 - Interest Expenses  1,522.20  1,591.76 

 - Bad debts written off  23.08  22.64 

 - Provision for impairment of trade receivables  123.08  101.22 

 - Derivative (gain) / loss  129.08  (212.60)

- Unrealised exchange differences  (5.52)  (25.01)

 19,066.38  14,981.03 

Adjustments for

 - (Increase)/Decrease in security deposits  33.48  (3.40)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (29,781.70)  1,848.71 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (1,089.85)  (2,443.60)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in loans  (10.65)  (5.30)

 (112.19)  96.23 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets  (3,099.49)  1,005.22 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in provisions  82.21  (44.34)

 - Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  3,650.95  4,467.24 

 404.80  45.86 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  721.87  831.38 

Cash generated from operations  (10,134.19)  20,779.03 

Less: Income tax paid  (3,179.27)  (2,624.78)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)  (13,313.46)  18,154.25 

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (3,790.50)  (2,817.76)

 46.08  16.18 

 - Interest received  41.07  32.66 

 - Proceeds from / (investment in) bank deposits  23.64  180.02 

 - Loans given  (1,227.58)  - 

 - Dividends received  8.20  6.61 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)  (4,899.09)  (2,582.29)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 - Repayment of long term borrowings  (742.59)  (1,256.18)

 - Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short term borrowings  19,832.58  (10,947.94)

 - Interest paid  (1,441.25)  (1,598.87)

 - Dividend paid  (498.34)  (497.51)

Net Cash Flow (used in) / from Financing Activities (C)  17,150.40  (14,300.50)

Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,062.15)  1,271.46 

 1,956.32  684.86 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  894.17  1,956.32 
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 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Balances with banks

On current accounts  885.34  1,948.17 

Cash on hand  8.83  8.15 

Total cash and cash equivalents  894.17  1,956.32 

Particulars As at
April 1, 2018

 Unrealised 
exchange 
difference 

 As at
March 31, 2019 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  1,759.45  (742.59)  (13.66)  1,003.20 

Short term borrowings  9,676.25  19,832.58  8.41  29,517.24 

 11,435.70  19,089.99  (5.25)  30,520.44 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2019

1. Corporate Information

 Insecticides (India) Limited (“The Company”) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act. The shares of the Company are listed in India on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange. 

is engaged in the manufacturing activities of Agro Chemicals, Pesticides and Technical Products for agriculture purposes. The 
Company caters to both domestic and international markets. 

 OAT and IIL India Laboratories Private Limited was incorporated on March 6, 2013, as per joint venture agreement dated December 

 Insecticides (India) Limited together with OAT & IIL India Lab (P) Ltd. is hereinafter referred to as the “Group”. 

2.1 Basis of preparation

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2016.

been measured at fair value or revalued amount

rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated. Figures appearing as “0.00” represent amounts below INR 500.

2.2. Basis of consolidation

 Joint venture

(a) A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net 
assets of the arrangement. Interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and thereafter accounted for using the 

receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made 
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

(d) Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s 
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment 
of the asset transferred. Where the accounting policies of joint ventures are different from those of the Group, appropriate 
adjustments are made for like transactions and events in similar circumstances to ensure conformity with the policies 
adopted by the Group.

(e) Any gain or loss on dilution arising on a reduced stake in the joint venture, but still retaining the joint control, is recognized 

Loss. The fair value of the retained interest becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of accounting for the 

(g) With respect to consolidation of OAT and IIL India Laboratories Private Limited, the Group has considered the ownership 

treated as current when it is
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a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

c) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

of assets and liabilities.

(b) Revenue recognition

 In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2018, notifying Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, which replaces Ind AS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ 

result, the comparative information has not been restated.

 The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 

 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

 Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

 Step 3: Determine the transaction price

 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

 Revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty and excludes sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) / Goods and Service Tax (GST).

 Sales of goods

from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts.

 For sale of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred at a point in time i.e. when the 

responsibility, manner of distribution, price to sell the goods. 

 Rendering of services

 Income from services are recognized as and when the services are rendered.

 In respect of Company’s Joint Venture 

 Revenue from Research & Development services are recognized when services are rendered and related cost is incurred 
over a period of time.

 Interest income

income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 

and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the 

 Export Incentives
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proceeds.

 Dividends

 Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

and capital work in progress recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria 
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant 

of addition/ deletion of the assets.

 The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain 

approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Depreciation on remaining items of property, plant 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)

10 – 15

Building 30

10

5

10

Vehicles 8-10

Leasehold improvements Over the period of lease or useful life whichever is lower

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

 Leasehold Land

 Leasehold land is amortised on straight line basis over the period of lease. No depreciation is provided for leasehold land 
when the leases are renewable at the option of the Group for a further period of 99 years at the end of the lease period of 
99 years, without / with marginal payment of further premium.

(d) Intangible assets

date i.e. April 1, 2016 which has become its deemed cost.

 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. 

at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
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 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

derecognised.

 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an 
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate technical and commercial feasibility of making the asset available for 
use or sale. 

 Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the 

 A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:-

Intangible assets Useful Life (years) Amortisation method used

Computer Software 8 Amortised on straight-line basis

Websites 2 Amortised on straight-line basis

Patents, trademarks and designs 10 Amortised on straight-line basis

(e) Borrowing costs

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.  
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(f) Foreign currencies

 Transactions and Balances

 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing rates 
prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising as a result 

the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or 

 Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings, settlement gain/loss and fair value gain/loss on derivative 

include foreign exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to the borrowings cost and capitalised with cost of assets.

(g) Fair value measurement

date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

in its highest and best use.

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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directly or indirectly observable.

unobservable.

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

 This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 33)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 6, 10, 14 and 17)

(h) Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 

 Group as a lessee

 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, 

and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

costs (See note 2.3(e)). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.

 Group as a lessor

as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(i) Inventories

 The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprise of cost 

incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition including excise duty wherever applicable. 
Fixed production overheads are based on normal capacity of production facilities.

 Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, the 

sold at or above cost.

 Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 

 Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares packing materials, trading and other products are determined 
on weighted average basis.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value 

that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 

model is used.

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for 

revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement 

best estimates.

 Contingent liabilities

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present 

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in 

 Contingent Assets

 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

services.

gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the rules of 
the Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method 

policy.

encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of the 

 Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in the 

(m) Financial instruments

instrument of another entity.
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 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

 b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

security deposits & other receivables.

 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

and

 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, 

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

 Debt instrument at FVTPL

 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as 

 In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as 
at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has designated certain debt instrument as at FVTPL.

 Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement 

 Equity investments

 Derecognition

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:
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has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated 

the Group has retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade 
receivables and bank balance 

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

within the scope of Ind AS 115

loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date.

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented 
as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces 
the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the 
gross carrying amount.

 As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables 
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and 
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Group estimates the following provision matrix at the 
reporting date:

Not due 0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days 360-720days More than 720 days

0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement 

(n) Financial liabilities 

 Initial recognition and measurement

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
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attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process. 

 This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 14 and 17

 Derecognition

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(q) Dividend 

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it 

(r) Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 

which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised 
except: 

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Loss (in other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax credit which can be carried 

net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
balance sheet.

(s) Government grants

 Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis 
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, 

 Duty free imports of raw materials under Advance License for imports as per the Import and Export Policy are matched with the 

raw material consumption.

(t) Earnings per share

period.

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 

(u) Segment reporting

evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by 

information presented.
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(v) Standards issued but not yet effective

 “Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and 

AS which the Group has not applied as they are effective from April 1, 2019:

 Ind AS-116 – Leases

lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is 
of low value and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

 Ind AS -12 Income taxes: 

recognised those past transactions or events. 

treatments under Ind AS 12. 

 Ind AS 109 – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) 
even in the case of negative compensation payments. 

 Ind AS 19 – Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

 The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service 
cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the 
re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or 

 Ind AS 23 – Borrowing Costs 

use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization 
rate on general borrowings. 

 Ind AS 28 – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

 The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-term interests in an associate 

applied.

 Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements 

 The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that 
is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that 
when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not re-measure previously held 
interests in that business.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR in ‘Lacs’, unless mentioned otherwise)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description of Assets GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 
2018

Addition Sale / 
Adjust-

ment

Balance 
as at 

March 31, 
2019

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 
2018

Depreciation for the year Balance 
as at 

March 31, 
2019

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

     Depreciation Disposal / 
adjustments

   

Freehold land  84.54  3.97  -  88.51  -  -  -  -  88.51  84.54 

Finance lease assets - Land  2,001.72  114.40  -  2,116.12  9.13  4.59  -  13.72  2,102.40  1,992.59 

Buildings  7,333.11  210.58  -  7,543.69  420.16  256.94  -  677.10  6,866.59  6,912.95 

Plant and machinery 13,563.86  2,052.87  10.38  15,606.35 1,986.49  1,238.88  2.41  3,222.96  12,383.39 11,577.37 

Roads  1,330.39  -  -  1,330.39  307.43  153.72  -  461.15  869.24  1,022.96 

 87.42  34.69  -  122.11  34.15  17.75  -  51.90  70.21  53.27 

 185.34  30.92  -  216.26  41.98  19.65  -  61.63  154.63  143.36 

 296.75  58.77  -  355.52  85.39  43.73  -  129.12  226.40  211.36 

Computers  112.41  90.35  0.18  202.58  63.04  21.72  0.07  84.69  117.89  49.37 

Vehicles  1,009.65  276.88  146.30  1,140.23  219.77  143.44  58.75  304.46  835.77  789.88 

Total 26,005.19  2,873.43  156.86  28,721.76 3,167.54  1,900.42  61.23  5,006.73  23,715.03 22,837.65 

 Capital Work In Progress

Cost Amount

As at April 1, 2018  1,268.32 

Additions  2,262.14 

Capitalised during the year (2,259.04)

As at March 31, 2019  1,271.42 

a) Capitalised borrowing costs -  Neither borrowing cost has been capitalised nor has been transferred to Capital Work in 
Progress on account of borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2019. The detail thereof is as under: 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Balance Amount included under the captioned head CWIP at the opening of the year  -  2,412.91 

Amount of interest transfer from CWIP and Capitalised in respective Assets  -  2,412.91 

Amount of interest transfer for Capitalisation under the Captioned Head - CWIP  -  - 

Balance Amount included under the captioned head CWIP at the year end  -  - 

 The weighted average rate for capitalisation of interest relating to general borrowings was NIL for the year ended March 31, 
2019 and year ended March 31, 2018.

b) Contractual obligations -

c) Capital work-in-progress - Capital work in progress majorly comprises expenditure in the course of construction at Dahej 
Plant 

d) Assets charged against borrowings -
non-current borrowings
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Description of Assets GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING 
AMOUNT

Balance 
as on 

April 01, 
2018 

Addition
 

Sale / 
Adjustment

 

Balance as 
on March 
31, 2019

 

Balance 
as on 

April 01, 
2018 

Amortisation for the year Balance 
as on 

March 31, 
2019

As on 
March 31, 

2019 

As on 
March 

31, 2018 Amortisation  Disposal / 
adjustment 

Software  133.46  18.63  -  152.09  44.67  25.61  -  70.28  81.81  88.79 

Website  -  1.65  -  1.65  -  0.42  -  0.42  1.23  - 

Patents, trademarks and 
designs

 295.35  33.03  -  328.38  64.82  41.65  -  106.47  221.91  230.53 

 Total  428.81  53.31  -  482.12  109.49  67.68  -  177.17  304.95  319.32 

Intangible assets under development

Cost Amount

As at April 1, 2018  413.91 

Additions  268.11 

Capitalised during the year  (53.31)

As at March 31, 2019  628.71 

 Intangible assets under development mainly comprises mobile application, website under development and patents for which 
registration is awaited.

5. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Investment in unquoted equity shares - Fully paid-up*

100 Each
 860.63  820.09 

Total  860.63  820.09 

 *refer note 36

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
6(A) INVESTMENTS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Investments stated at Fair Value through OCI

Investments in equity instruments - Quoted (fully paid) - Listed at Tokyo Stock 
Exchange

Joint venture company) (April 1, 2016: 18,200 shares received during the year on split 
of total 18,200 original shares)

 388.01  831.09 

Total  388.01  831.09 

 388.01  831.09 

 388.01  831.09 

6(B) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Derivative assets  -  - 

Measured at amortised cost (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise 
stated)

Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months  29.82  28.10 

Security deposits  127.02  160.50 

Total  156.84  188.60 
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7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Capital advances

-to related parties  610.93  - 

-to others  690.06  636.23 

Advances other than Capital Advances

Balances with government authorities  230.35  444.70 

Prepaid expenses  -  6.34 

Total  1,531.34  1,087.27 

8. NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Advance income tax  454.90  315.50 

[Net of provision for tax INR 3,288.29 (March 31, 2018: INR 2,532.74)]

Total  454.90  315.50 

9. INVENTORIES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

At the lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw Material {INR 2,444.18 (March 31, 2018: INR 283.69) in transit}  18,501.32  15,515.06 

Packing material {INR 10.90 (March 31, 2018: INR 1.45) in transit}  1,376.58  1,329.89 

Work-in-progress  6,742.27  3,229.09 

Stock-in-trade (Traded Goods)  2,487.46  2,959.94 

Finished goods (Manufactured) {(INR 2,183.27 (March 31, 2018: NIL) in transit}  41,237.59  17,582.85 

Stores, Spares Parts & Fuel {INR 35.84 (March 31, 2018: INR 0.96) in transit}  165.43  112.12 

Total  70,510.65  40,728.95 

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT

10(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Trade receivables  24,951.63  23,884.87 

Less: Impairment of Trade Receivables  (526.74)  (403.67)

Total  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Current portion  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Non-current portion  -  - 

Breakup of Trade Receivables

Secured, considered good  -  - 

Unsecured, considered good  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Credit Impaired  526.74  403.67 

Subtotal  24,951.63  23,884.87 

Impairment of Trade Receivables (refer note 34)  (526.74)  (403.67)

Total  24,424.89  23,481.20 

partner, a director or a member.

- Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 90 to 180 days.

- For explanations on the Group’s credit risk management processes, refer note 34 
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10(B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Balances with banks

On current accounts  885.34  1,948.17 

Cash on hand  8.83  8.15 

Total  894.17  1,956.32 

10(C) OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

In earmarked accounts

Unpaid dividend  4.05  3.52 

Deposits with remaining maturity between three and twelve months*  25.78  51.15 

Total  29.83  54.67 

 

10(D) LOANS 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees  16.61  5.96 

Inter Corporate Deposits  1,227.58  - 

Total  1,244.19  5.96 

 Nil  Nil 

10(E) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Derivative assets  4.10  14.13 

Measured at amortised cost (unsecured, considered good)

Dividend receivable  7.71  6.80 

Insurance claim recoverable  -  0.39 

Litigation charges recoverable  19.60  19.60 

Export incentive recoverable  97.33  4.98 

Interest subsidy recoverable  302.28  282.05 

Total  431.02  327.95 

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Advances to suppliers

-to related parties (refer note 38)  357.65  0.31 

-to others  522.55  551.33 

Advances to employees  17.14  17.62 

Balances with government authorities  7,683.19  4,678.72 

Prepaid expenses  127.55  146.25 

Total  8,708.08  5,394.23 

 Nil  Nil 

Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the Group is a 
Director or member.

 1.98  - 
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12. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital  Number of shares  INR 

As at April 1, 2018  2,50,00,000.00  2,500.00 

Increase/(decrease) during the year  -  - 

At March 31, 2019  2,50,00,000.00  2,500.00 

Issued equity share capital  Number of shares  INR 

  

As at April 1, 2018  2,06,67,796.00  2,066.78 

Increase/(decrease) during the year  -  - 

At March 31, 2019  2,06,67,796.00  2,066.78 

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 

assets of the Group after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

(b) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder  As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

 Number of 
Shares 

 % Held  Number of 
Shares 

 % Held 

Rajesh Aggarwal  52,92,900  25.61  52,92,900  25.61 

Pushpa Aggarwal  21,51,900  10.41  21,51,900  10.41 

Rajesh Aggarwal (HUF)  19,53,000  9.45  19,53,000  9.45 

Hari Chand Aggarwal (HUF)  14,94,000  7.23  14,94,000  7.23 

Nikunj Aggarwal  11,25,000  5.44  11,25,000  5.44 

date

got listed on May 8, 2015

13. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Retained earnings  50,501.33  38,718.29 

Securities premium  10,410.18  10,410.18 

General reserve  3,201.52  3,201.52 

 57.11  396.97 

Other items of 
 other Comprehensive 
 Income/(loss)

 (36.54)  (9.63)

Total Other Equity  64,133.60  52,717.33 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(i) Retained Earnings

Opening balance  38,718.29  30,786.67 

 12,281.38  8,429.13 

Dividend paid during the year  (413.35)  (413.35)

Tax on Dividend paid  (84.99)  (84.16)

Closing balance  50,501.33  38,718.29 

(ii) Securities premium 

Opening balance  10,410.18  10,410.18 

Additions during the year  -  - 

Closing balance  10,410.18  10,410.18 
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

(iii) General reserve

Opening balance  3,201.52  3,201.52 

Add: Appropriations  -  - 

Closing balance  3,201.52  3,201.52 

(iv) Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance  396.97  (2.50)

 (339.86)  399.47 

Closing balance  57.11  396.97 

(v) Other items of 
 other Comprehensive 
 Income/(loss)

Opening balance  (9.63)  (13.81)

 (26.91)  4.18 

Closing balance  (36.54)  (9.63)

Note 30

Total other equity  64,133.60  52,717.33 

 Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Securities premium -
aggregate amount of the premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Group may use 
this reserve for issuing fully paid-up bonus shares, buy-back of shares and for expenses in relation to issue of shares. 

b) General reserve -

2018.

c) FVTOCI equity investments -

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT

 14(a) Borrowings

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Secured

Indian Rupee loan from banks

Term loans  682.35  1,364.71 

Vehicle loans  320.85  313.28 

Foreign currency loan from banks  -  81.46 

Unsecured

Loans from other parties  -  - 

Total  1,003.20  1,759.45 

Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 17(c))  871.60  931.04 

Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet)  131.60  828.41 

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing : 

a) Indian rupee term loan

 The Indian Rupees Term Loans outstanding amounts to INR 682.35 (March 31, 2018 - INR 1,364.71) have been secured 

CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee 

installments alongwith interest rates 10.95% per annum.
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b) Foreign currency term loan

 The Foreign Currency outstanding loan amounting to NIL(March 31, 2018 - INR 81.46) has been secured by the exclusive 

Industrial Estate, Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- 

Further, the Group has entered into the derivative contract for hedging of the currency swaps and interest rate swaps.

c) Vehicle loans

 Term Loans from banks for vehicles have been secured by hypothecation of vehicles. Further, vehicles loans have been 
guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These loans 
are repayable in 36 monthly installments from the date of the loans along with interest rates ranging between 8.40% to 
10% per annum.

disclosed in note 42

15. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Provision for leave encashment  74.93  56.50 

Total  74.93  56.50 

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars  As at 
April 1, 2018 

 Charge/ 
(credit) to 
Statement 

 
and Loss 

 Charge/(credit) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income 

 MAT 
credit 

utilised 

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 (1,905.92)  303.04  -  -  (2,208.96)

Derivatives  (4.94)  (3.51)  -  -  (1.43)

Borrowings  -  -  -  -  - 

Investments  (120.57)  -  (103.22)  -  (17.35)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (2,031.43)  299.53  (103.22)  -  (2,227.74)

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions

MAT credit  -  (955.55)  -  744.43  211.12 

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables  141.06  (43.00)  -  -  184.06 

Derivatives  1.24  (41.51)  -  -  42.75 

Borrowings  4.77  1.83  -  -  2.94 

Total deferred tax assets  147.07  (1,038.23)  -  744.43  440.87 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (1,884.36)  (738.70)  (103.22)  744.43  (1,786.87)

Particulars  As at 
April 1, 2017 

 Charge/ 
(credit) to 
Statement 

 
and Loss 

 Charge/(credit) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income 

 MAT 
credit 

utilised 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 (2,025.47)  (119.55)  -  -  (1,905.92)

Derivatives  (20.24)  (15.30)  -  -  (4.94)

Borrowings  (9.92)  (9.92)  -  -  - 

Investments  0.75  -  121.32  -  (120.57)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (2,054.88)  (144.77)  121.32  -  (2,031.43)

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions

MAT credit  1,018.34  -  -  1,018.34  - 

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables  104.67  (36.39)  -  -  141.06 

Derivatives  34.64  33.40  -  -  1.24 

Borrowings  4.59  (0.18)  -  -  4.77 

Total deferred tax assets  1,162.24  (3.17)  -  1,018.34  147.07 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (892.64)  (147.94)  121.32  1,018.34  (1,884.36)

 The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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17. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

 17(a) Borrowings

Particulars  Maturity date  Interest rate  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Secured

Working Capital facilities from Banks

Loans repayable on demand

Working capital demand loans Apr 19-May 19 8.30% - 9.55%  13,400.00  5,600.00 

FCNR Loans (USD) Jul-19 7.95%  1,208.40  - 

Cash credit from banks On demand 7.90% - 10.95%  12,593.46  2,379.56 

Buyers Credit Loans (USD) Apr 19-Sep 19  3.75% - 4.05%  2,265.09  1,670.24 

 -  -  50.29  26.45 

Total    29,517.24  9,676.25 

 

guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors - Mr.Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal.

disclosed in note 42

17(b) Trade payables

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Trade payables  24,766.88  22,944.79 

Trade payables to related parties (refer note 38)  3,219.72  1,390.86 

Total  27,986.60  24,335.65 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 (A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  566.74  825.86 

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enter-
prises.

 27,419.86  23,509.79 

Total  27,986.60  24,335.65 

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on agreed terms.

 Refer note 44 for disclosure pertaining to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (note 14(a))  871.60  931.04 

Security deposits received from customers  633.13  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure  134.57  115.67 

Interest accrued on borrowings  102.47  21.79 

Employee payables

- to related parties (refer note 38)  165.40  15.85 

- to others  980.69  866.20 

Unpaid dividend account  4.05  3.52 

Derivative liabilities  122.33  3.27 

Total  3,014.24  2,449.71 
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18. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Provision for gratuity  130.93  27.10 

Provision for leave encashment  3.23  2.17 

Total  134.16  29.27 

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Provident Fund (including admin charges)  293.10  239.21 

Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance  36.16  35.58 

Total  329.26  274.79 

(B) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

(i) Gratuity

gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Group provides for the 
liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuation by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method.

the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

-
tions for the Group’s plan are shown below:

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Rate of Discounting 7.79% 7.86%

Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality Rate During Employment  IALM (2006-08)  IALM (2006-08) 

follows:
 As at 

March 31, 2019 
 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 526.06  458.93 

Interest cost  41.35  34.51 

Current service cost  61.09  56.67 

Past service cost  -  12.00 

 (40.14)  (28.65)

Actuarial (gain) / loss

 3.95  (17.13)

Due to change in experience  35.59  9.73 

 627.90  526.06 

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows:  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period  498.97  375.38 

Interest Income  39.22  28.22 

Contributions by the Employer  0.50  125.30 

 (40.14)  (28.65)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income  (1.58)  (1.28)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period  496.97  498.97 
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 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 (627.90)  (526.06)

Fair value of plan assets  496.97  498.97 

Plan asset / (liability)  (130.93)  (27.09)

* Includes INR 3.55 (March 31, 2018 - INR 1.93) transfer to Research & Development Expenditure

 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Net interest cost  2.13  6.29 

Current service cost  61.09  56.67 

Past service cost  -  12.00 

Net expense *  63.22  74.96 

* Includes INR 3.55 (March 31, 2018 - INR 1.93) transfer to Research & Development Expenditure

Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 39.54  (7.40)

Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income  1.58  1.28 

Total expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income  41.12  (6.12)

Major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the 
total plan assets

As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

Total In %  Total  In % 

Insurance fund  496.97 100%  498.97 100%

Total  496.97 100%  498.97 100%

below:
 Year ended 

March 31, 2019 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 627.90  526.06 

Change in discount rate

Increase by 1%  (52.56)  (45.42)

Decrease by 1%  61.48  53.15 

Change in rate of salary increase

Increase by 1%  61.74  53.29 

Decrease by 1%  (53.54)  (46.19)

Change in rate of employee turnover

Increase by 1%  14.09  12.97 

Decrease by 1%  (16.11)  (14.77)

 As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

 11 years  11 years 

Within next 12 months  68.46  51.04 

Between 1 and 5 years  145.50  126.54 

Between 5 and 10 years  257.79  210.64 

More than 10 years  1,107.12  974.10 

(C) RISK EXPOSURE
 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value 

depending on the duration of asset.

As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.
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by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this 

securities, and other debt instruments.

Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

have any longevity risk.

 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance Group and a default will 
wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

Advances from customers  6,228.54  5,664.94 

Statutory dues  480.10  321.83 

Total  6,708.64  5,986.77 

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Sale of products (including excise duty) *

Finished goods  119,587.08  110,522.18 

Traded goods  10,103.77  10,798.84 

Less : Discount & Rebate  (11,419.81)  (11,267.04)

 118,271.04  110,053.98 

Other operating revenue

Revenue from Job Work  196.91  136.31 

Sale of scrap  62.94  27.39 

GST Refund - Budgetery Support Scheme **  663.65  421.74 

Total revenue from operations  119,194.54  110,639.42 

 * Sale of goods includes excise duty collected from customers of INR NIL (March 31, 2018: INR 3,314.30). Sale of goods net of excise 
duty is INR 1,18,271.04 (March 31, 2018: INR 1,06,739.68). Revenue from operations for periods up to June 30, 2017 includes excise 
duty. From July 1, 2017 onwards the excise duty and most indirect taxes in India have been replaced with Goods and Service Tax 
(GST). The Group collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations. In view of 
the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2019 is not comparable with the year 
ended March 31, 2018.

 ** As per the budgetary support scheme, eligible units (Samba and Udhampur in Jammu & Kashmir) are entitled to receive refund of 
the Goods and Services Tax paid by the unit.

21. OTHER INCOME

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest income

Fixed deposits with banks  5.67  8.40 

Other assets  35.40  24.26 

comprehensive income*
 9.10  8.03 

Other non-operating income

Export Incentive  156.40  45.78 

Miscellaneous income  24.20  25.04 

Net gain on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL  -  212.60 

Total other income  230.77  324.11 
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22. COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Raw Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  15,515.06  13,224.12 

Add: Purchases  96,225.25  60,510.62 

 111,740.31  73,734.74 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  18,501.32  15,515.06 

Cost of raw material consumed  93,238.99  58,219.68 

Packing Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,329.89  1,357.47 

Add: Purchases  9,724.49  6,893.10 

 11,054.38  8,250.57 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,376.58  1,329.89 

Cost of Packing material consumed  9,677.80  6,920.68 

Total Cost of raw material and components consumed  102,916.79  65,140.36 

23. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods  41,237.59  17,582.85 

 6,742.27  3,229.09 

Traded goods  2,487.46  2,959.94 

 50,467.32  23,771.88 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods  17,582.85  20,156.69 

 3,229.09  4,546.82 

Traded goods  2,959.94  3,190.34 

 23,771.88  27,893.85 

Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (26,695.44)  4,121.97 

Details of inventory  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Traded goods

Powder  630.55  696.97 

 1,071.97  1,902.00 

Granules  784.94  360.97 

Total  2,487.46  2,959.94 

Finished goods

 26,974.86  9,522.97 

Powder  3,939.65  1,574.52 

Granules  6,723.55  1,936.08 

Technicals  3,599.53  4,549.28 

Total  41,237.59  17,582.85 

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars Note  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Salaries, wages and bonus  5,960.51  4,564.79 

Contribution to provident and other funds 18  329.32  274.85 

Gratuity expense 18  59.67  73.03 

Staff welfare expenses  169.03  149.47 

  6,518.53  5,062.14 
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25. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest on term loans and ECBs  155.57  244.71 

Interest on CC Limits, buyer’s credit and demand loans  1,041.45  1,143.11 

Interest (Others)  41.50  46.68 

Other borrowings costs

Bank charges  283.68  157.26 

 1,522.20  1,591.76 

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Depreciation of tangible assets 3  1,900.42  1,639.98 

Amortization of intangible assets 4  67.68  64.61 

Total depreciation and amortization expense   1,968.10  1,704.59 

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Note 
No.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Consumption of stores and spares  621.05  497.86 

Power and fuel Expenses  1,779.11  1,356.64 

Transport charges  3,076.20  3,145.48 

Repairs and Maintenance  -  - 

Buildings  5.24  12.92 

Plant & Machinery  25.67  54.08 

Others  246.17  220.78 

Pollution Control Expenses  35.27  105.43 

Advertising and sales promotion  750.24  1,611.22 

Royalty  214.60  226.83 

Commission  607.97  554.12 

Travelling and conveyance  1,380.81  1,124.14 

Rent (Including Lease Rental)  274.98  346.63 

Insurance  66.56  80.38 

Communication expenses  37.01  41.54 

Printing and Stationery  47.25  41.93 

Legal and Professional Fees  428.93  244.27 

Director Sitting Fees  5.00  7.41 

Payment to Auditors 27(a)  33.87  31.01 

Electricity & Water Charges  58.35  51.45 

Rates and taxes  192.43  67.66 

Security Charges  91.37  88.63 

Research & Development Expenses 28  605.86  419.88 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  49.55  23.06 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 27(b)  171.05  148.78 

Provision for impairment of trade receivables  123.08  101.22 

Net losses on fair value changes

Derivatives at FVTPL  129.09  - 

Exchange difference (net)  394.29  152.85 

Bad debts written off  23.08  22.64 

Miscellaneous Expenses  378.96  359.64 

Total other expenses   11,853.04  11,138.48 



151INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

27(A)  DETAILS OF PAYMENT TO AUDITORS (EXCLUDING TAXES)

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

As auditor

Statutory Audit Fees  30.00  26.00 

Tax Audit Fees  -  4.00 

In other capacity

 Reimbursement of expenses  3.87  1.01 

Total  33.87  31.01 

27(B) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Group. The Group’s policy covers 

current as well as proposed CSR activities to be undertaken by the Group and examining their alignment with Schedule VII of 
the Act.

 The Group proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which include promoting Education, green initiatives, and 
facilities for senior citizens, vocational & entrepreneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age homes & women hostels, art 
and culture, destitute care and rehabilitation, rural development projects and others. 

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

read with Schedule VII thereof by the Group
 166.63  129.38 

 (171.05)  (148.78)

Amount unspent  -  - 

Amount spent during the year on:

- in cash  -  - 

- yet to be paid in cash  -  - 

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above

- in cash  171.05  148.78 

- yet to be paid in cash  -  - 

Total  171.05  148.78 

 The entire amount is spent through the IIL foundation, which is a related party. 

28. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

(i) Revenue Expenditure :

(a) Employee cost  187.41  128.45 

(b) Cost of material & testing charges  0.84  8.63 

(c) Other R&D expenditure  -  - 

(d) Consultancy charges to OAT & IIL  276.54  262.36 

(ii) Capital Expenditure  0.40  145.37 

Total  465.19  544.81 

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
 This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax expense, shows how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and 

non-deductible items.
(A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Current tax

 4,047.08  3,314.81 

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  (248.41)  245.49 

Total current tax expense  3,798.67  3,560.30 

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets  299.53  (144.77)

(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities  (82.68)  (3.17)

MAT Credit entitlement of earlier periods  (955.55)  - 

 (738.70)  (147.94)

Income tax expense  3,059.97  3,412.36 
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(B) RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE AND THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT MULTIPLIED BY THE INDIA’S TAX RATE

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 15,300.64  11,809.72 

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.944%  5,346.66  4,087.11 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure  (33.10)  (99.19)

Deduction on account of tax holiday period  (1,194.13)  (833.72)

Other items  144.50  12.67 

Adjustments for MAT Credit entitlement of earlier periods  (955.55)  - 

Adjustments for current tax of earlier periods  (248.41)  245.49 

Income tax expense  3,059.97  3,412.36 

30. COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)

 During the year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars FVTOCI -equity 
instruments

 Total 

 -  4.00  4.00 

 399.47  -  399.47 

Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture  -  0.18  0.18 

Total  399.47  4.18  403.65 

 During the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars FVTOCI -equity 
instruments

 Total 

 -  (26.74)  (26.74)

 (339.86)  -  (339.86)

Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture  -  (0.17)  (0.17)

Total  (339.86)  (26.91)  (366.77)

31. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

 Estimates and assumptions

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a 

were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes 

 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal and other 
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The 

the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

 Taxes

 There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination 

the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax determination is made. The assessment of probability involves 
estimation of a number of factors including future taxable income. 

 The Group assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables.

 The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix 



153INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2018-19

is based on its histroically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking 
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 

model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, 
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in India.

rates in India. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 18.

uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the 
end of each reporting period. 

 Interest in joint venture

 OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited (OAT & IIL) is a private company in which the parent company currently owns 20% of 
the ownership interest. As per the joint venture agreement between the parent company and OAT Agrio Co. Ltd, control over the 
“relevant activities” of OAT & IIL is exercised jointly by both the companies. OAT & IIL is structured as a separate legal entity and both 

a joint venture.

32. HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

 Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

 The Group uses full currency cum interest rate swap and foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to manage some 

underlying transactions and with the intention to reduce the foreign exchange risk of expected purchases.

Nature of instrument As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Amount 
outstanding 

USD (in Lacs)

Amount 
outstanding 

INR

Amount 
outstanding 

USD (in Lacs)

Amount 
outstanding 

INR

Hedged foreign currency exposures

Interest Rate Swaps (refer note below)  -  -  0.02  1.33 

Full Currency Interest Rate Swap contracts - payable 
(refer note below)

 -  -  1.25  67.81 

Forward contract - Buy

In respect of foreign letters of credit  52.34  3,708.72  4.50  292.36 

In respect of import bills accepted  -  -  1.42  91.07 

In respect of buyer’s credit  17.89  1,265.12  2.50  162.60 

 70.23  4,973.84  9.69  615.17 

 Note:

 Hedging against the underlying INR borrowings by which:

 i) Group will receive Principal in INR and pay in foreign Currency
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 Unhedged foreign currency exposures

a)  Payables

Buyer’s credit (including interest)  15.21  1,051.61  23.29  1,518.04 

Letters of credit  129.16  8,932.93  200.51  13,066.93 

Trade payables  -  -  4.43  288.91 

 144.37  9,984.54  228.23  14,873.88 

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Particulars Note 
No.

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

(i) Financial instruments by category FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
cost

a) Financial assets - Non-current

Investments 6(a)

 -  388.01  -  -  831.09  - 

Security deposits 6(b)  -  -  127.02  -  -  160.50 

Deposits having maturity of more than twelve
months

6(b)  -  -  29.82  -  -  28.10 

b) Financial assets - Current

Trade receivables 10(a)  -  -  24,424.89  -  -  23,481.20 

10(b)  -  -  894.17  -  -  1,956.32 

Other bank balances 10(c)  -  -  29.83  -  -  54.67 

Loans 10(d)  -  -  1,244.19  -  -  5.96 

Derivative assets 10(e)  4.10  14.13  -  - 

Dividend receivable 10(e)  -  -  7.71  -  -  6.80 

Insurance claim recoverable 10(e)  -  -  -  -  -  0.39 

Litigation charges recoverable 10(e)  -  -  19.60  -  -  19.60 

Export incentive recoverable 10(e)  -  -  97.33  -  -  4.98 

Interest subsidy recoverable 10(e)  -  -  302.28  -  -  282.05 

 4.10  388.01  27,176.84  14.13  831.09  26,000.57 

c) Financial liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings 14(a)  -  -  131.60  -  -  828.41 

d) Financial liabilities - Current

Borrowings 17(a)  -  -  29,517.24  -  -  9,676.25 

Trade payables 17(b)  -  -  27,986.60  -  -  24,335.65 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 17(c)  -  -  871.60  -  -  931.04 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  -  -  633.13  -  -  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  -  -  134.57  -  -  115.67 

Interest accrued on borrowings 17(c)  -  -  102.47  -  -  21.79 

Employee payables 17(c)  -  -  1,146.09  -  -  882.05 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  -  -  4.05  -  -  3.52 

Derivative liabilities 17(c)  122.33  -  -  3.27  -  - 

 122.33  -  60,527.35  3.27  -  37,286.75 

(ii) Fair value hierarchy

 (a) recognised and measured at fair value and 

instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the 
table.
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - 
recurring fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTOCI

 388.01  -  -  831.09  -  - 

Financial assets at FVTPL

-Derivative assets  -  4.10  -  -  14.13  - 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

-Derivative liabilities  -  122.33  -  -  3.27  - 

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised 
cost for which fair values are disclosed

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Security deposits  127.02  -  -  160.50 

Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months  29.82  -  28.10  - 

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  967.88  -  1,739.79  - 

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Level 1:

reporting period.

Level 2:

Level 3:

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

yield curves.
c) the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the 

balance sheet date.
d) the fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.

rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Particulars Note
No.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

Financial assets
-Security deposits* 6(b)  127.02  127.02  160.50  160.50 
-Deposits having maturity of more than twelve months* 6(b)  29.82  29.82  28.10  28.10 
Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a)  1,003.20  967.88  1,759.45  1,739.79 

being calculated based on the effective interest rates. 
 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans, other receivables, short term borrowings, security deposits 

same as fair value due to their short term maturities.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FVTOCI investments and enters into derivative transactions.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk

at amortised cost.

Ageing analysis
credit limits

Borrowings and other liabilities
forecasting

Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities 

Market risk - foreign exchange risk
liabilities not denominated in Indian 
rupee (INR) 

forecasting 
b) Sensitivity 
analysis

a) Forward exchange contracts 
b) Foreign currency options 
c) Currency swaps

Market risk - interest rate risk Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity 
analysis

Interest rate swaps

Market risk - security prices Sensitivity 
analysis

 The Group has formulated the Risk Management Policy whose objective is to ensure sustainable business expansion with stability, 
and to promote an upbeat approach in risk management process by eliminating risk. In order to achieve this key objective, this policy 
provides a prepared and well-organized approach to manage the various types of risk associated with day to day business of the 

A) Credit risk

(i) Credit risk management
a) Trade receivables 

 Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group 

trends, and analysis of historical data and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. New 
customers are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms are 
offered. Sale limits are established for each customers and reviewed periodically.

increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and 
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

of customer in the Group.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is provided in note 10(a)

b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

 Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group’s management in accordance with the policy of the Group. 
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group’s management on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the 

 The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

Category Description of category Basis for recognition of expected credit loss 
provision

Loans to employees 
and Inter Corporate 

deposits

Security 
deposits

Trade 
receivables

negligible credit risk 
Assets where the counter-party has strong 
capacity to meet the obligations and where 
the risk of default is negligible or nil

12-month expected 
credit loss

12-month 
expected 
credit loss

Lifetime 
expected 

credit losses
Quality assets, low 
credit risk

Assets where there is low risk of default 

capacity to meet the obligations and where 

the past
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Year ended March 31, 2019

(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

Particulars Category Description of category Asset 
group

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Expected 
probability 
of default

Expected 
credit 
losses

Carrying 
amount 
net of 

impairment 
provision

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

assets, 
negligible 
credit risk

Assets where the counter-party 
has strong capacity to meet the 
obligations and where the risk 
of default is negligible or nil

Loans to 
employees 
and Inter 
Corporate 
Deposits

 
1,244.19 

0%  -  1,244.19 

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

assets, 
negligible 
credit risk

Assets where the counter-party 
has strong capacity to meet the 
obligations and where the risk 
of default is negligible or nil

Security 
deposits

 127.02 0%  -  127.02 

Ageing Not due 0-90 
days 

past due

90-180 
days 

past due

180-360 
days past 

due

360-720 
days 

past due

More than 
 720 days 
past due

Total

Gross carrying amount 10,546.96  8,909.24  4,454.75  379.15  408.80  252.73  24,951.63 

Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (Loss 
allowance provision)

 10.56  17.82  22.27  18.96  204.40  252.73  526.74 

Carrying amount of trade 
receivables (net of impairment)

10,536.40  8,891.42  4,432.48  360.19  204.40  -  24,424.89 

Year ended March 31, 2018 
(a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits 

Particulars Category Description of category Asset 
group

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Expected 
probability 
of default

Expected 
credit 
losses

Carrying 
amount net of 

impairment 
provision

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

High 

assets, 
negligible 
credit risk

Assets where the counter-
party has strong capacity 
to meet the obligations and 
where the risk of default is 
negligible or nil

Loans to 
employees 
and Inter 
Corporate 
Deposits

 5.96 0%  -  5.96 

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses 

High 

assets, 
negligible 
credit risk

Assets where the counter-
party has strong capacity 
to meet the obligations and 
where the risk of default is 
negligible or nil

Security 
deposits

 160.50 0%  -  160.50 

Ageing Not due 0-90 
days 

past due

90-180 
days 

past due

180-360 
days past 

due

360-720 
days 

past due

More than 
 720 days 
past due

Total

Gross carrying amount  13,616.98  6,473.00  2,950.03  333.40  331.54  179.92  23,884.87 

Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.20% 0.50% 5.00% 50.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (Loss 
allowance provision)

 13.62  12.95  14.75  16.67  165.77  179.92  403.67 

Carrying amount of trade 
receivables (net of impairment)

 13,603.36  6,460.05  2,935.28  316.73  165.77  -  23,481.20 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade receivables

Loss allowance on March 31, 2018  403.67 

Changes in loss allowance  123.07 

Loss allowance on March 31, 2019  526.74 
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B) Liquidity risk

liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

 

Short-term Bank facilities.

(i) Financing arrangements

 The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities subject to the reconcilation at the end of the reporting 
period :

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Floating rate

Short term borrowings  17,589.26  36,491.59 

 

As at March 31, 2019 Note
No.

Within 1 
year

Between 1 
and 5 years

More than 5 
years

 Total 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a)  871.60  131.60  -  1,003.20 

Short term borrowings 17(a)  29,517.24  -  -  29,517.24 

Trade payables 17(b)  27,986.60  -  -  27,986.60 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  633.13  -  -  633.13 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  134.57  -  -  134.57 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17(c)  102.47  -  -  102.47 

Employee payables 17(c)  1,146.09  -  -  1,146.09 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  4.05  -  -  4.05 

Derivative liabilities 17(c)  122.33  -  -  122.33 

Total   60,518.08  131.60  -  60,649.68 

As at March 31, 2018 Note
No.

 Within 1 
year 

 Between 1 
and 5 years 

 More than 5 
years 

 Total 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 14(a)  931.04  828.41  -  1,759.45 

Short term borrowings 17(a)  9,676.25  -  -  9,676.25 

Trade payables 17(b)  24,335.65  -  -  24,335.65 

Security deposits received from customers 17(c)  492.37  -  -  492.37 

Creditors for capital expenditure 17(c)  115.67  -  -  115.67 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17(c)  21.79  -  -  21.79 

Employee payables 17(c)  882.05  -  -  882.05 

Unpaid dividend account 17(c)  3.52  -  -  3.52 

Derivative liabilities 17(c)  3.27  -  -  3.27 

Total   36,461.61  828.41  -  37,290.02 

C) Market risk

commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and 

(i) Foreign currency risk

foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). 
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 When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match 

currency swaps and forwards. 

 At March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 the Group’s hedge position is stated in Note 32. This foreign currency risk is hedged by 
using foreign currency forward contracts and full currency interest rate swaps.”

 Sensitivity

 The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and JPY exchange rates, with all other 

liabilities.

Particulars

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

USD sensitivity

INR/USD - increase by 1% (March 31, 2018: 1%)  (99.85)  (148.74)

INR/USD - decrease by 1% (March 31, 2018: 1%)  99.85  148.74 

Impact on other comprehensive income

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

JPY sensitivity [with respect to investment in equity shares of OAT 
Agrio Co. Ltd. (company listed on Tokyo Stock exchange)]

INR/JPY - increase by 5% (March 31, 2018: 5%)  19.40  41.55 

INR/JPY - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2018: 5%)  (19.40)  (41.55)

(ii) Interest rate risk

in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s 

to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(a) Interest rate risk exposure
 The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

Variable rate borrowings
Short term borrowings  29,517.24  9,676.25 
Long term borrowings (including current maturities)  25.84  97.75 

Fixed rate borrowings - Long term (including current maturities)  977.36  1,661.70 
Total borrowings  30,520.44  11,435.70 

 As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following long term variable rate borrowings (including current maturities) 
and interest rate swap contracts outstanding:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Interest 
rates

Balance % of total 
loans

Interest rates Balance % of total 
loans

Bank borrowings 8.50% - 
10.00%

 25.84 0.08% Libor + 3%, 
8.50% - 11.00%

 97.75 0.85%

Cross currency interest rate swaps (notional principal 
amount)

 -  - 11.75%  (81.46) 0.71%

  25.84 0.08%   16.29 0.14%

(b) Sensitivity

sensitivity is not disclosed.

(iii) Price risk

 (a) Exposure
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 (b) Sensitivity

will increase or decrease other comprehensive income by INR 38.80 (March 31, 2018: INR 83.11)

35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk management

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and 

capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 
shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. For the purpose 

Particulars Note No.  As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

Total debt 14(a),17(a),17(c)  30,520.44  11,435.70 

10(b)  (894.17)  (1,956.32)

Net debt  29,626.27  9,479.38 

Total capital 12,13  66,200.38  54,784.11 

Capital and net debt  95,826.65  64,263.49 

Gearing ratio 31% 15%

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2019 & 
March 31, 2018

 In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 

(b) Dividends

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018 

(i) Dividends paid on equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019 of INR 2 (March 31, 2018 : INR 
2) per fully paid share

 413.35  413.35 

(ii) Dividends on equity shares not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended 

INR 2). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing annual general meeting

 413.35  413.35 

approved for issue, but are not recognised as a liability amounts to INR 84.97 (March 31, 2018: INR 84.97).

36. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

a) Interests in joint venture

 Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at March 31, 2019. The entity listed below has share capital consisting solely 

business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. 

Name of entity Place of 
business

% of 
ownership 

interest

Relationship Status Accounting 
method

Carrying amount

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2018

OAT & IIL India Laboratories 
Private Limited

India 20% Joint venture Audited
method

 860.63  820.09 

 

b) Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets in respect of joint venture

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Share of commitments in respect of unpaid preference dividend of joint 
venture

0.00 0.00
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Summarised balance sheet OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Current assets

 1,018.91  1,183.34 

Other assets  1,201.81  877.54 

Total current assets  2,220.72  2,060.88 

Total non-current assets  2,656.98  2,320.72 

Total assets  4,877.70  4,381.60 

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables)  91.76  38.72 

Other liabilities  375.87  167.06 

Total current liabilities  467.63  205.78 

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables)  -  - 

Other liabilities  106.91  75.37 

Total non-current liabilities  106.91  75.37 

Net assets  4,303.16  4,100.45 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Opening net assets  4,100.45  3,940.73 

 203.55  158.85 

Other comprehensive income  (0.84)  0.88 

Closing net assets  4,303.16  4,100.46 

Group’s share in % 20% 20%

Carrying amount  860.63  820.09 

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations  1,397.56  1,278.68 

Interest income  116.60  100.76 

Other income  6.07  2.17 

Total revenue  1,520.23  1,381.61 

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed  52.06  - 

 531.50  476.22 

Finance costs  0.37  0.28 

Depreciation & amortisation expenses  207.26  211.39 

Other expenses  411.36  463.66 

Total expenses  1,202.55  1,151.55 

 317.68  230.06 

Tax expense  114.13  71.21 

 203.55  158.85 

Other comprehensive income  (0.84)  0.88 

Total comprehensive income  202.71  159.73 
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37. SEGMENT INFORMATION

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro-chemicals comprising of technical and formulation, 
hence there is one operating segment.

 Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Group are mentioned below:-

 a) Information about geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Within India  112,249.80  106,640.75 

Outside India  6,021.24  3,413.23 

Total revenue  118,271.04  110,053.98 

 The basis for attributing revenues from external customer is based on the country of domicile of the respective customers.

b) Revenue from Major Customers: There is no customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Group’s total 
revenue.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship:-
 a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
  1. Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal - Chairman
  2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal - Managing Director
  3. Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal - Whole-time Director

  5. Sh. Sandeep Kumar - Group Secretary
 b) Independent directors
  1. Sh. Virjesh Kumar Gupta
  2. Sh. Navin Shah
  3. Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan
  4. Sh. Deepak Gupta (appointed w.e.f. April 30, 2016 & resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2018)
  5. Sh Vinod Kumar Mittal
 c) Relatives of KMPs
  1. Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal
  2. Smt. Sonia Aggarwal
  3. Smt. Anju Aggarwal
  4. Smt Pushpa Aggarwal
  5. Smt. Kritika Aggarwal
 d) Enterprises over which the Group exercises joint control
  1. OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited
 
  1. Paras Agro Industries
  2. ISEC Organics Ltd.
  3. Evergreen Mineral Industries
  4. Valve & Phneumaticals
  5. Vinod Metals Industries
  6. Crystal Crop Protection Pvt. Ltd.
  7. HPM Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd.
  8. Crop Care Federation of India
  9. IIL foundation
  10. Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:- 

Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

Entities over 
which the Group 
exercises joint 

control

Key Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Independent 
Directors

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019 

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018 

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018
Advertisement expense  0.16  1.21  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  0.16  1.21     -     
Consultancy expenses  -  -  -  -  -  -  9.76  8.56  -  - 
Sonia Aggarwal        9.76  8.56   
Deputation fee income  -  -  25.99  24.52  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited    25.99  24.52       
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Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

Entities over 
which the Group 
exercises joint 

control

Key Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Independent 
Directors

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019 

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018 

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018
Membership & Subscription expense  8.26  7.63  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  8.26  7.63         
Purchase of Capital & Consumabable Goods  85.99  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Valves & Pneumatics  0.29  -         
Vinod Metal Industries  85.70  -         
Sales of Finished Goods  5,589.18  982.22  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  2,800.56  460.47         
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  427.19  209.49         
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited  2,361.43  312.26         
Purchases of Traded Goods  420.70  2,762.39  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  -  2,137.15         
Evergreen Mineral Industries  -  26.88         
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  420.70  577.92         
Paras Agro Industries  -  18.91         
Valves & Pneumatics  -  1.53         
Purchases of Raw Material  9,039.97  162.17  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  2,721.02  -         
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  913.37  -         
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited  5,405.58  82.39         
Vinod Metal Industries  -  79.78         
Other Expenses  17.70  8.26  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  17.70  8.26         
R & D Expenses  -  -  329.20  306.65  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited   329.20  306.65       
Rent paid  69.41  67.32  -  -  -  -  2.56  2.40  -  - 
ISEC Organics Ltd  69.41  67.32   -   -  -  -   
Smt. Pushpa Aggarwal  -  -   -   -  2.56  2.40   
Rental Income  -  -  -  4.67  -  -  -  -  -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited    -  4.67       

Particulars
 

Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

Entities over 
which the Group 
exercises joint 

control

Key Management 
Personnel 

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Independent 
Directors

 Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019 

 Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018 

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2018
Remuneration paid  -  -  -  - 1,042.04  309.35  44.83  29.27  -  - 
Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal      478.98  124.01     
Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal      478.80  103.30     
Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal      44.23  41.28     
Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal      31.40  33.28     
Sh. Sandeep Kumar      8.63  7.48     
Smt. Anju Aggarwal        12.65  11.11   
Smt. Kritika Aggarwal        12.60  -   
Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal        19.58  18.16   
Contribution to CSR  171.05  148.78  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
IIL foundation  171.05  148.78         
Sitting fees  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5.00  7.00 
Sh. Vinod Kumar Mittal          1.25  1.50 
Sh. Deepak Gupta          -  0.25 
Sh. Jayaraman Swaminathan          1.50  2.50 
Sh. Navin Shah          1.00  1.25 
Sh. Virjesh Kumar Gupta          1.25  1.50 
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(iii) Balance outstanding with related parties

Particulars Enterprises 
over which key 
management 

personnel and 
their relatives have 

 Entities over which 
the Group exercises 

joint control 

 Key Management 
Personnel 

 Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 As at 
March 31, 

2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 

2018 

 As at 
March 31, 

2019 

 As at 
March 31, 

2018 

 As at 
March 

31, 2019 

 As at 
March 

31, 2018 
Remuneration payable  -  -  -  -  162.55  13.95  2.85  1.90 
Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal      76.81  5.16  -  - 

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal      80.91  4.39  -  - 

Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal      2.24  1.99  -  - 

Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal      -  -  1.20  1.05 

Smt. Kritika Aggarwal      -  -  0.79  - 

Smt. Anju Aggarwal      -  -  0.86  0.85 

Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal      1.77  1.71  -  - 

Sh. Sandeep Kumar      0.82  0.70  -  - 

Payables  3,218.97  1,372.77  -  17.43  -  -  0.75  0.66 
Vinod Metal Industries  30.70  35.32  -  -    -  - 
Valves & Pneumatics  0.29  -  -  -    -  - 
Crystal Crop Protection Pvt Ltd  -  1,247.66  -  -    -  - 
Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd  2,156.09  -       
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  1,031.73  82.17  -  -    -  - 
ISEC Organics Ltd  -  0.06  -  -    -  - 
Crop Care Federation of India  0.16  7.56  -  -    -  - 
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited  -  -  -  17.43    -  - 
Smt. Sonia Aggarwal  -  -  -  -    0.75  0.66 

Receivables  1,215.17  118.36  -  -  -  -  -  - 
HPM Chemical & Fertilizers Limited  143.31  -       
Crystal Crop Protection Ltd  699.97  -       
Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd  371.89  118.36       
Advances given  966.60  0.31  1.98  -  -  -  -  - 
Evergreen Mineral Industries  -  0.31  -  -     
Crystal Crop Protection Ltd  355.67  -  -  -     
Isec Organics Ltd.  610.93  -  -  -     
OAT & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited  -  -  1.98  -     

(iv) Key management personnel compensation

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

 1,026.47  278.73 

 15.57  30.62 

 -  - 

Total  1,042.04  309.35 

(v) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any 

the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

a) Bank Guarantee  186.93  326.93 

b) Excise Matter with Appellate Authority  1,142.17  352.10 

c) Sales Tax / GST Matters  401.49  397.57 

d) Revenue Department  89.60  89.60 

Total  1,820.19  1,166.20 

 With respect to contingent liabilities reported at (b), (c) & (d) above, the management has taken an opinion from the legal advisors 

resources is remote.
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40. COMMITMENTS

a) Commitments with respect to:

Particulars As at  
 March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018

Letter of Credits (FLC & ILC)  5,154.09  3,915.66 

  5,154.09  3,915.66 

b) Capital commitments - Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances) and 
not provided for INR 242.74 (March 31, 2018- INR 201.30).

c) Lease commitments

 Aggregate lease payments made under cancellable operating leases during the year is INR 274.98 (March 31, 2018: INR 
346.63). There were no non-cancellable operating leases.

41. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 12,281.38  8,429.13 

Weighted average number of shares (Face value Rs 10/- each)  20,667,796  20,667,796 

(a) Basic earnings per share (INR)  59.42  40.78 

(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR)*  59.42  40.78 

 

42. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

 The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Particulars Note
No.

As at  
 March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018

Current

Financial assets

First charge

Trade receivables 10(a)  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Loans 10(d)  1,244.19  5.96 

10(e)  431.02  327.95 

 26,100.10  23,815.11 

Inventories 9  70,510.65  40,728.95 

Other current assets 11  897.34  569.26 

Total current assets pledged as security   97,508.09  65,113.32 

Non-Current

Financial assets

First charge

Security deposits 6(b)  127.02  160.50 

3  23,715.03  22,837.65 

Capital work-in-progress 3  1,271.42  1,268.32 

Other non-current assets 7  1,300.99  636.23 

Total non-currents assets pledged as security   26,414.46  24,902.70 

Total assets pledged as security   123,922.55  90,016.02 

43.

44.
Act) for the year ended March 31, 2019 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been 
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 

i Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered 
under MSMED Act:

Principal  560.62  825.86 

Interest  6.12  - 

ii The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006 along with amounts of the payments made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting Year.  -  - 

iii The amount of interest due and payables for the period of delay in making payment 
(Which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year ) but without 

 1.70  - 

iv The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year.  4.42  - 

v The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible enterprise under section 
23 of the MSMED Act,2006.  6.12  - 

45. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

 The following table provides information about receivables,contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with the customers :

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2019 

 As at 
March 31, 2018 Restated

 Current  Non-current  Current  Non-current 

Trade Receivables  24,424.89  23,481.20 

Total trade receivables  24,424.89  -  23,481.20  - 

Contract assets

Loss allowance

Total contract assets  -  -  -  - 

Contract liabilities  6,228.54  -  5,664.94  - 

Total contract liabilities  6,228.54  -  5,664.94  - 

46.

47. Information on details of loans under section 186 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

Particulars Outstanding 
as at 31st 

March 2019

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during 2018-19

Outstanding 
as at 31st 

March 2018

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during 2017-18

Inter Corporate Loans     

 - New Age Knowledge Solutions Ltd (for Business purpose)  409.00  409.00  -  - 

 - Mentor Financial Services Pvt. Ltd (for Business purpose)  818.58  818.58  -  - 

 Note:  Advances to employee as per Group’s policy are not considered.
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48. STATUTORY GROUP INFORMATION

 AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Consolidated Net 
Assets, i.e. Total 

Assets minus Total 
Liabilities

Share in Consolidat- Share in Consolidated 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Share in Consolidated 
Total Comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
Consoli-

dated Net 
Assets

Amount As % of 
Consol-

idated 

Loss

Amount As % of 
Consolidated 

Other Com-
prehensive 

Income

Amount As % of 
Consoli-

dated Total 
Compre-
hensive 
Income

Parent         

Insecticides (India) Limited 66,134.75 99.90% 12,240.67 99.67% (366.60) 99.95%  11,874.07 99.66%

Joint venture (Investment 
as per equity method)

        

OAT & IIL India 
Laboratories Private Limited

 65.63 0.10%  40.71 0.33%  (0.17) 0.05%  40.54 0.34%

Total equity 66,200.38  12,281.38  (366.77)   11,914.61  

 AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Consolidated Net 
Assets, i.e. Total 

Assets minus Total 
Liabilities

Share in Consolidat- Share in Consolidated 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Share in Consolidated 
Total Comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
Consoli-

dated Net 
Assets

Amount As % of 
Consol-

idated 

Loss

Amount As % of 
Consolidated 

Other Com-
prehensive 

Income

Amount As % of 
Consoli-

dated Total 
Compre-
hensive 
Income

Parent         

Insecticides (India) Limited  54,759.02 99.95%  8,397.36 99.62%  403.47 99.96%  8,800.83 99.64%

Joint venture (Investment 
as per equity method)

        

OAT & IIL India 
Laboratories Private Limited

 25.09 0.05%  31.77 0.38%  0.18 0.04%  31.95 0.36%

Total equity  54,784.11   8,429.13   403.65   8,832.78  

Notes to Financial Statements 3 to 46

Auditor’s Report
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith  FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For S S Kothari Mehta & Company Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman   Managing Director
  DIN: 00577015  DIN: 00576872

Devesh Parekh Harish Gupta Nikunj Aggarwal
Partner Partner Whole Time Director
Membership No.-  092160 Membership No.-  098336 DIN: 06569091
Firm Registration No. - 013338N Firm Registration No. - 000756N

Place : Delhi  Sandeep Aggarwal Sandeep Kumar
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 
TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (“AGM”) OF INSECTICIDES (INDIA) 
LIMITED will be held on Friday, August 02, 2019 
at 10.30 a.m IST at Sri Sathya Sai International 
Centre, Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, New Delhi – 
110 003, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2019 and the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this 
regard, pass the following resolutions as 
Ordinary Resolutions:

a. “RESOLVED 

year ended March 31, 2019, the reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon laid before this meeting, be and 
are hereby considered and adopted.”

b. RESOLVED that the audited consolidated 

and the report of Auditors thereon laid 
before this meeting, be and are hereby 
considered and adopted.”

2. 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 and in 
this regard pass the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that a dividend at the rate of  
`
` 10/- (Ten rupees) each fully paid-up of the 
Company be and is hereby declare for the 

same be paid as recommended by the Board 

March 31, 2019.”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Nikunj 
Aggarwal (DIN: 06569091), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers herself 
for re-appointment and in this regard pass 
the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Nikunj 
Aggarwal (DIN: 06569091), who retires by 
rotation at this meeting be and is hereby 
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.”

Special Business

4. To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for 

in this regard, pass the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 148 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

the time being in force)the remuneration, as 
approved by the Board of Directors and set 
out in the Statement annexed to the Notice 
convening this Meeting, to be paid to M/s 
Aggarwal Ashwani K & Associates, Cost 
Accountant, Firm Registration No. 100191 
the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board 
of Directors of the Company, to conduct the 
audit of cost records of the Company for the 

INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED

E-mail: investor@insecticidesindia.com; Telefax: +91 – 11 – 2769700 – 04
Website: www.insecticidesindia.com

NOTICE
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5. To re-appoint Shri S. Jayaraman (DIN : 
02634470) as an Independent Director and in 
this regard, to pass, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable 
Rules framed thereunder Shri S. Jayaraman 
(DIN: 02634470), be and is hereby re-
appointed as an Independent Director of 

second term of 5 (Five) years with effect from 
February 09, 2019 upto February 08, 2024, 
as per recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee”

6. To re-appoint Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal (DIN : 
07421742) as an Independent Director and in 
this regard, to pass, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable 
Rules framed thereunder Shri Vinod Kumar 
Mittal (DIN: 07421742), be and is hereby 
re-appointed as an Independent Director 

second term of 5 (Five) years with effect from 
February 09, 2019 up to February 08, 2024, 
as per recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee”

7. To re-appoint Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta (DIN 
: 06382540) as an Independent Director and 
in this regard, to pass, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable 
Rules framed thereunder Shri Virjesh Kumar 
Gupta (DIN: 06382540), be and is hereby 
re-appointed as an Independent Director 

a second term of 5 (Five) years with effect 
from May 31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024, as 
per recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee”

8. To re-appoint Shri Navin Shah (DIN : 
02701860) as an Independent Director and in 
this regard, to pass, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable 
Rules framed thereunder Shri Navin Shah 
(DIN: 02701860), be and is hereby re-
appointed as an Independent Director of 

a second term of 5 (Five) years with effect 
from May 31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024, as 
per recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee”

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sandeep Kumar

Delhi, May 28, 2019

401-402, Lusa Tower, 
Azadpur Commercial Complex, 
Delhi – 110033
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NOTES:

1. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), relating 
to the Special Business to be transacted at 
the Annual General Meeting (“Meeting”) is 
annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND 
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. The instrument 
appointing the proxy should, however, be 

Company not less than forty-eight hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting.

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of 

in the aggregate not more than ten percent 
of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as 
proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
The holder of proxy shall prove his identity 
at the time of attending the Meeting.

3. Corporate Members intending to send 
their authorized representative(s) to attend 

Board Resolution together with the specimen 
signature(s), of the representative(s) 
authorized under the said Board Resolution to 
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. Members, Proxies and Authorised 

the meeting, the Attendance Slip enclosed 
herewith, duly completed and signed, 
mentioning therein details of their DP ID and 
Client ID / Folio No.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer 
Books of the Company will remain closed from 
July 27, 2019 to August 02, 2019 (both days 
inclusive) for annual closing and determining 

of the shareholders eligible to receive the 
Final Dividend for 2018-2019.

6. The Board of Directors recommended Final 

Financial Year 2018-2019, subject to the 
approval of the shareholders. The dividend, if 
approved, will be credited/dispatched within a 
stipulated period as per Companies Act, 2013 
from the conclusion of the meeting: 

I. 
held in dematerialized form as per the data 
as may be made available by the National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
the Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) as of the close of business 
hours on July 26, 2019; 

II. To all Members in respect of shares held 
in physical form after giving effect to valid 

lodged with the Company as of the close 
of business hours on July 26, 2019.

7. Members holding shares in electronic form 
are informed that bank particulars registered 
against their respective depository accounts 
will be used by the Company for payment of 
dividend(s). The Company or its Registrars 

from the Members holding shares in electronic 
form for any change of bank particulars or 
bank mandates. Such changes are to be 
advised only to the respective depository 
participant of the Members. Members holding 
shares in physical form and desirous of either 
registering bank particulars or changing bank 
particulars already registered against their 
respective folios for payment of dividend(s) 

Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents, 
i.e. Alankit Assignments Limited (“AAL”).

8. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of 
the Act, Smt. NikunjAggarwal, Director of the 
Company, retire by rotation at this Meeting. 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and the Board of Directors of the Company 
recommend her  re-appointment.

9. Shri Hari Chand Aggarwal, Shri Rajesh 
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Aggarwal and Smt. NikunjAggarwal are 
interested in the Resolutions set out at Item 
No. 3 of the Notice with regard to the re-
appointment of Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal, being 
related to each other, may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 
3 of the Notice. Save and except the above, 
none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, 

out under Item Nos. 1 to 8 of the Notice.

10. 

members at every Annual General Meeting is 

7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, no resolution 

Auditors, who were appointed in the Annual 
General Meeting, held on August 08, 2017.

11. Pursuant to the provisions of 124 of the Act, 
Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) read 
with the relevant circulars and amendments 
thereto, the Company has transferred the 
unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up 

to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) established by the Central 
Government. The Company has uploaded 
the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends 
lying with the Company as on August 08, 2018 
(date of the previous Annual General Meeting) 
on the website of the Company and the same 
can be accessed through the link: http://
www.insecticidesindia.com/UnpaidDividend/
UnclaimedSheet2018_website.pdf The said 
details have also been uploaded on the 
website of the IEPF Authority and the same 
can be accessed through the link: www.iepf.
gov.in.

12. 

a. 
set out in the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, as amended, the Company has, 

NIL shares 
transferred to the IEPF Authorities 
Account, there was no such case 
wherein dividend had remained unpaid or 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years or 
more as on the due date of transfer, i.e. 
September 25, 2018.

b. Members may note that unclaimed 
dividend transferred to IEPF Authority can 
be claimed back from them. Concerned 
members/investors are advised to visit the 
weblink: http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.
html or contact AAL for lodging claim for 
refund of shares and / or dividend from the 
IEPF Authority.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) has mandated the submission 
of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
by every participant in securities market. 
Members holding shares in electronic form 

to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their DEMAT accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN details to the Company.

14. SEBI has also mandated that for registration 
of transfer of securities, the transferee(s) as 
well as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy of 
their PAN card to the Company for registration 
of transfer of securities.

15. In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

securities of listed companies can only be 
transferred in dematerialised form with effect 
from 1st April, 2019. In view of the above, 
members are advised to dematerialise the 
shares held by them in the physical form.

16. 
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) of the 
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Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(“ICSI”), in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, 
forms integral part of the Notice of the AGM, 

from the Directors for seeking appointment / 
re-appointment. 

17. The Notice of the 22nd AGM, Attendance 
Slip, Proxy Form, route Map along with the 
Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by 
electronic mode to those Members whose 
e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company / Depositories, unless any Member 

same. For Members who have not registered 
their e-mail addresses, physical copies are 
being sent by the permitted mode. Members 
may note that this Notice of 22nd AGM, 
Attendance Slip, Proxy Form, Route Map, 
and the Annual Report 2018-19 will also be 
available on the Company’s website viz. www.
insecticidesindia.com for their download.

 To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who 
have not registered their e-mail addresses 

AAL

18. Members may note that the physical copies of 
the aforesaid documents and other relevant 
documents referred in the Notice are open for 
inspection by the members at the Registered 

(i.e. except Saturdays, Sundays and Public 
Holidays) during business hours up to the 
date of the Meeting. The aforesaid documents 
will be also available for inspection by 
members at the Meeting. Members seeking 
any information with regard to the accounts 

early date, so as to enable the Management 
to keep the information ready at the AGM.

19. Voting through electronics means

I. In compliance with the provisions of 
Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended 
from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the Members 
are provided with the facility to cast their 
vote electronically, through the e-voting 
services provided by NSDL, on all the 
resolutions set forth in this Notice. The 
instructions for e-voting are given herein 
below. Resolution(s) passed by Members 
through e-voting is/are deemed to have 
been passed as if they have been passed 
at the AGM.

II. The facility for voting, through polling 
paper shall also be made available at 
the AGM and the Members attending the 
meeting who have not already cast their 
vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right to vote at the AGM. 
Remote e-voting shall not be allowed 
beyond Thursday, August 01 at 5:00 p.m. 

III. The cut-off date for the purpose of remote 
e-voting and voting at the AGM shall 
be July 26, 2019. The voting right of 
members shall be in proportion to their 

of the Company as on Cut-off date.

IV. The remote e-voting period begins on 
Monday, July 29, 2019 at 09.00 a.m. and 
ends on Thursday, August 01, 2019 at 
5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ 
of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date July 26, 2019 may 
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 
module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the member, the 
member shall not be allowed to change it 

V. The Members who have casted their vote 
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
also attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again.

VI. The details of the process and manner 
for remote e-voting are explained herein 
below:

 Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system 
at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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 Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on 
NSDL e-Voting system.

 Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

 How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholders’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID, your Password 

the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for 
NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can 
log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once 
you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on  
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

 Your User ID is:

a)  For Members who hold 
shares in demat account with 
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b)  For Members who holdshares 
in demat account with CDSL.

your user ID is 12**************

c)  For Members holding shares 
in  Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***

5. Your password details are given 
below:

a) If you are already registered for 
e-Voting, then you can user your 
existing password to login and cast 
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting 

you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to 
change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial 
password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in 
your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment 

is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for 
CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The 

your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, 
your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your 
postal address.
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have 
not received the “ Initial password” or 
have forgotten your password Click 
on:

a) “Forgot User Details/
Password?”(If you are holding 
shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” 
(If you are holding shares in 
physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get 
the password by aforesaid two 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning 
your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and 
your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP 
(One Time Password) based 
login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on 
Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” 
button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, 
Home page of e-Voting will open.

 Details on Step 2 is given below:

 How to cast your vote 
electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, 
you will be able to see the Home 
page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. 
Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, 
you will be able to see all the 
companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose 
voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select “EVEN” of the Company.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as 
the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting 
appropriate options i.e. assent or 
dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast 
your vote and click on “Submit” and 

6. 
“Vote cast successfully” will be 
displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of 
the votes cast by you by clicking on 

page.

8. 
resolution, you will not be allowed 
to modify your vote.

 General Guidelines for 
Shareholders 

1. It is strongly recommended not 
to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care 

Login to the e-voting website will 

attempts to key in the correct 
password.In such an event, you 
will need to go through the “Forgot 
User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” 
option available on www.evoting.
nsdl.com to reset the password.

2. 

Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the 
download section of www.evoting.
nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. or contact Ms. 
Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, National 
Securities Depository Ltd., Trade 
World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala 
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Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat 
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 
013, at the designated email IDs: 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or pallavid@
nsdl.co.in or at telephone nos. 
+91 22 2499 4545 who will also 
address the grievances connected 
with the voting by electronic 
means. Members may also write 
to the Company Secretary at the 
email ID: investor@in.nestle.com 
or contact at telephone no. 011-
23418891

VII. 
Company and becomes member of the 
Company after dispatch of the Notice of 
the AGM and holds shares as on the cut-
off date i.e. July 26, 2019, may obtain 
the User ID and password by sending a 

in.nestle.com. However, if you are already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-voting 
then you can use your existing user ID 
and password for casting your vote. If you 
forgot your password, you can reset your 
password byusing “Forgot User Details/
Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

VIII. A person, whose name is recorded in 
the register of members or in the register 

depositories as on the cut-off date only 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voting or voting at the AGM 
through ballot paper.

IX. The Board of Directors has appointed M/s 
Akash Gupta & Associates, Company 

Secretaries, (PCS Regs. No. 11038) as 
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at 
the meeting and remote e-voting process 
in a fair and transparent manner.

X. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after 
the conclusion of voting at the AGM, 

thereafter unblock the votes cast through 
remote e-voting in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of 
the Company, not later than 48 hours of 
conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a person authorised by him in writing 
who shall countersign the same. 

XI. The result declared along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.
insecticidesindia.com and on the 
website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.
com immediately after the declaration 
of Results by the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him. The Company shall 
simultaneously forward the results to the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
and BSE Limited, where the shares of the 
Company are listed.

20. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Act and the Register 
of Contracts and Arrangements in which 
Directors are interested maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act, shall be made available 
at the commencement of the meeting and shall 
remain open and accessible to the members 
during the continuance of the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sandeep Kumar

Delhi, May 28, 2019

401-402, Lusa Tower, 
Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi – 110033
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The following explanatory statement sets 
out all material facts relating to various 
Businesses including Special Business of the 
accompanying Notice of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held on August 02, 2019

ITEM NO.4

The Board of Directors of the Company on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee has 
approved the appointment and remuneration 
of Aggarwal Ashwani K. & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, Delhi (Firm Regd. No. 100191), 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 

2020.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 
of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable 
to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the 
Audit Committee and approved by the Board, has 

to the remuneration of Rs.4,50,000/- (Rupees 
Four Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) (excluding out of 
pocket expenses) payable to the Cost Auditor for 
Financial year ending March 31, 2019 by passing 
Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of 
the Notice.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 

in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution 
as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval 
by the members.

ITEM NO.5

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent 

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, 
but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
a special resolution by the Company for another 

of a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

S. Jayaraman, being eligible for re-appointment 
as an Independent Director and offering himself 
for re-appointment, is proposed to be re-
appointed as an Independent Director for second 

2019 to February 08, 2024.

After Considering the performance evaluation 
of Mr. S. Jayaraman, the Board of Directors 
at its meeting held on November 12, 2018 re-
appointed Shri S. Jayaramanas an Independent 
Director for the second term of 5 (Five) years 
with effect from February 09, 2019 till February 
08, 2024. Shri S. Jayaraman has given a 
declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria 
for independence as provided under Section 
149 (6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board,  

in the Act, the Rules thereunder and the Listing 
Regulations 2015 for re-appointment as an 
Independent Director and that he is independent 
of the management of the Company.

below:

Shri S. Jayaraman holds a Master’s Degree in 
Science and a Diploma in Business Management. 
In addition he had done an advanced General 
Management course in MIT Sloan School 
USA. He joined Hoechst India in 1970 and 
held various positions. He rose to become a 
Director, Member of Board .The responsibilities 
included manufacturing, QA, Safety in divisions 
of Agrochemicals, Pharmaceuticals (Pharma & 
Veterinary) and Vaccines. The demerger and 

responsibility in Commercial, Purchase (Imports, 
Exports & Domestic),Supply Chain, SAP. The 
companies were Hoechst Schering Agrevo Ltd., 
Agrevo Ltd., Aventis Ltd., Bayer Crop Science 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 
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Ltd. In 2004 he joined Hikal as Business Head, 
VP for their the Agrochemicals division. Here the 
areas of work involved were active, formulations 
and contract manufacturing from three different 

to work as Business Development Advisor 
for Domestic and International markets. Here 
the areas of work involved identifying new 
domestic and international customers for active, 
formulations and contract manufacturing for both 
pharma and veterinary products. Both Hikal and 

term growth oriented business relationships. 
Such contracts were very well coordinated and 

and supply chain. He shall be re-appointed 
under the category of Independent (Professional) 
Director and he shall be appointed on similar 
terms and conditions of his initial appointment.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing 
of the Special Resolution in relation to re-
appointment of Shri S. Jayaramanas an 
Independent Director

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company/ their relatives except Shri S. 
Jayaramanare in any way concerned or interested, 

The Directors recommend the resolution for 
approval by the members.

ITEM NO.6

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent 

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, 
but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
a special resolution by the Company for another 

of a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal, being eligible for re-

appointment as an Independent Director and 
offering himself for re-appointment, is proposed 
to be re-appointed as an Independent Director 

February 09, 2019 to February 08, 2024.

After Considering the performance evaluation of 
Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal, the Board of Directors 
at its meeting held on November 12, 2018 
re-appointed Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal as an 
Independent Director for the second term of 5 
(Five) years with effect from February 09, 2019 
to February 08, 2024. Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal 
has given a declaration to the Board that he 
meets the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149 (6) of the Act.In the opinion 

thereunder and the Listing Regulations 2015 for 
re-appointment as an Independent Director and 
that he is independent of the management of the 
Company

given below:

Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal is highly experienced 
person in the banking sector and he had taken 
a voluntary retirement from the post of Chief 

Delhi in the year 2005. He is enriched with the 
professional expertise in the working, Shri Vinod 
Kumar Mittal get appointed as an additional 
Independent director of the Company in February 
10, 2016. He shall be appointed under the 
category of Independent (Professional) Director 
and he shall be appointed on similar terms and 
conditions of his initial appointment.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing 
of the Special Resolution in relation to re-
appointment of Shri Vinod Kumar Mittal as an 
Independent Director

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company/ their relatives except Shri 
Vinod Kumar Mittal are in any way concerned 

resolution.
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The Directors recommend the resolution for 
approval by the members.

ITEM NO.7

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent 

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, 
but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
a special resolution by the Company for another 

of a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta, being eligible for re-
appointment as an Independent Director and 
offering himself for re-appointment, is proposed 
to be re-appointed as an Independent Director for 

31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024.

After Considering the performance evaluation of 
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta, the Board of Directors 
at its meeting held on May 28, 2019 re-appointed 
Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta as an Independent 
Director for the second term of 5 (Five) years with 
effect from May 31, 2019 up to May 30, 2024. Shri 
Vinod Kumar Mittal has given a declaration to the 
Board that he meets the criteria of independence 
as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act. In the 
opinion of the Board, Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta 

thereunder and the Listing Regulations 2015 for 
re-appointment as an Independent Director and 
that he is independent of the management of the 
Company.

given below:

Shri Virjesh Kumar Gupta, age 72 years, is 

experienced professional with indepth 
understanding and hands of experience in 

specialized in general management covering 

almost all aspects of day to day business 
activities. He is also associated with various 
Educational and Charitable Societies.  

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing 
of the Special Resolution in relation to re-
appointment of Shri Virjesh Kumar Guptaas an 
Independent Director.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company/ their relatives except Shri 
Virjesh Kumar Gupta are in any way concerned 

resolution.

The Directors recommend the resolution for 
approval by the members.

ITEM NO.8

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent 

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, 
but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
a special resolution by the Company for another 

of a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Navin Shah, being eligible for re-appointment as 
an Independent Director and offering himself for 
re-appointment, is proposed to be re-appointed 
as an Independent Director for second term of 

May 30, 2024.

After Considering the performance evaluation 
of Shri Navin Shah, the Board of Directors at 
its meeting held on May 28, 2019 re-appointed 
Shri Navin Shah as an Independent Director 
for the second term of 5 (Five) years with effect 
from May 31, 2019 to May 30, 2024 based on 
the nomination for his appointment as Director 
received from a member. Shri Vinod Kumar 
Mittal has given a declaration to the Board that he 
meets the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149 (6) of the Act. In the opinion of 
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Listing Regulations 2015 for re-appointment as an 
Independent Director and that he is independent 
of the management of the Company.

below:

Shri Navin Shah, aged 77 years, belongs to a 
business family of Delhi. He started his business 
career in plastic industries. Shri Navin Shah has 
more than 48 years experience in manufacturing 
in PVC compound.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the 
Special Resolution in relation to re-appointment 
of Shri Navin Shah as an Independent Director.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company/ their relatives except Shri Navin 
Shah are in any way concerned or interested, 

The Directors recommend the resolution for 
approval by the members.

Annexure to the Notice dated May 28, 2019

Information of Director retiring by rotation and the Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Secretarial Standards, as on the date of Notice

Name of the Director Smt Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Shri S. 
Jayaraman

Shri Vinod 
Kumar Mittal

Shri Virjesh 
Kumar Gupta

Shri Navin 
Shah

Number (DIN)
06569091 02634470 07421742 06382540 02701860

Date of Birth (Age in Years) January 01, 1973 
(46 Years) 

July 17, 1949 (70 
Years)

May 02, 1952 
(67 Years)

April 07, 1947 
(72 Years)

August 18, 1942 
(77 Years)

Original Date of Appointment May 02, 2013 February 10, 2016 February 10, 
2016

June 01, 2014 June 01, 2014

Graduate M.Sc. Organic 
Chemistry IIT, 
Delhi; DIP in Bus. 
Mang. (Bom Univ-
3 yrs); Adv. Gen 
Mangt – MIT Sloan 
School, USA

Graduate B. Com (Hons.) High School

Experience and expertise in More than 10 years 
of experience of 
Administration in 
Agro Chemical 
Industry. Please 
refer Company’s 
website: www.
incet ic idesindia.
com for detailed 

More than 40 years 
of Experience in 
M a n u f a c t u r i n g , 
QA, Safety, 
logistics, Contract 
M a n u f a c t u r i n g 
of Technical and 
F o r m u l a t i o n . 
Please refer 
C o m p a n y ’ s 
website: www.
incet ic idesindia.
com for detailed 

More than 
35 Years of 
Experience in 
Banking Sector. 
Please refer 
C o m p a n y ’ s 
website: www.
inceticidesindia.
com for detailed 

More than 
41 Years of 
E x p e r i e n c e 
in Business 
M a n a g e m e n t 
and Operations. 
Please refer 
C o m p a n y ’ s 
website: www.
inceticidesindia.
com for detailed 

More than 
48 Years of 
Experience in 
Manufacturing 
a n d 
Managemen t . 
Please refer 
C o m p a n y ’ s 
website: www.
inceticidesindia.
com for detailed 

Remuneration last drawn As mentioned in Corporate Governance Report of 2018-2019
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Name of the Director Smt Nikunj 
Aggarwal

Shri S. 
Jayaraman

Shri Vinod 
Kumar Mittal

Shri Virjesh 
Kumar Gupta

Shri Navin 
Shah

Number of meeting of Board 
attended during the year 
(2018-2019)

4 3 4 4 3

Shareholding in Insecticides 
(India) Limited Shares

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Relationship with other 
Directors / KMPs

Spouse of Shri 
Rajesh Aggarwal, 
Managing Director 
and Daughter-in 
Law of Shri Hari 
Chand Aggarwal, 
chairman and 
W h o l e - t i m e 
Director and not 
related to any 
other Director / 
Key Managerial 
Personnel

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Directorships of other Boards 
as on March 31, 2019

Nil Nil Nil Nil 1) Shailja Papers 
Limited
2) Varahi Limited

Membership /Chairmanship 
of committees of other 
Boards as on March 31, 2019

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sandeep Kumar

Delhi, May 28, 2019

401-402, Lusa Tower, 
Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi – 110033
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A

Route map to the venue of the 2 Annual General2nd

Meeting of Insecticides (India) Limited

Sri Sathya Sai International Centre,
Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
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INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L65991DL1996PLC083909

Website: www.insecticidesindia.com;E-mail: investor@insecticidesindia.com; 
Telefax: +91 – 11 – 2769700 – 04

ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
Joint shareholders may obtain additional slip at the venue of the Meeting

DP Id* Folio No.
Client Id* No. of Shares
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER:

I/We hereby record my/ our presence at the 22ndAnnual General Meeting of the members of the Company held 
on Friday, August 02, 2019 at 10:30 a.m.at Sri Sathya Sai International Centre, Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, 
New Delhi – 110 003

__________________________
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form  Member’s /Proxy’s Signature

may use the Proxy Form given herewith. 

INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L65991DL1996PLC083909

Website: www.insecticidesindia.com;E-mail: investor@insecticidesindia.com; 
Telefax: +91 – 11 – 2769700 – 04

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Name of the Member(s)    Folio No. / Client ID 
       DP ID
Reg. Address      Email ID

I/We, being the member(s) of……………………shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1 ……………………..……….of………...………………. having E-mail Id:……..………………….or failing him;
2 ……………………..……….of………...………………. having E-mail Id:……..………………….or failing him;
3 ……………….........……….of………...………………. having E-mail Id:……..………………….or failing him;

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and 
on my / our behalf at the 22ndAnnual General Meeting of the members of the Company, to be held on Friday, 
August 02, 2019 at 10:30 a.m.at Sri Sathya Sai International Centre, Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, New Delhi – 
110 003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:
** I wish my above proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolution **Optional

Ordinary Business For Against

1 Consider and adopt:
a. 

and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

b. 
March 31, 2019 and the Report of Auditors thereon

2

3 Re-appointment of Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal (DIN: 06569091), a director retiring 
by rotation.
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Revenue
Stamp

Special Business
4

March 31, 2020
5 Re-appointment of Shri. S. Jayaraman (DIN: 02634470) as Independent 

Director for second term of 5 years w.e.f. 09/02/2019
6 Re-appointment of  Shri. Vinod Kumar Mittal  (DIN: 07421742) as Independent 

Director for second term of 5 years w.e.f. 09/02/2019
7 Re-appointment of  Shri. Virjesh Kumar Gupta  (DIN: 06382540) as Independent 

Director for second term of 5 years w.e.f. 31/05/2019
8 Re-appointment of  Shri. Navin Shah  (DIN: 02701860) as Independent 

Director for second term of 5 years w.e.f. 31/05/2019

Signed this ……………………………..day of………………2019.

 _______________________
 Signature of the Shareholder

________________________ ___________________________ _________________________
Signature of First proxy holder Signature of Second proxy holder  Signature of Third proxy holder

Note: 
1. 

Tower, Azadpur Commercial Complex, Delhi - 110033, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.
3. 

Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder

4. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, Please refer to the Notice of the 22nd Annual General Meeting.
5. **It is optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any 

or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
6. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the Meeting in person if he / she so wishes. When a Member appoints a Proxy and both the 

Member and Proxy attend the Meeting, the Proxy will stand automatically revoked.
7. 
8. This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if the appointer is a body corporate, be under its seal or be 

9. This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per the applicable law. Incomplete form or form 

10. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.
11. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered valid; if they are not dated or 

Important Communication to Members

The Companies Act, 2013 is taking step forward in promoting “Green Initiative” by providing for service of 
documents by a Company to its Members through electronic mode. The move of the Ministry allows public 
at large to contribute to the green movement to help to environment. To support this green initiative of the 

register their e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned 

or Registrar of the Company i.e. Alankit Assignments Limited, New Delhi.








